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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes /x/ No / /

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. / /

At September 26, 2001, there were outstanding 6,266,575 shares of the Common Stock of Registrant, and the aggregate market value of the
shares held on that date by non-affiliates of the Registrant, based on the closing price ($0.90 per share) of the Registrant's Common Stock on
the New York Stock Exchange was $5,638,568. For purposes of this computation, it has been assumed that the shares beneficially held by
directors and executive officers of Registrant were "held by affiliates"; this assumption is not to be deemed to be an admission by such persons
that they are affiliates of Registrant.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of Registrant's Proxy Statement relating to its 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendment to this Form 10-K are
incorporated by reference in Items 10, 11, 12 and 13 of Part III of this Annual Report.

PART I

Item 1. Business

General

Aames Financial Corporation (the "Company") is a consumer finance company primarily engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the business
of originating, selling and servicing home equity mortgage loans collateralized by single family residences. Upon its formation in 1991, the
Company acquired Aames Home Loan, a home equity lender making loans in California since it was founded in 1954. In 1995, the Company
expanded its retail presence outside of California and began purchasing loans from correspondents. In August 1996, the Company acquired its
broker production channel through the acquisition of One Stop Mortgage, Inc. In 1999, the Company consolidated its loan production
channels into one company, and the retail and broker production channels (including the former One Stop) now operate under the name
"Aames Home Loan."

The Company's principal market is borrowers whose financing needs are not being met by traditional mortgage lenders for a variety of
reasons, including the need for specialized loan products or credit histories that may limit such borrowers' access to credit. The Company
believes these borrowers continue to represent an underserved niche of the home equity loan market and present an opportunity to earn a
superior return for the risk assumed. The residential mortgage loans originated by the Company, which include fixed and adjustable rate loans,
are generally used by borrowers to consolidate indebtedness or to finance other consumer needs, and to a lesser extent, to purchase homes.

The Company originates loans nationally through its traditional retail and broker office networks and through the Internet and
telemarketing. The Company no longer purchases loans through correspondents, which it ceased during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000,
and which it had materially decreased since fiscal 1998. During the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company originated
$2.4 billion, $2.1 billion and $2.2 billion, respectively, of mortgage loans. The Company underwrites and appraises every loan it originates.

As a fundamental part of its business and financing strategy, the Company sells its loans to third party investors in the secondary market as
market conditions allow. The Company maximizes opportunities in its loan disposition transactions by disposing of its loan production
through a combination of securitizations and whole loan sales, depending on market conditions, profitability and cash flows. During the years
ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company sold $2.3 billion, $2.2 billion and $1.9 billion, respectively, of loans. See "�Loan
Disposition."
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It is the Company's strategy to maximize opportunities in loan servicing. The Company retained the servicing on the loans it securitized
through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000, but sold the servicing rights in securitizations in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 for cash. At
June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company's servicing portfolio was $2.7 billion, $3.6 billion and $3.8 billion, respectively. Loans serviced
in-house at June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $2.5 billion, $3.3 billion and $3.4 billion, respectively, or 93.2%, 92.6% and 89.2%,
respectively.

The Company continues to focus on increasing its profitability through executing its core business strategy of: (i) increasing the amount and
value of its core loan production; (ii) reducing its cost of production; (iii) maximizing its opportunities in loan servicing; and (iv) maintaining
the ability to obtain sufficient lines of credit to provide financing for the assets created by the Company and become self financing.

Increasing the Amount and Value of Its Core Loan Production. The Company intends to increase the size of its overall originations while
improving its value. The Company's traditional retail platform, its nationwide broker operations and its growing Internet and telemarketing
channels are all targeted as

1

sources of growth. In its traditional retail platform, the Company intends to drive this growth by: improving market penetration in its existing
markets, introducing new products and improving its customer service levels. The Company's nationwide broker operations plan to grow by:
improving the service levels it offers to its current group of independent mortgage brokers, continuing to build new relationships with
independent mortgage brokers throughout the country and introducing new products that meet the needs of brokers' customer bases. The
Company's growing Internet and telemarketing channels are planning to increase their scale by: identifying additional non-traditional lead
sources, increasing their product offerings and expanding their overall operations. Additionally, the Company plans to continue using its
knowledge of current customer needs and the historical performance of its loans to improve the value of its offerings to its retail customers
and independent mortgage brokers while maximizing the resale value of its production.

Reducing Its Cost of Production. The Company intends to reduce its cost of production by: leveraging its investment in origination
technology platforms, increasing the amount of automation in the loan origination process and increasing the scale of the origination business
driving fixed costs down as a percentage of overall production costs. The Company will also continue the on-going effort of identifying
opportunities for cost reductions across all levels of the Company's operations.

Maximizing Its Opportunities in Loan Servicing. The Company's servicing operations generate servicing income and related fees while
providing management information regarding the performance of mortgage loans. The Company is also able to sell its servicing rights to third
parties in connection with whole loan sales and securitizations. The Company intends to maximize opportunities in loan servicing taking into
consideration the overall Company's profitability and liquidity position. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company maximized
profitability and cash flow by selling all of its loan production through whole loan sales and securitization transactions on a servicing released
basis, which combined with existing loan servicing run-off, in the form of principal amortization, prepayments and liquidations, has resulted
in a decline in the size of the servicing portfolio.

Maintaining the Ability to Obtain Sufficient Lines of Credit and Become Self Financing. The Company intends to increase and diversify its
funding sources by adding additional warehouse or repurchase facilities by expanding its current funding relationships and identifying new
funding sources. The Company will continue to fund its operations by disposing of a portion of its loan production for cash in the whole loan
market, selling residual interests created in securitizations through the Residual Forward Sale Facility (the "Residual Facility") with Capital Z
Investments, L.P., a Bermuda partnership ("CZI"), an affiliate of Specialty Finance Partners ("SFP"), the Company's largest stockholder which
is controlled by Capital Z Financial Services Fund, II, L.P. (together with SFP, "Capital Z"), until the expiration of that facility, selling the
mortgage servicing rights and the rights to prepayment fees on the mortgage loans in the securitizations and developing new sources for
working capital.

The strategies discussed above contain forward-looking statements. Such statements are based on current expectations and are subject to
risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including those discussed under "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations�Risk Factors." Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Thus, no assurance can be given that the
Company will be able to accomplish the above strategies.

Recent Events

The Company reported a $30.5 million net loss for the year ended June 30, 2001. The $30.5 million net loss resulted from the Company's
$33.6 million valuation adjustment to the estimated fair value of its residual interests partially offset by a $3.1 million net operating profit. The

2

$33.6 million valuation adjustment reflected the Company's assessment of credit loss and delinquency experience of certain mortgage loans in
its securitized trusts originated during and prior to 1999.

All of the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities contain provisions requiring the Company to meet certain periodic
financial covenants, including among other things, minimum liquidity, stockholders' equity, leverage, and net income levels. Due to the
$33.2 million loss for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, the Company failed to meet certain financial covenants under its revolving
warehouse and repurchase facilities at March 31, 2001, April 30, 2001 and May 31, 2001. However, the Company sought and successfully
obtained amendments to these financial covenants from its warehouse and repurchase lenders to bring itself into compliance at March 31,
2001 and during the three months ended June 30, 2001. If the Company is unable to meet these financial covenants going forward, or is unable
to obtain subsequent amendments, if required, or for any other reason is unable to maintain existing warehouse or repurchase lines or renew
them when they expire, it would have to cease loan production operations which would negatively impact profitability and jeopardize the
Company's ability to continue to operate as a going concern.

On September 25, 2001, the Company completed a securitization of $175.0 million of mortgage loans and sold its residual interest through
the Residual Facility for cash. The Company also sold its servicing rights and the rights to the prepayment penalties under the securitization
for cash to an unrelated mortgage banking company.

As previously reported, the Company received a notice from the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") that the Company's common
stock, par value $0.001 per share (the "Common Stock") did not meet the requirements for continued listing because the thirty day average
trading price of the Common Stock was below $1.00 per share. After reviewing the Company's stock price performance, as well as other
materials, the NYSE notified the Company that the Common Stock would remain listed until July 2, 2001, at which time the stock price
performance would be measured for compliance with continued listing standards. The closing price and the thirty day average closing price of
the Common Stock on July 2, 2001 was $1.35 and $1.42, respectively

On July 2, 2001, the NYSE acknowledged that the Company had met the stock price requirements of continued listing as of July 2, 2001.
The NYSE also informed the Company that the Common Stock would continue to be listed on the NYSE; however, the Common Stock is
subject to a follow-up period during which time the NYSE will continue to monitor the Company and, on November 2, 2001, the NYSE will
again measure the stock price performance as of the thirty trading days ending November 2, 2001. In addition, if at any time before
November 2, 2001, the NYSE determines that the Company has failed to meet any of the continuing listing standards, the NYSE will re-
evaluate the continued listing of the Common Stock at that time and may take action including truncating the normal compliance procedures
and beginning the initiation of suspension procedures. The closing price and the thirty day average closing price of the Common Stock as of
September 26, 2001 was $0.90 and $1.11, respectively.

There can be no assurance that the thirty trading day average closing price of the Common Stock will remain above $1.00 per share or that
the Common Stock will not be suspended by the NYSE. If the Common Stock were suspended by the NYSE, it would seriously impair the
ability of the holders of the Common Stock to trade their shares.

Mortgage Loan Production

The Company's principal loan product is a non-conforming home equity loan with a fixed principal amount and term to maturity which is
typically secured by a first or second mortgage on the borrower's residence with either a fixed or adjustable interest rate. Non-conforming
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home equity loans are loans made to homeowners whose borrowing needs may not be met by traditional financial institutions due to credit
exceptions or other factors and generally cannot be directly marketed to agencies such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. During the year ended
June 30, 2001, the Company originated its residential
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loans through its traditional retail and broker office networks and, to a lesser extent, through the Internet and telemarketing.

The following table presents certain information about the Company's loan production at or during the periods indicated:

Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Retail loans:
Branch originations:

Total dollar amount $ 1,104,676,000 $ 777,800,000 $ 770,000,000
Number of loans 14,571 11,144 12,214
Average loan amount 75,813 69,795 63,042
Average initial combined LTV 74.71% 73.47% 72.00%
Weighted average interest rate(1) 10.33% 10.05% 9.50%
Number of retail branch offices at period end 100 100 101

Internet originations:
Total dollar amount $ 75,875,000 $ 5,900,000 n/a
Number of loans 827 82 n/a
Average loan amount 91,747 71,951 n/a
Average initial combined LTV 76.50% 69.93% n/a
Weighted average interest rate(1) 9.48% 9.73% n/a
Number of retail Internet offices at period end 1 1 n/a

Total retail $ 1,180,551,000 $ 783,700,000 $ 770,000,000
Number of loans 15,398 11,226 12,214
Average loan amount 76,669 69,811 63,042
Average initial combined LTV 74.83% 73.43% 72.00%
Weighted average interest rate(1) 10.27% 10.05% 9.50%
Number of retail branch and Internet offices 101 101 101

Broker loans:
Branch originations(2)(3):

Total dollar amount $ 1,135,754,000 $ 1,238,000,000 $ 1,182,100,000
Number of loans 10,404 13,597 14,006
Average loan amount 109,165 91,049 84,400
Average initial combined LTV 78.71% 78.16% 76.00%
Weighted average interest rate(1) 10.25% 10.35% 9.90%
Number of regional broker offices at period end 5 7 35

Telemarketing and Internet originations:
Total dollar amount $ 55,325,000 $ 24,900,000 n/a
Number of loans 506 241 n/a
Average loan amount 109,339 103,321 n/a
Average initial combined LTV 78.86% 78.41% n/a
Weighted average interest rate(1) 10.56% 10.62% n/a

4

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Total broker $ 1,191,079,000 $ 1,262,900,000 $ 1,182,100,000
Number of loans 10,910 13,838 14,006
Average loan amount 109,173 91,263 84,400
Average initial combined LTV 78.89% 78.16% 76.00%
Weighted average interest rate(1) 10.26% 10.35% 9.90%
Number of regional broker offices at period end 5 7 35

Correspondent loans:
Total dollar amount n/a $ 32,700,000 $ 241,500,000
Number of loans n/a 289 2,219
Average loan amount n/a 113,149 108,833
Average initial combined LTV n/a 81.00% 80.00%
Weighted average interest rate(1) n/a 10.20% 10.00%

Total loans:
Total dollar amount $ 2,371,630,000 $ 2,079,300,000 $ 2,193,600,000
Number of loans 26,308 25,353 28,439
Average loan amount 90,149 82,014 77,134
Average initial combined LTV 76.78% 76.00% 75.00%
Weighted average interest rate(1) 10.27% 10.20% 9.80%

(1)
Calculated with respect to the interest rate at the time the mortgage loan was originated or purchased by the Company.

(2)
Includes commercial loans. In late fiscal 1997, the Company began originating small commercial loans on a limited basis. In
January 1999, the Company discontinued its commercial loan operation.

(3)
Includes "flow" and bulk correspondent loans. Prior to fiscal 1999, the Company purchased a significant dollar amount of correspondent
loans in bulk purchases, but eliminated bulk purchases and decreased its reliance on correspondent production in fiscal 1999.

Total loan production during the year ended June 30, 2001 increased to $2.4 billion from the $2.1 billion reported during the year ended
June 30, 2000 which, in turn, was a decrease from the $2.2 billion reported during the year ended June 30, 1999. The Company's total broker
production declined $71.8 million to $1.2 billion during the year ended June 30, 2001 from $1.3 billion during the prior year, and increased
$9.0 million from the $1.2 billion reported during the year ended June 30, 1999. Mortgage loan production from the traditional broker channel
was $1.1 billion, $1.2 billion and $1.2 billion during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, which reflects a decrease of
$102.2 million during the year ended June 30, 2001 from the year ended June 30, 2000 and an increase of $55.9 million during June 30, 2000
from the prior year. Broker mortgage loan production through telemarketing and Internet sources, which commenced during fiscal 2000,
increased $30.4 million to $55.3 million during the year ended June 30, 2001 from the $24.9 million of similar production reported during the
year ended June 30, 2000. The Company's total retail mortgage loan production increased $396.9 million to $1.2 billion during the year ended
June 30, 2001 from $783.7 million during the year ended June 30, 2000 and increased $13.7 million to $783.7 million during fiscal 2000 from
the $770.0 million reported during the year ended June 30, 1999. Mortgage loan production volume reported by the Company's traditional
retail channel was $1.1 billion, $777.8 million and $770.0 million during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Loan
origination volume produced through the Company's retail Internet channel, through affiliations with certain Internet lending sites, was
$75.9 million, an increase of $70.0 million from the $5.9 million reported during the year ended June 30, 2000 when the Company first
commenced producing retail mortgage

5
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loans through Internet sources. As previously reported, during the year ended June 30, 1998 the Company began materially decreasing its
reliance on correspondent loan purchases and eliminated the program during the year ended June 30, 2001. During the years ended June 30,
2000 and 1999, mortgage loan production attributable to correspondent purchases was $32.7 million and $241.5 million, respectively.

Retail Loan Channel. The Company originates home equity mortgage loans through its network of retail loan offices and through the
Internet through its National Loan Center. At June 30, 2001, the Company had 100 retail offices serving borrowers nationally. The Company
continually monitors its retail operations and evaluates current and potential retail offices on the basis of selected demographic statistics,
marketing analyses and other criteria developed by the Company.

The Company generates applications for loans through its retail loan office network principally through a direct response marketing
program, which relies primarily on the use of direct mailings to homeowners, telemarketing and yellow-page listings. The Company generates
customer leads for the retail network in two ways: produced by the Company based upon Company derived models and commercially
developed customer lists (the "centralized marketing approach") and generated by the local branch by the loan officers who are familiar with
the local area (the "decentralized marketing approach"). The Company's direct mail invites prospective borrowers to call the Company to
apply for a loan. Direct mail is often followed up by telephone calls to potential customers. All contact with the customer is handled through
the local branch. On the basis of an initial screening conducted at the time of the call, the Company's loan officer at the local retail loan office
makes a preliminary determination of whether the customer and the property meet the Company's lending criteria. The loan officer may
complete the application over the telephone, or schedule an appointment in the retail loan office most conveniently located to the customer or
in the customer's home, depending on the customer's needs.

The Company's National Loan Center obtains leads through several commercially available Internet sites as well as through its own internet
web site "Aames.net". On the basis of information provided by the customer through the Internet, a preliminary determination is made as to
whether the customer and the property meet the Company's lending criteria. Once the Company receives the lead, a loan officer contacts the
prospective customer by telephone and the customer completes the application by telephone or mail. During fiscal 2001, the Company
increased its retail loan production through loan originations through the Internet to $75.9 million from $5.9 million of retail production
during the years ended June 30, 2000. The Company expects retail Internet production to generate an increasing dollar amount and percentage
of retail loan production in the coming quarters.

The loan officer assists the applicant in completing the loan application, arranges for an appraisal, orders a credit report from an
independent, nationally recognized credit reporting agency and performs various other tasks in connection with the completion of the loan
package. The loan package is then underwritten for loan approval. If the loan package is approved, the loan is funded by the Company. The
Company's loan officers are trained to structure loans that meet the applicant's needs while satisfying the Company's lending guidelines.

The Company believes that its marketing efforts establish name recognition and serve to distinguish the Company from its competitors. The
Company continually monitors the sources of its applications to determine the most effective methods and manner of marketing.

Independent Mortgage Broker Channel. At June 30, 2001, the Company operated five regional offices and during fiscal 2001, the
Company originated loans through approximately 2,800 brokers, no one of which accounted for more than 3.1% of total broker originations.
All broker loans originated by the Company are underwritten in accordance with the Company's underwriting guidelines. Once approved, the
loan is funded by the Company directly.
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The broker's role is to identify the applicant, assist in completing the loan application, gather necessary information and documents and
serve as the Company's liaison with the borrower through the lending process. The Company reviews and underwrites the applications
submitted by the broker, approves or denies the application, sets the interest rate and other terms of the loan and, upon acceptance by the
borrower and satisfaction of all conditions imposed by the Company, funds the loan. Because brokers conduct their own marketing and
employ their own personnel to complete loan applications and maintain contact with borrowers, originating loans through the Company's
broker network allows the Company to increase its loan volume without incurring the higher marketing and employee costs associated with
increased retail originations.
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Because mortgage brokers generally submit loan files to several prospective lenders simultaneously, consistent underwriting, quick
response times and personal service are critical to successfully producing loans through independent mortgage brokers. To meet these
requirements, the Company strives to provide quick response time to the loan application (generally within 24 hours). In addition, loan
consultants and loan processors, including underwriters, are available in the Company's regional offices to answer questions, assist in the loan
application process and facilitate ultimate funding of the loan.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2000, the Company began using telemarketing and the Internet to increase its broker loan production and
further penetrate the non-conforming home equity broker market through its "Broker Direct" program. Through Broker Direct, the Company
makes out bound telemarketing calls to brokers who are not currently doing business with the Company or are outside the geographic areas
served by the loan officers. The Company also obtains leads through a commercially available internet site as well as through its own internet
web site "Aamesdirect.com". "Broker Direct" and broker Internet loan originations for the year ended June 30, 2001 increased to $55.3 million
from $24.9 million during the year ended June 30, 2000. The Company expects "Broker Direct" and broker Internet to generate an increasing
dollar amount and percentage of broker loan production in the coming quarters.

Correspondent Channel. Prior to fiscal 2001, the Company purchased a limited amount of closed loans from mortgage bankers and other
financial institutions on a continuous or "flow" basis to supplement its core loan production on a cost effective basis.

Underwriting. The Company underwrites every residential loan it originates. The Company's underwriting guidelines are designed to
assess the borrower's creditworthiness and the adequacy of the real property as collateral for the loan. The borrower's creditworthiness is
assessed by examination of a number of factors, including calculation of debt-to-income ratios, which is the sum of the borrower's monthly
debt payments divided by the borrower's monthly income before taxes and other payroll deductions, an examination of the borrower's credit
history and credit score through standard credit reporting bureaus, and by evaluating the borrower's payment history with respect to existing
mortgages, if any, on the property.

An assessment of the adequacy of the real property as collateral for the loan is primarily based upon an appraisal of the property and a
calculation of the ratios of the loan applied for (the "LTV") and of all mortgages existing on the property, including the loan applied for, (the
"combined loan-to-value ratio" or "CLTV") to the appraised value of the property at the time of origination. As a lender that specializes in
loans made to credit impaired borrowers, the Company makes home equity mortgage loans to borrowers with credit histories or other factors
that could typically disqualify them from consideration for a loan from traditional financial institutions. Consequently, the Company's
underwriting guidelines for such credit-impaired borrowers generally require lower combined loan-to-value ratios than would typically be the
case if the borrower could qualify for a loan from a traditional financial institution.

Appraisers determine a property's value by reference to the sales prices of comparable properties recently sold, adjusted to reflect the
condition of the property as determined through inspection.

7

The underwriting of a mortgage loan to be originated by the Company includes a review of the completed loan package, which includes the
loan application, a current appraisal, a preliminary title report and a credit report. All loan applications must be approved by the Company in
accordance with its underwriting criteria. The Company regularly reviews its underwriting guidelines and makes changes when appropriate to
respond to market conditions, the performance of loans representing a particular loan product or changes in laws or regulations.

The Company requires title insurance coverage issued on an American Land Title Association (or similar) form of title insurance on all
residential properties securing mortgage loans it originates or purchases. The loan originator and its assignees are generally named as the
insured. Title insurance policies indicate the lien position of the mortgage loan and protect the Company against loss if the title or lien position
is not as indicated. The applicant is also required to maintain hazard and, in certain instances, flood insurance, in an amount sufficient to cover
the new loan and any senior mortgage, subject to the maximum amount available under the National Flood Insurance Program.

Each of the Company's retail loan office network, Internet-based National Loan Center and broker channel has its own underwriting
guidelines. While broadly similar, the underwriting guidelines do vary among the origination channels. The following generally summarizes
the Company's underwriting guidelines:
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Each organization channel employs its own "traditional" underwriting program, under which the borrower's mortgage credit
and consumer credit are each scored and weighted to determine the overall credit grade of the borrower with the borrower then
being assigned an "A+/A" through "D" credit grade, and

��

The broker channel also utilizes a credit score/LTV based underwriting program (referred to as the "SNAP program"), under
which the borrower's credit score as reported by various reporting agencies and the LTV of the loan are used to determine
whether the borrower qualifies for the loan requested and the appropriate pricing for that loan. Loans under this program are
converted to "traditional" underwriting credit scores for reporting purposes.

"Traditional" Underwriting Program. The Company assigns a credit grade (A, A-, B, C, C- and D) to each loan it originates depending on
the risk profile of the loan, with the higher credit grades exhibiting a lower risk profile and the lower credit grades exhibiting increasingly
higher risk profiles. The retail loan office network also uses the letter grades of A+, B+ and C+ to further differentiate credit characteristics of
the mortgage loan. Generally, the higher credit grade loans have higher loan-to-value ratios and carry a lower interest rate. The following chart
generally outlines certain parameters of the credit grades of the Company's traditional underwriting program at September 15, 2001:
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A+
"A" Credit

Grade

"A-" Credit

Grade
B+

"B" Credit

Grade
C+

"C" Credit

Grade

"C-" Credit

Grade

"D" Credit

Grade

General

Repayment

Generally

excellent pay

history.

Has good

credit.

Has good credit

but might have

some minor

delinquency.

Generally good

mortgage pay

history but may

have marginal

consumer credit

history.

Generally good

mortgage pay

history but may

have marginal

consumer credit

history.

Marginal credit

history which is

offset by other

positive

attributes.

Marginal credit

history which is

offset by other

positive

attributes.

Marginal credit

history not

offset by other

positive

attributes.

Designed to

provide a

borrower with

poor credit

history an

opportunity to

correct past

credit

problems.

Existing

Mortgage Loans

No lates in past

36 months.

Maximum of

one 30-day

late* in past 12

months.

No more than

59 days late at

closing and a

maximum of

two 30-day

lates in the past

12 months.

Maximum of

three 30-day

lates in the past

12 months;

currently not

more than 3x30

at loan closing.

No more than

89 days late at

closing and a

maximum of

four 30-day

lates in the past

12 months or

one 60-day late

and two 30-day

lates.

Can have

multiple 30-day

lates and two

60-day lates in

past twelve

months; not

currently not

more than 2x60

at loan closing.

Can have

multiple 30-day

lates and

twelve 60-day

lates or one

90-day late in

the past 12

months;

currently not

more than 119

days late at

closing.

No more than

149 days

delinquent in

the past 12

months. Can

have multiple

90-day lates or

one 120 day

late in the past

12 months.

Greater than

150 days

delinquent in

the past 12

months.

Consumer

Credit

No lates in past

36 months.

Consumer

credit is good

in the last 12

months. Up to

25% of credit

Consumer

credit is good

in the last 12

months. Up to

35% of credit

Must have

letter of

explanation on

all mortgage

lates greater

Consumer

credit must be

satisfactory in

the last 12

months. Up to

Must have

letter of

explanation on

all mortgage

lates greater

Consumer

credit is fair in

the last 12

months. The

majority of the

Consumer

credit is poor in

the last 12

months with

currently

Consumer

credit is poor in

the last 12

months. The

majority of the
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report items

derogatory with

no 60-day or

more lates.

Generally,

requires a

minimum credit

score of 600.

report items

derogatory with

no 90-day or

more lates.

Generally,

requires a

minimum credit

score of 580.

than 30 days

and on all

major

consumer

derogatory

notations last

24 months.

40% of credit

report items

derogatory.

Generally,

requires a

minimum credit

score of 560.

than 30 days

and on all

major

consumer

derogatory

notations last

24 months.

credit is not

currently

delinquent. Up

to 50% of

credit report

items

derogatory.

Generally,

requires a

minimum credit

score of 530.

delinquent

accounts. Up to

60% of credit

report items

derogatory.

Generally,

requires a

minimum credit

score of 500.

credit is

derogatory

(more than

60%).

Percentage of

derogatory

items not a

factor.

Generally,

requires a

minimum credit

score of 500.

Bankruptcy
No bankruptcy

last 5 years.

2 years since

discharge or

dismissal with

reestablished

"A" credit.

2 years since

discharge or

dismissal with

reestablished

"A-" credit.

Discharged a

minimum of 2

years prior to

loan closing.

1 year since

discharge with

reestablished

"B" credit or 18

months since

discharge

without

reestablished

credit.

Discharged a

minimum 1

year prior to

loan closing.

Bankruptcy

filing 12

months old,

discharged or

dismissed prior

to application.

Bankruptcy

filed within last

12 months and

discharged or

dismissed prior

to application.

Current

bankruptcy

must be paid

through loan.

Debt Service-to-

Income Ratio

Generally not

to exceed 45%.

Generally not

to exceed 45%.

Generally not

to exceed 45%.

Generally not

to exceed 50%.

Generally not

to exceed 50%.

Generally not

to exceed 50%.

Generally not

to exceed 50%.

Generally not

to exceed 50%.

Generally not

to exceed 50%.
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Maximum Loan-to-

Value Ratio:

Owner Occupied

Generally 90%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 90%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 90%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 85%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 80%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 75%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 75%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 70%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally

65% for a

1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Non-Owner

Occupied

Generally 80%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 80%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 75%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 75%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 70%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 65%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 65%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally 65%

for a 1 to 4

family

dwelling.

Generally

60% for a

1 to 4

family

dwelling.

*

A "rolling" 30-day late in which a borrower becomes 30 days delinquent and makes subsequent mortgage payments but remains consistently 30 days delinquent is

considered one 30-day late for underwriting purposes.

"SNAP" Underwriting Program. The SNAP program was developed by the Company to enhance its ability to risk-base price its loan
products, to increase uniformity of creditworthiness within each credit "band" and to reduce subjectivity and simplify the underwriting process
in order to improve efficiency and service levels to its customers.
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The SNAP program uses the credit score (as defined below) of the primary borrower (i.e., the borrower with the majority of total income) to
determine program eligibility and then to determine the maximum LTV and interest rate for which the borrower may qualify. The minimum
acceptable credit score under the SNAP program is 500.

In most cases, the payment history of the borrower under the existing mortgage loan is also taken into consideration. Borrowers with lower
credit scores generally qualify for lower maximum LTVs and are charged higher interest rates than borrowers with higher credit scores.
"Credit Scores" are discussed below.

Under the SNAP program, a verification of the borrower's mortgage payment history under his existing mortgage loan over the most recent
12 months is required in all cases where the primary borrower's credit score is less than 600 (or less than 640 if the loan amount is less than
$100,000). The maximum LTV allowed and the interest rate for the loan indicated by the SNAP program may be adjusted based on the
borrower's past mortgage payment history. Under the SNAP program, a poor mortgage payment history will result in a lower maximum LTV
and a higher interest rate (comparable to the maximum LTV and interest rate for a borrower with a lower credit score) in order to reflect the
increased risk of default indicated by the mortgage payment history. The LTV and credit score adjustments are set forth in the chart below.

Adjusted Credit Score and Maximum LTV

Based Upon Mortgage Lates in Previous Months

Actual Credit

Score
2x30

4x30 and 0x60;

2x30 and 1x60

12x30 and 2x60;

12x30 and 1x90
12x60 and 1x120 1x150

700+ 600 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
680 600 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
660 600 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
640 600 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
620 600 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
600 600 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
580 580 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
560 560 560; 80%max LTV 550; 75%max LTV 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
540 540 540 540 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
520 520 520 520 520; 70%max LTV 500; 65%max LTV
500 500 500 500 500 500
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For example, under the SNAP program, in the case of a borrower with a credit score of 640 who has had not more than one 30-day late
payment on his existing mortgage loan during the previous 12 months (i.e., 1x30) and who otherwise qualifies for a maximum LTV of 90%,
the borrower's actual credit score of 640 would be used for purposes of qualifying for the loan and determining the applicable interest rate and
the 90% maximum LTV allowed would not be adjusted downward. However, under the SNAP program, if the borrower with the 640 credit
score had two 30-day late payments in the previous 12 months (i.e., 2x30), the credit score used for purposes of qualifying and determining
pricing, would fall to 600�and the maximum LTV allowed would be 80%. In addition, the interest rate for that loan would be determined as if
the borrower's credit score were 600 (instead of the actual credit score of 640). If that same borrower had a mortgage delinquency of 2x30 and
1x60 or 4x30 and 0x60 during the previous 12 months, then the maximum LTV allowed would be 80% and the loan would be priced as if the
credit score was 560. If that borrower had a mortgage delinquency of 12x30 and 2x60 or 12x30 and 1x60 and 1x90 for the previous
12 months, then the maximum LTV falls to 75% and the loan would be priced as if the credit score was 550. If that borrower had a mortgage
delinquency of 12x90, or 12x60 and 1x90 and 1x120 for the previous 12 months, then the maximum LTV decreases to 70% and the credit
score used for pricing falls to 520. If that borrower had a mortgage delinquency of 1x150 or more for the previous 12 months, then the
maximum LTV falls to 65% and the loan would be priced as if the credit score were 500.

Credit Scores. "Credit scores" are obtained by many lenders in connection with mortgage loan applications to help assess a borrower's
creditworthiness. Credit scores are obtained from credit reports provided by various credit reporting organizations, each of which may employ
differing computer models and methodologies. The credit score is designed to assess a borrower's credit history at a single point, using
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objective information currently on file for the borrower at a particular credit reporting organization. Information utilized to create a credit
score may include, among other things, payment history, delinquencies on accounts, level of outstanding indebtedness, length of credit
history, types of credit, and bankruptcy experience. Credit scores range from approximately 400 to approximately 800, with higher scores
indicating an individual with a more favorable credit history compared to an individual with a lower score. However, a credit score purports
only to be a measurement of the relative degree of risk a borrower represents to a lender, that is, a borrower with a higher score is statistically
expected to be less likely to default in payment than a borrower with a lower score. In addition, it should be noted that credit scores were
developed to indicate a level of default probability over a two-year period, which does not correspond to the life of a mortgage loan.
Furthermore, credit scores were not developed specifically for use in connection with mortgage loans, but for consumer loans in general, and
assess only the borrower's past credit history. Therefore, a credit score does not take into consideration the differences between mortgage
loans and consumer loans generally or the specific characteristics of the related mortgage loan including, for example, the LTV or CLTV, the
collateral for the mortgage loan, or the debt to income ratio. There can be no assurance that the credit scores of the mortgagors will be an
accurate predictor of the likelihood of repayment of the related mortgage loans.

The tables on the following page present certain information about the Company's loan production through its retail, broker and
correspondent channels during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999:
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LOAN ORIGINATIONS AND PURCHASES DURING THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Traditional Underwriting Program and "SNAP" Underwriting Program

Credit Grade(2)
Dollar Amount

of Loan

% of

Total

Weighted

Average

Combined

Loan-to-value

Weighted Average

Interest Rate(1)

A $ 888,272,000 38% 78% 9.5%
A- 552,268,000 23 78 10.0
B 553,131,000 23 76 10.6
C 274,589,000 12 74 11.7
C- 57,389,000 2 71 12.7
D 45,981,000 2 65 13.1

Total $ 2,371,630,000 100% 77% 10.3%

LOAN ORIGINATIONS AND PURCHASES DURING THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000

Traditional Underwriting Program and "SNAP" Underwriting Program

Credit Grade(2)
Dollar Amount

of Loan

% of

Total

Weighted

Combined

Loan-to-Value

Weighted Average

Interest Rate(1)

A $ 772,434,000 38% 79% 9.6%
A- 499,408,000 24 77 9.8
B 508,467,000 24 76 10.4
C 197,119,000 9 63 11.5
C- 43,310,000 2 68 12.6
D 58,562,000 3 61 13.8
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Total $ 2,079,300,000 100% 76% 10.2%

LOAN ORIGINATIONS AND PURCHASES DURING THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Traditional Underwriting Program Only

Credit Grade
Dollar Amount

of Loan

% of

Total

Weighted

Combined

Loan-to-value

Weighted Average

Interest Rate(1)

A $ 707,608,000 32% 79% 9.1%
A- 729,237,000 33 77 9.4
B 475,370,000 22 75 10.1
C 119,730,000 5 68 11.1
C- 37,990,000 2 65 12.3
D 123,665,000 6 62 12.9

Total $ 2,193,600,000 100% 75% 9.8%

(1)
Calculated with respect to the interest rate at the time the loan is originated or purchased by the Company, as applicable.

(2)
Loans underwritten under the "SNAP" underwriting program are assigned a credit grade that the Company believes correlates to the
credit grades in the "Traditional" underwriting program.
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Quality Control. The Company's quality control program is intended to (i) monitor and improve the overall quality of loan production
generated by the Company's retail loan channel and independent mortgage broker channel and (ii) identify and communicate to management
existing or potential underwriting and loan packaging problems or areas of concern. The quality control file review examines compliance with
the Company's underwriting guidelines and federal and state regulations. This is accomplished by focusing on: (i) the accuracy of all credit
and legal information; (ii) a collateral analysis which may include a desk or field re-appraisal of the property and review of the original
appraisal; (iii) employment and/or income verification; and (iv) legal document review to ensure that the necessary documents are in place.

Loan Disposition

As a fundamental part of its business and financing strategy, the Company sells loans to third party investors in the secondary markets as
market conditions allow. The Company generally seeks to dispose of substantially all of its production within 90 days. The Company applies
the net proceeds of the loan dispositions, whether through securitizations or whole loan sales, to pay down its warehouse and repurchase
facilities in order to make these facilities available for future funding of mortgage loans. The Company maximizes opportunities in its loan
disposition transactions by selling its loan production through a combination of securitizations and whole loan sales, depending on market
conditions, relative profitability and cash flows. The Company generally realizes higher gain on sale on securitization than it does on whole
loan sales for cash. The higher gain on sale in securitization transactions is attributable to the excess servicing spread and mortgage servicing
rights associated with retaining a residual interest and the servicing on the mortgage loans in the securitization, respectively, net of
transactional costs. In whole loan sales with servicing released, the gain on sale is generally lower than gains realized in securitizations, but
the Company receives the gain in the form of cash.
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However, in a securitization the underlying securities are generally over-collateralized by the Company depositing a combination of
mortgage loans with a principal balance exceeding the principal balance of the securities, and cash into the securitization, which requires an
initial period of cash outflow. The upfront over-collateralization and servicing advance obligations required on retaining the servicing in
securitizations are generally cash flow negative to the Company in the early years of the securitization. These negative cash flow
considerations along with conditions in the securitization market precluded the Company from securitizing mortgage loans in the second half
of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. The Residual Facility, entered into by the Company on August 31, 2000, strengthened the Company's
ability to include securitizations in its loan disposition strategy by reducing the negative cash flow aspects of securitization and by providing
another source of cash to the Company through periodic sales of residual interests for cash. The Company completed a securitization and sold
for cash its residual interest through the Residual Facility in each of the four quarters during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. The initial
capacity of the Residual Facility was $75.0 million and at June 30, 2001, the remaining capacity under the Residual Facility was
$29.9 million.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Company's securitizations and whole loan sales during the periods
presented (in thousands):

Year ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Loans pooled and sold in securitizations $ 1,231,464 $ 803,557 $ 649,999
Whole loan sales 1,102,465 1,419,199 1,236,050

Total loans securitized and sold $ 2,333,929 $ 2,222,756 $ 1,886,049

Each agreement that the Company has entered into in connection with its securitizations requires either the overcollateralization of the trust
or the establishment of a reserve account that may initially
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be funded by cash deposited by the Company. If delinquencies or losses exceed certain established limits, as applicable, the credit-
enhancement aspects of the trust are triggered. In a securitization credit-enhanced by a monoline insurance policy, any further losses
experienced in excess of the established overcollateralization amount by holders of the senior interests in the related trust will be paid under
such policy. To date, there have been no claims on any monoline insurance policy obtained in any of the Company's securitizations. In a
senior/subordinated structure, losses in excess of the overcollateralization amount generally are allocated first to the holders of the
subordinated interests and then to the holders of the senior interests of the trust. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Liquidity and Capital Resources�The Securitization and Sale of Mortgage Loans."

Loan Servicing

The Company's servicing portfolio consists mainly of mortgage loans securitized prior to the year ended June 30, 2001 for which the
Company retained servicing, and to a lesser extent, loans subserviced for others on an interim basis and loans held for sale. Servicing includes
collecting and remitting loan payments, accounting for principal and interest, contacting delinquent borrowers, managing borrower defaults
and liquidating foreclosed properties. It is the Company's strategy to maximize opportunities in loan servicing. As a means to maximize
profitability and cash flow from securitizations, the Company has sold the servicing rights in securitizations during the year ended June 30,
2001 for cash. Moreover, the Company generally does not retain servicing on loans it sells in whole loan sales for cash.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Company's servicing portfolio for the periods indicated:

Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999
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(in thousands)

Servicing portfolio (period end) $ 2,717,000(1) $ 3,560,000(2) $ 3,841,000(3)
Serviced in-house 2,533,000 3,296,000 3,428,000
Percentage serviced in-house 93.2% 92.6% 89.2%
Loan service revenue 14,990 15,654 23,329

(1)
Includes $334.5 million of loans subserviced for others on an interim basis and approximately $184.0 million of loans subserviced by
others.

(2)
Includes $280.2 million of loans subserviced for others on an interim basis and approximately $264.0 million of loans subserviced by
others.

(3)
Includes $84.0 million of loans subserviced for others on an interim basis and approximately $413.0 million of loans subserviced by
others.

The Company has generally not added any new loans to the servicing portfolio (excluding loan subserviced on an interim basis) since
January 1, 2000 due to the Company's sale of all of its mortgage loan production in whole loan sales for cash and securitizations with
servicing released since that time. The Company's loan servicing portfolio at June 30, 2001 decreased $843.0 million, or 23.7% to $2.7 billion
from $3.6 billion reported at June 30, 2000, reflecting loan servicing portfolio runoff, in the form of principal amortization, prepayments and
liquidations, during the year ended June 30, 2001.

Moreover, subsequent to June 30, 2001, the Company transferred to the purchasers or their designated servicers approximately
$334.5 million of loans, which represented loans sold in whole loan sales during the June 2001 quarter and in the June 2001 securitization but
subserviced by the Company at June 30, 2001 on an interim basis. The Company's servicing portfolio will continue to be impacted in
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the future by the Company's dispositions of its loan production through whole loan sales and securitizations on a servicing released basis,
which has resulted in a smaller servicing portfolio. See "Risk Factors." In general, the Company's loan servicing portfolio may be adversely
affected by lower mortgage interest rates which could accelerate prepayment activity.

The following table illustrates the mix of credit grades in the Company's servicing portfolio as of June 30, 2001 (dollars in thousands):

Credit Grade(1)
Dollar Amount

of Loan

% of

Total

Weighted

Average

Combined

Initial

Loan-to-Value

Weighted Average

Interest Rate

A $ 735,324 27% 78% 9.2%
A- 910,540 34 76% 9.7%
B 602,368 22 74% 10.3%
C 233,071 8 70% 11.3%
C- 70,688 3 66% 12.1%
D 153,126 6 62% 13.0%
Other(2) 11,883 0 66% 10.3%
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Total $ 2,717,000 100% 75% 10.1%

(1)
Loans underwritten under the "SNAP" Underwriting Program are assigned, for loan servicing purposes, a credit grade that the Company
believes correlates to the credit grades in the "Traditional" underwriting program.

(2)
Consists of older loans that were not assigned a credit grade at origination.

At June 30, 2001, of the Company's $2.7 billion servicing portfolio, 93.2% was serviced in-house compared to 92.6% of the Company's
$3.6 billion servicing portfolio serviced in-house at June 30, 2000 and 89.2% of the Company's $3.8 billion servicing portfolio at June 30,
1999. The out-sourced servicing resulted from an arrangement with a loan servicing company entered into in fiscal 1999 whereby the
servicing company purchased certain cumulative advances and agreed to make future servicing advances with respect to an aggregate of
$388.0 million ($184.0 million at June 30, 2001) in principal amount of loans.

The agreements between the Company and the real estate mortgage investment conduit ("REMIC") or owner trusts established in
connection with securitizations typically require the Company, in its role as servicer, to advance interest (but not principal) on delinquent
loans to the holders of the senior interests in the related trusts. The agreements also require the Company to make certain servicing advances
(e.g., for property taxes or hazard insurance) unless the Company determines that such advances would not be recoverable. Realized losses on
the loans are paid out of the related credit loss estimates established by the Company at the time of securitization or paid out of principal and
interest payments or overcollateralized amounts as applicable, and if necessary, from the related monoline insurance policy or the
subordinated interests.

In the case of securitizations credit-enhanced by monoline insurance, the agreements also typically provide that the Company may be
terminated as servicer by the monoline insurance company (or by the trustee with the consent of the monoline insurance company) upon
certain events of default, including the Company's failure to perform its obligations under the servicing agreement, the rate of over 90-day
delinquency (including properties acquired by foreclosure and not sold) exceeding specified limits, losses on liquidation of collateral
exceeding certain limits, any payment being made by the monoline insurance company under its policy, and certain events of bankruptcy or
insolvency. At June 30, 2001, the dollar volume of loans delinquent more than 90 days in ten of the Company's
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twenty-six REMIC trusts exceeded the permitted limit in the related pooling and servicing agreements. All of the aforementioned REMIC
trusts plus six additional REMIC trusts have also exceeded certain loss limits. At June 30, 2001, the remaining principal balance of mortgage
loans in the securitization trusts which exceeded the permitted delinquency limit was $712.5 million, or 26.2% of the servicing portfolio. At
June 30, 2001, the remaining principal balance of mortgage loans in the securitization trusts where certain loss limits have been exceeded was
$1.5 billion, or 53.8% of the servicing portfolio. In addition, under the Company's 1999 Securitization Trusts, the Company is appointed as a
servicer on a term-to-term basis, and the monoline insurer has the right not to renew the term at any time. None of the servicing rights of the
Company have been terminated. Pursuant to agreements relating to the Company's two 1999 securitization trusts, the monoline insurance
company providing credit enhancement requires the Company to maintain a specified net worth and level of liquidity in order to be able to
continue to service the loans in the trusts. Due to the $33.2 million net loss for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, the Company currently does
not satisfy the net worth test, and as a result, the monoline insurer can terminate the Company as servicer. The monoline insurer has to date
waived the Company's failure to satisfy the net worth test. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations�Risk Factors�Our right to service loans may be terminated because of the high delinquencies and losses on the loans in
our servicing portfolio." In the case of the Company's senior/subordinated securitization transactions, holders of 51% of the certificates may
terminate the servicer upon certain events of default generally relating to certain levels of loss experience, but not delinquency rates. No such
events of default have occurred to date in the Company's senior/subordinated securitizations.
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The Company receives a servicing fee based on a percentage of the declining principal balance of each loan serviced. Servicing fees are
collected by the Company out of the borrower's monthly payments. In addition, the Company, as servicer, generally receives all late fees and
assumption charges paid by the borrower on loans serviced directly by the Company, as well as other miscellaneous fees for performing
various loan servicing functions. The Company also generally receives any prepayment fees paid by borrowers. Under arrangements entered
into in fiscal 2000 and 1999 with an investment bank to reduce the Company's servicing advances, the Company's right to receive fees,
charges and prepayment fees collected on loans in its securitization trusts has been subordinated to the right of the investment bank to such
fees to repay advances previously made to those trusts. Under the Company's December 1999 Securitization Trusts, the Company's right to
receive any prepayment penalties collected on loans in the trust has been subordinated to the right to such prepayment penalties as payment to
trust as additional overcollateralization.

Collections, Delinquencies and Foreclosures

The Company sends borrowers a monthly billing statement approximately ten days prior to the monthly payment due date. Although
borrowers generally make loan payments within ten to fifteen days after the due date (the "grace period"), if a borrower fails to pay the
monthly payment within the grace period, the Company commences collection efforts by notifying the borrower of the delinquency. In the
case of borrowers in the "B," "C," "C-" and "D" credit grades, collection efforts begin immediately after the due date. The Company continues
contact with the borrower to determine the cause of the delinquency and to obtain a commitment to cure the delinquency at the earliest
possible time.

As a general matter, if efforts to obtain payment have not been successful, a pre-foreclosure notice will be sent to the borrower immediately
after the due date of the next subsequently scheduled installment (five days after the initial due date for "C-" and "D" credit grades), providing
30 days' notice of impending foreclosure action. During the 30-day notice period, collection efforts continue and the Company evaluates
various legal options and remedies to protect the value of the loan, including arranging for extended prepayment terms, accepting a deed-in-
lieu of foreclosure, entering into a short
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sale (a sale for less than the outstanding principal amount) or commencing foreclosure proceedings. If no substantial progress has been made
in collecting delinquent payments from the borrower, foreclosure proceedings will begin. Generally, the Company will have commenced
foreclosure proceedings when a loan is 45 to 100 days delinquent, depending upon credit grade, other credit considerations or borrower
bankruptcy status.

Servicing and collection practices change over time in accordance with, among other things, the Company's business judgment, changes in
portfolio performance and applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has historically experienced delinquency rates that are higher than those prevailing in its industry due to its origination of
lower credit grade loans. The delinquency rate at June 30, 2001 was 13.0% compared to 13.6% at June 30, 2000. However, as the Company
has not added new loans to the servicing portfolio since January 1, 2000 except for loans held for sale and loans subserviced on an interim
basis, the seasoning of the portfolio without the addition of new loans might cause delinquency rates to rise.

Loans originated or purchased by the Company are secured by mortgages, deeds of trust, security deeds or deeds to secure debt, depending
upon the prevailing practice in the state in which the property securing the loan is located. Depending on local law, foreclosure is effected by
judicial action or nonjudicial sale, and is subject to various notice and filing requirements. In general, the borrower, or any person having a
junior encumbrance on the real estate, may cure a monetary default by paying the entire amount in arrears plus other designated costs and
expenses incurred in enforcing the obligation during a statutorily prescribed reinstatement period. Generally, state law controls the amount of
foreclosure expenses and costs, including attorneys' fees, which may be recovered by a lender, the minimum time required to foreclose and the
reinstatement or redemption rights of the borrower.

Although foreclosure sales are typically public sales, frequently no third-party purchaser bids in excess of the lender's lien because of the
difficulty of determining the exact status of title to the property, the possible deterioration of the property during the foreclosure proceedings
and a requirement that the purchaser pay for the property in cash or by cashier's check. Thus, the Company often purchases the property from
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the trustee or referee through a credit bid in an amount up to the principal amount outstanding under the loan, accrued and unpaid interest,
servicing advances and the expenses of foreclosure. Depending upon market conditions, the ultimate proceeds of the sale may not equal the
Company's investment in the property.

As an alternative to foreclosure, the Company may, under limited circumstances, arrange for a special repayment arrangement, forestall
foreclosure to enable a borrower to sell the mortgaged property or accept the payoff of less than the full principal balance and accrued interest
owing on a mortgage loan. The Company believes that such loss mitigation efforts reduce overall losses in loan liquidations. However, the
loss on such mitigation efforts is realized earlier in the life of the mortgage loan.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, losses on loan liquidations decreased to $91.8 million from $96.1 million in the prior year,
primarily due to the decrease in the size of the Company's loan servicing portfolio. In addition, if the Company's loan servicing portfolio
continues to decrease in size, the percentage of annualized losses to the average servicing portfolio could increase.

Credit losses incurred by the Company on liquidations were disproportionately higher for correspondent loans purchased in bulk than
experienced upon liquidations of loans originated in the Company's traditional retail and broker production channels. During the year ended
June 30, 2001, approximately 41.8% of losses on liquidation were from losses on disposition of real estate collateral for bulk purchased
correspondent loans. In turn, bulk purchased correspondent loans comprised approximately 24.5% of the Company's servicing portfolios when
measured at July 1, 2000. The seasoning of the bulk purchased portfolio may continue to contribute disproportionately losses during
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the current fiscal year. Further, current market conditions and increased regulation of subprime mortgage lending have resulted in the
tightening in underwriting guidelines in the secondary market and the exit of several large subprime home equity lenders from the
marketplace. These factors have had the effect of decreasing the availability of credit to delinquent lower credit grade borrowers who in the
past had avoided default by refinancing. Management believes that continuance of these factors will contribute to the Company's losses on
loan liquidations during the current fiscal year.

Because foreclosures and losses typically occur months or years after a loan is originated, data relating to delinquencies, foreclosures and
losses as a percentage of the current portfolio can understate the risk of future delinquencies, losses or foreclosures.

The following table sets forth delinquency, foreclosure and loss information relating to the Company's servicing portfolio as of or for the
periods indicated:

At or During the Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999

(dollars in thousands)

Percentage of dollar amount of delinquent loans to loans serviced
(period end)(1)(2)(3)(4)

One Month 1.7% 1.9% 2.4%
Two Months 0.7 0.8 1.0
Three or More Months

Not foreclosed(5) 8.9 9.0 10.3
Foreclosed(6) 1.7 1.9 2.0

Total 13.0% 13.6% 15.7%

Percentage of dollar amount of loans foreclosed during the period
to servicing portfolio(4)(8)

3.0% 3.6% 2.9%

Number of loans foreclosed during the period 1,238 1,854 1,680
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Principal amount of foreclosed loans during the period $ 89,884 $ 135,629 $ 122,445
Number of loans liquidated during the period 2,479 2,749 1,518
Net losses on liquidations during the period(7) $ 91,754 $ 96,119 $ 51,730
Percentage of annualized losses to servicing portfolio(4)(8) 3.0% 2.6% 1.2%
Servicing portfolio at period end $ 2,717,000 $ 3,560,000 $ 3,841,000
(1)

Delinquent loans are loans for which more than one payment is past due.

(2)

The delinquency and foreclosure percentages are calculated on the basis of the total dollar amount of mortgage loans serviced by the Company and any subservicers as of

the end of the periods indicated.

(3)

At June 30, 2001, the dollar volume of loans delinquent more than 90 days in ten of the Company's twenty-six REMIC trust exceeded the permitted limit in the related

pooling and servicing agreements. All of the aforementioned REMIC trusts plus six additional REMIC trusts have also exceeded certain loss limits. At June 30, 2001, the

remaining principal balance of mortgage loans in the securitization trusts which exceeded the permitted delinquency limit was $712.5 million, or 26.2% of the servicing

portfolio. At June 30, 2001, the remaining principal balance of mortgage loans in the securitization trusts where certain loss limits have been exceeded was $1.5 billion, or

53.8% of the servicing portfolio.

(4)

The servicing portfolio used in percentage calculations includes loans subserviced for others by the Company on an interim basis of $334.5 million, $280.2 million and

$84.0 million at June 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

(5)

Represents loans which are in foreclosure but as to which foreclosure proceedings have not concluded.

(6)

Represents properties acquired following a foreclosure sale and still serviced by the Company at period end.

(7)

Represents losses, net of gains, on properties sold through foreclosure or other default management activities during the periods indicated.

(8)

The percentages were calculated to reflect the dollar volume of loans foreclosed or annualized losses, as the case may be, to the average dollar amount of mortgage loans

serviced by the Company and any subservicer's during the related periods indicated.
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Competition

The Company faces intense competition in the business of originating, purchasing and selling mortgage loans. The Company's competitors
in the industry include consumer finance companies, mortgage banking companies, investment banks, commercial banks, credit unions, thrift
institutions, credit card issuers and insurance companies. Many of these competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater
financial, technical and marketing resources than the Company. In addition, the current level of gains realized by the Company and its
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competitors on the sale of non-conforming loans could attract additional competitors into this market. Competition among industry
participants can take many forms, including convenience in obtaining a loan, customer service, marketing and distribution channels, amount
and term of the loan, loan origination fees and interest rates. Additional competition may lower the rates the Company can charge borrowers
and increase the price paid for purchased loans, thereby potentially lowering gain on future loan sales and securitizations. To the extent any of
these competitors significantly expand their activities in the Company's market, the Company could be materially adversely affected.
Fluctuations in interest rates and general economic conditions may also affect competition. During periods of rising rates, competitors that
have locked in lower rates to potential borrowers may have a competitive advantage. During periods of declining rates, competitors may
solicit the Company's customers with loans in its servicing portfolio to refinance their loans.

The Company believes its competitive strengths include: (i) emphasizing customer service to attract borrowers; (ii) providing a high level of
service to brokers and their customers; (iii) offering competitive loan programs for borrowers whose needs are not met by conventional
mortgage lenders; (iv) providing convenience to the customer through the Company's nationwide network of retail and broker offices and the
Internet; and (v) emphasizing customer service in its loan servicing division.

Regulation

The Company's operations are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and licensing by federal, state and local governmental authorities
and are subject to various laws and judicial and administrative decisions imposing requirements and restrictions on part or all of its operations.
The Company's consumer lending activities are subject to the Federal Truth-in-Lending Act and Regulation Z (including the Home Ownership
and Equity Protection Act of 1994), the Federal Equal Credit Opportunity Act, as amended, and Regulation B, the Fair Credit Reporting Act
of 1970, as amended, the Federal Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act ("RESPA") and Regulation X, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act,
the Federal Debt Collection Practices Act and the National Housing Act of 1934, as well as other federal and state statutes and regulations
affecting the Company's activities. The Company is also subject to the rules and regulations of, and examinations by, state regulatory
authorities with respect to originating, processing, underwriting, selling, securitizing and servicing loans. These rules and regulations, among
other things, impose licensing obligations on the Company, establish eligibility criteria for mortgage loans, prohibit discrimination, govern
inspections and appraisals of properties and credit reports on loan applicants, regulate assessment, collection, foreclosure and claims handling,
investment and interest payments on escrow balances and payment features, mandate certain disclosures and notices to borrowers and, in some
cases, fix maximum interest rates, fees and mortgage loan amounts.

A significant portion of the Company's mortgage loans in its servicing portfolio are so-called "high cost mortgage loans" where the
borrower is charged points and fees or interest rates above certain levels because of higher credit risk. Such high cost mortgage loans are
subject to special disclosure requirements and certain substantive prohibitions under the Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act of 1994
and regulations thereunder, and certain state laws. The federal regulations governing high cost mortgage loans establish guidelines for
determination of whether an individual loan is a high cost mortgage loan. Such guidelines may be interpreted differently by different lenders.
Federal regulations
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on high cost mortgage loans make assignees of such mortgage loans liable for violations of the regulations. As a result of the increased
regulation and scrutiny of high cost mortgage loans, the Company no longer originates high cost mortgage loans. In addition, there has been
recent class action litigation and regulatory actions by certain state agencies against lenders for violations of high cost mortgage regulations.
The Company has not to date been subject to any material class action litigation or regulatory action for violations of such high cost mortgage
regulations.

For a significant portion of the Company's mortgage loan production through its broker channel, the broker is paid a broker's fee by the
borrower and also receives a form of compensation from the Company generally known as a "yield spread premium." There has been recent
class action litigation against lenders, including two putative class action cases against the Company, alleging that the payment of a yield
spread premium constitutes an illegal kickback or referral under RESPA. See "Item 3. Legal Proceedings."
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Failure to comply with these requirements can lead to loss of approved status, certain rights of rescission for mortgage loans, individual and
class action lawsuits and administrative enforcement action. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations�Risk Factors�If We are Unable to Comply with Mortgage Banking Rules and Regulations, Our Ability to Make
Mortgage Loans May be Restricted."

In the course of its business, the Company may acquire properties as a result of foreclosure. There is a risk that hazardous or toxic waste
could be found on such properties. In such event, the Company could be held responsible for the cost of cleaning up or removing such waste,
and such cost could exceed the value of the underlying properties.

The Company is also subject to various other federal and state laws regulating the issuance and sale of securities, relationships with entities
regulated by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and other aspects of its business.

Employees

At June 30, 2001, the Company employed 1,500 persons. The Company has satisfactory relations with its employees.

Item 2. Properties

The executive and administrative offices of the Company are located at 350 S. Grand Avenue, Los Angeles, California, and consist of
approximately 178,000 square feet of which approximately 44,800 square feet are sublet. The Company is attempting to sublet additional
space in these premises. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Results of
Operations�Fiscal Years 2001, 2000 and 1999�Expenses." The lease and the sublease on these premises extends through February 2012. The
Company also leases approximately 39,000 square feet of office space at its former headquarters location at 3731 Wilshire Boulevard, Los
Angeles, California. This space is used for retail telemarketing and Internet production related operations. This lease expires in
December 2008. The administrative offices of the Company's Irvine office are located at 3347 Michelson Drive, Irvine, California, and consist
of approximately 47,000 square feet. The lease on these premises extends through July 31, 2003.

The Company also leases space for its traditional retail branch and broker regional offices. These facilities aggregate approximately
271,000 square feet and are leased under terms which vary as to duration. In general, the leases expire between 2001 and 2006, and provide
for rent escalations tied to either increases in the lessor's operating expenses or fluctuations in the consumer price index in the relevant
geographical area.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in Fowler et. al. v. Aames Financial Corporation and Aames Funding
Corporation, a putative class action filed on approximately May 11, 2001, in U.S. District Court of California, case 2:01cv04330. Plaintiff, a
former loan executive, filed this putative class action on behalf of himself and current and former loan executives employed by the Company,
and seeks certification of class, damages consisting of alleged unpaid overtime, statutory liquidated damages and waiting time penalties,
attorneys' fees and costs, restitution, disgorgement of profits and injunctive relief. Plaintiff alleges that during his employment, he and other
loan executives worked in excess of 8 hours per day or 40 hours per week, and he contends that the Company willfully failed to pay overtime
in violation of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act and, with respect to loan executives employed in California, in violation of the California
Labor Code and Business & Professional Code §17200, et seq. Aames filed an answer denying the claims and asserting various affirmative
defenses on September 4, 2001. No trial date has been set.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in Alvarez et. al. v. American General Finance, et. al (including One Stop
Mortgage, Inc., Aames Funding Corp., d/b/a/ Aames Home Loan), a putative class action filed on approximately July 20, 2001, in U.S.
District Court, Northern District, Eastern Div., Illinois, case No. 01C4648. Plaintiff, a former customer, filed this action on behalf of herself
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and all wholesale borrowers who paid a broker's fee and whose brokers also received a form of compensation from the Company generally
known as a "yield spread premium." Plaintiff alleges that such yield spread premium payments constituted kickbacks and/or illegal referrals
under RESPA. The complaint seeks certification of the class, unspecified compensatory and statutory damages, attorneys' fees and costs,
disgorgement of profits and injunctive relief. The Company has been granted an open extension of time to respond, pending plaintiff's
decision on the Company's request that plaintiff submit to arbitration pursuant to the terms of the loan documents. No trial date has been set.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in Aslami et. al. v. Aames Home Loan, Aames Financial Corporation, et. al., a
putative class action filed on approximately April 11, 2000, in Los Angeles County Superior Court, case No. BC228027. Plaintiffs, former
customers, filed this action on behalf of themselves and all persons who applied for or obtained loans from the Company during the preceding
four years. Plaintiffs allege various state law claims premised their contention that the Company routinely "upcharges" third party fees and
underdiscloses annual prepayment rates. On September 19, 2001, Plaintiffs amended their complaint to assert claims based upon the payment
of a yield spread premium to their broker. Plaintiffs contend that such yield spread premium payments constitute kickbacks and/or illegal
referrals under RESPA. Plaintiffs seek certification of the class, damages consisting of fees paid to mortgage brokers, statutory treble
damages, attorneys' fees and costs, restitution, disgorgement of improperly collected charges, punitive damages and injunctive relief. Aames'
response to the amended complaint is due October 19, 2001. Trial has been set for February 26, 2002.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these matters. The Company intends to vigorously defend these actions; however, the
Company believes that an unfavorable outcome of one or more of the above cases could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

The Company becomes involved, from time to time, in a variety of mortgage lending related claims and other matters incidental to its
business in addition to the matters described above. In the opinion of the Company, the resolution of any of these pending incidental matters is
not expected to have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position and results of operations.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 to a vote of the security holders of the Company.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

In November 1995, the Company's common stock began trading under the symbol AAM on the NYSE. As previously reported, the
Company received a notice from the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") that the Company's common stock, par value $0.001 per share
(the "Common Stock") did not meet the requirements for continued listing because the thirty day average trading price of the Common Stock
was below $1.00 per share. After reviewing the Company's stock price performance, as well as other materials, the NYSE notified the
Company that the Common Stock would remain listed until July 2, 2001, at which time the stock price performance would be measured for
compliance with continued listing standards.

On July 2, 2001, the NYSE acknowledged that the Company had met the stock price requirements of continued listing as of July 2, 2001.
The NYSE also informed the Company that the Common Stock would continue to be listed on the NYSE; however, the Common Stock is
subject to a follow-up period during which time the NYSE will continue to monitor the Company and, on November 2, 2001, the NYSE will
again measure the stock price performance as of the thirty trading days ending November 2, 2001. In addition, if at any time before
November 2, 2001, the NYSE determines that the Company has failed to meet any of the continuing listing standards, the NYSE will re-
evaluate the continued listing of the Common Stock at that time and may take action including truncating the normal compliance procedures
and beginning the initiation of suspension procedures. The closing price and the thirty day average closing price of the Common Stock as of
September 26, 2001 was $0.90 and $1.11, respectively.
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There can be no assurance that the thirty trading day average closing price of the Common Stock will remain above $1.00 per share or that
the Common Stock will not be suspended by the NYSE. If the Common Stock were suspended by the NYSE, it would seriously impair the
ability of the holders of the Common Stock to trade their shares.

The following table sets forth the range of high and low sale prices and per share cash dividends declared for the periods indicated.

High Low
Cash

Dividend

Fiscal 2001*
First Quarter $ 3.250 $ 0.500 �

Second Quarter 2.063 0.563 �

Third Quarter 1.940 0.813 �

Fourth Quarter 1.860 1.100 �

Fiscal 2000*
First Quarter $ 9.063 $ 3.750 �

Second Quarter 7.500 3.080 �

Third Quarter 4.688 2.500 �

Fourth Quarter 3.125 0.813 �

*
As reported by Bloomberg

As of September 20, 2001, the Company had 174 stockholders of record. No common share dividends were accrued or paid in the years
ended June 30, 2001 and 2000. The Company accrued and subsequently paid an aggregate of $0.17 per common share in dividends for the
fiscal year ended
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June 30, 1999. The Board of Directors of the Company reviews the Company's dividend policy at least annually in light of the earnings, cash
position and capital needs of the Company, general business conditions and other relevant factors. In November 1998, the Board of Directors
decided to suspend cash dividends on the common stock until the Company's earnings and cash flows improved. Credit agreements generally
limit the Company's ability to pay dividends if such payment would result in an event of default under the agreements or would otherwise
cause a breach of a net worth or liquidity covenants. The Company's Indenture relating to its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2003 prohibits the
payment of dividends if the aggregate amount of such dividends since October 26, 1996 exceeds the sum of (a) 25% of the Company's net
income during that period (minus 100% of any deficit); (b) net cash proceeds from any securities issuances; and (c) proceeds from the sale of
certain investments. The Company's Indenture of Trust relating to its 10.50% Senior Notes due 2002 restricts the payment of dividends to an
amount which does not exceed (i) $2.0 million, plus (ii) 50% of the Company's aggregate net income for each fiscal year after the year ended
June 30, 1994 (minus 100% of net losses for any fiscal year), plus (iii) 100% of the net proceeds received by the Company on offerings of its
equity securities after December 31, 1994. Under the most restrictive of these limitations, the Company will be prohibited from paying cash
dividends on its capital stock for the foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below with respect to the Company for the five years ended June 30, 2001 have been
derived from the audited consolidated financial statements. The selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and other financial information included herein.
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Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue:

Gain on sale of loans $ 73,435 $ 48,098 $ 44,855 $ 120,828 $ 135,421

Valuation (write-down) of residual interests and mortgage servicing

rights
(33,600) (82,490) (194,551) 19,495 (18,950)

Origination fees 47,430 37,951 39,689 34,282 35,616

Loan servicing 14,989 15,654 23,329 10,634 14,096

Interest 86,477 94,569 70,525 81,250 48,348

Total revenue, including valuation (write-down) of residual interests

and mortgage servicing rights
188,731 113,782 (16,153) 266,489 214,531

Total expense 217,366 232,785 261,996 213,683 205,071

Income (loss) before income taxes (28,635) (119,003) (278,149) 52,806 9,460

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,889 3,369 (30,182) 25,243 7,982

Net income (loss) $ (30,524) $ (122,372) $ (247,967) $ 27,563 $ 1,478

Net income (loss) per common share�diluted $ (7.11) $ (21.02) $ (40.31) $ 4.36 $ 0.26

Weighted average number of common Shares outstanding (in

thousands)�diluted
6,251 6,209 6,200 7,150 5,674

Cash dividends paid per common share $ � $ � $ 0.17 $ 0.66 $ 0.65

Cash Flow Data:

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 7,985 $ 107,517 $ (465,016) $ (49,661) $ (280,073)

Cash used in investing activities (5,048) (2,664) (5,229) (5,163) (8,864)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 14,467 (115,438) 478,687 40,244 291,898

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,404 (10,585) 8,442 (14,580) 2,961

Other Data:

Loans originated or purchased:

Broker $ 1,191,079 $ 1,262,900 $ 1,182,100 $ 1,101,200 $ 741,000

Retail 1,180,551 783,700 770,000 636,100 436,900

Correspondent � 32,700 241,500 646,300 1,170,000

Total $ 2,371,630 $ 2,079,300 $ 2,193,600 $ 2,383,600 $ 2,347,900

Loan dispositions:

Whole loans sold $ 1,102,465 $ 1,419,199 $ 1,236,050 $ 416,390 $ 7,500

Loans pooled and sold in securitizations 1,231,464 803,557 649,999 2,034,300 2,262,700

Total $ 2,333,929 $ 2,222,756 $ 1,886,049 $ 2,450,690 $ 2,270,200

Loans serviced at period end $ 2,717,000 $ 3,560,000 $ 3,841,000 $ 4,147,000 $ 3,174,000

Weighted average points on retail loan originations(1) 4.0% 4.7% 4.8% 4.3% 4.9%

Weighted average interest rate(1) 10.3 10.2 9.8 10.1 10.6

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Weighted average initial combined loan-to-value ratio(1)(2):

Retail loans 75 73 72 70 67

Broker network 79 78 76 75 71

Correspondent loans � 81 80 79 71

At period end:

Number of retail branches 100 100 101 103 56

Number of regional broker offices 5 7 35 52 37

National Loan Center 1 1 � � �
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At June 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,583 $ 10,179 $ 20,764 $ 12,322 $ 26,902
Residual interests and mortgage servicing rights 244,383 303,302 353,255 522,632 360,892
Total assets 785,397 790,364 1,021,097 815,187 717,595

10.5% Senior Notes due February 2002 5,750 11,500 17,250 23,000 23,000
9.125% Senior Notes due November 2003 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
5.5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due March
2006

113,970 113,970 113,970 113,990 113,990

Total long-term debt 269,720 275,470 281,220 286,990 286,990
Stockholder's equity 45,885 74,478 145,556 304,051 239,755
(1)

Computed on loans originated or purchased during the fiscal year presented.

(2)
The weighted average initial combined loan-to-value ratio is determined by dividing the sum of all loans secured by the junior or senior
mortgages on the property by the appraised value at origination.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with Item 6. Selected Financial Data and Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.

Special Note Regarding Forward-looking Information

This Report contains statements that constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933. The words "expect," "estimate," "anticipate," "predict," "believe," and similar
expressions and variations thereof are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements appear in a number of places in this
filing and include statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of the Company, its directors or officers with respect to,
among other things (a) market conditions in the securitization, capital, credit and whole loan markets and their future impact on the Company's
operations, (b) trends affecting the Company's liquidity position, including, but not limited to, its access to warehouse, working capital and
other credit facilities and its ability to effect securitizations and whole loan sales, (c) the impact of the various cash savings plans and other
restructuring strategies being considered by the Company, (d) the Company's on-going efforts in improving its equity position, (e) trends
affecting the Company's financial condition and results of operations, and (f) the Company's business and liquidity strategies. The
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stockholders of the Company are cautioned not to put undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements
are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those projected in this
Report, for the reasons, among others, discussed under the captions "Item 1. Business and Risk Factors." Readers should carefully review the
factors referred to above and the other documents the Company files from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q filed by the Company during fiscal 2002 and any current reports on Form 8-K filed by the
Company.
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Certain Accounting Considerations

Accounting for Securitizations. The Company's loan disposition strategy relies on a combination of securitization transactions and whole
loan sales. The following discusses certain accounting considerations which arise only in the context of securitization transactions.

In a securitization, the Company conveys loans that it has originated, and formerly purchased, to a special purpose entity (such as a trust) in
exchange for cash proceeds and a residual interest in the trust. The cash proceeds are raised through an offering of the pass-through certificates
or bonds evidencing the right to receive principal payments and interest on the certificate balance or on the bonds. The non-cash gain on sale
of loans represents the difference between the proceeds (including premiums) from the sale, net of related transaction costs, and the allocated
carrying amount of the loans sold. The allocated carrying amount is determined by allocating the original cost basis of the loans (including
premiums paid on loans purchased) between the portion sold and any retained interests (residual interests), based on their relative fair values
at the date of transfer. The residual interests represents, over the estimated life of the loans, the present value of the estimated cash flows.
These cash flows are determined by the excess of the weighted average coupon on each pool of loans sold over the sum of the interest rate
paid to investors, the contractual servicing fee, a monoline insurance fee, if any, and an estimate for loan losses. Each agreement that the
Company has entered into in connection with its securitizations requires the overcollateralization of the trust that may initially be funded by
cash deposited by the Company. The amount and timing of the cash flows expected to be released from the securitization trusts considers the
impact of the applicable delinquency and loss limits specified in the securitization agreements.

The Company determines the present value of the cash flows at the time each securitization transaction closes using certain estimates made
by management at the time the loans are sold. These estimates include: (i) future rate of prepayment; (ii) credit losses; and (iii) discount rate
used to calculate present value. The future cash flows represent management's best estimate. Management monitors the performance of the
loans, and any changes in the estimates are reflected in earnings. There can be no assurance of the accuracy of management's estimates.

The residual interests are recorded at estimated fair value and are marked to market through a charge (or credit) to earnings. On a quarterly
basis, the Company reviews the fair value of the residual interests by analyzing its prepayment, credit loss and discount rate assumptions in
relation to its actual experience and current rates of prepayment and credit loss prevalent in the industry. Additionally, on a quarterly basis the
Company evaluates the effects, if any, that increasing or decreasing interest rates may have on its residual interests. The Company may adjust
the value of the residual interests or take a charge to earnings related to the residual interests, as appropriate, to reflect a valuation or write-
down of its residual interests based upon the actual performance of the Company's residual interests as compared to the Company's key
assumptions and estimates used to determine fair value. Although management believes that the assumptions to estimate the fair values of its
residual interests are reasonable, there can be no assurance as to the accuracy of the assumptions or estimates.

Rate of Prepayment. The estimated life of the securitized loans depends on the assumed annual prepayment rate which is a function of
estimated voluntary (full and partial) and involuntary (liquidations) prepayments. The prepayment rate represents management's expectations
of future prepayment rates based on prior and expected loan performance, the type of loans in the relevant pool (fixed or adjustable rate), the
production channel which produced the loan, prevailing interest rates, the presence of prepayment penalties, the loan-to-value ratios and the
credit grades of the loans included in the securitization and other industry data. The rate of prepayment may be affected by a variety of
economic and other factors including, but not limited to, a declining mortgage interest rate environment.
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Credit Losses. In determining the estimate for credit losses on loans securitized, the Company uses assumptions that it believes are
reasonable based on information from its prior securitizations, the loan-to-value ratios and credit grades of the loans included in the
securitizations, loss and delinquency information by origination channel, and information available from other market participants such as
investment bankers, credit providers and credit agencies. On a quarterly basis, the Company re-evaluates its credit loss estimates.

Discount Rate. In order to determine the fair value of the cash flow from the residual interests, the Company discounts the cash flows based
upon rates prevalent in the market.

The actual performance of the Company's residual interests as compared to the key assumptions and estimates used to evaluate their
carrying value resulted in write-downs to the residual interests of $33.6 million and $77.5 million during the years ended June 30, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The Company previously disclosed that if actual credit losses exceeded its credit loss assumption, the Company would be required to take a
charge to earnings to reflect a change in credit loss assumptions. In light of continued higher than expected losses on liquidations and based
upon management's assessment of the aforementioned factors considered in developing its credit loss estimate, during the year ended June 30,
2001, the Company adjusted its cumulative loss estimate to 5.3% from 4.6% of the original balance of the mortgage loans in the securitization
trusts in which the Company holds a residual interest. The change in the cumulative loss estimate assumption resulted in a $33.6 million write-
down to the Company's residual assets during the year ended June 30, 2001. The Company closely monitors its residual interests, and should
higher than expected credit losses continue, it will incorporate this factor into its normal quarterly evaluation of its residual interests.

The $77.5 million write-down recorded during the year ended June 30, 2000 was comprised of unfavorable adjustments of $86.3 million
taken in light of higher than expected credit loss experience and $12.3 million due to the effects of rising interest rates on excess spreads
which were offset by a favorable $21.1 million adjustment due to actual prepayment rate trends compared to prepayment rate assumptions.

The following table summarizes certain information about the securitization trusts at June 30, 2001 and 2000 (dollars in thousands):

June 30,

2001 2000

Aggregate principal balance of securitized loans at the time of the securitizations $ 7,016,205 $ 7,016,205
Outstanding principal balance of securitized loans $ 1,998,650 $ 2,879,578
Outstanding principal balance of pass-through certificates or bonds of the securitization trusts $ 1,795,278 $ 2,626,422
Weighted average coupon rates of:

Securitized loans 11.28% 11.29%
Pass-through certificates or bonds 6.14% 7.04%
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Certain historical data and key assumptions and estimates used by the Company in its June 30, 2001 and 2000 reviews of the residual
interests were the following:

June 30,

2001 2000

Prepayments:
Actual weighted average annual prepayment
rate, as a percentage of outstanding principal
balance of securitized loans

29.9% 30.9%

Estimated annual prepayment rates, as a
percentage of outstanding principal balance of
securitized loans:

Fixed rate loans 22.3% to 29.5% 22.3% to 29.5%
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Adjustable rate loans 37.2% to 46.9% 36.7% to 46.3%
Estimated weighted average life of securitized
loans

3.1 years 3.1 years

Credit losses:
Actual credit losses to date, as a percentage of
original principal balances of securitized loans

3.9% 2.6%

Future estimated prospective credit losses, as a
percentage of original principal balances of
securitized loans

1.4% 2.0%

Total actual and estimated credit losses, as a
percentage of original principal balance of
securitized loans

5.3% 4.6%

Total actual credit losses to date and estimated
prospective credit losses (dollars in thousands)

$368,479 $323,634

Discount rate 15.0% 15.0%

To estimate the effects of changes in interest rates on the coupon rates of the adjustable rate mortgage loans, the Company considers current
underlying indices, periodic interest rate caps, lifetime interest rate caps and contractual interest rate floors. In determining the interest rates
for the floating rate pass-through certificates in the securitization trusts, the Company uses each certificates' specific spread over the one-
month LIBOR.

The total actual and estimated credit losses, as a percentage of original principal balance of securitized loans, in each securitization trust,
ranged from 2.1% to 9.0% at June 30, 2001 and ranged from 2.0% to 9.1% at June 30, 2000. Actual and estimated credit losses vary between
securitization trusts due to differing credit quality i.e., credit grade, production channel and other factors considered by the Company when
evaluating credit loss estimates.

Additionally, upon sale or securitization of servicing retained mortgages, the Company capitalizes the fair value of mortgage servicing
rights ("MSRs") assets separate from the loan. The Company determines fair value based on the present value of estimated net future cash
flows related to servicing income. The cost allocated to the servicing rights is amortized over the period of estimated net future servicing fee
income. The Company periodically reviews the valuation of its MSR's. This review is performed on a disaggregated basis for the predominant
risk characteristics of the underlying loans which are loan type.

The $188.6 million write-down recorded during the year ended June 30, 1999 was comprised of unfavorable adjustments of $62.1 million,
$67.2 million and $64.5 million made to the rate of prepayment, credit loss and discount rate assumptions, respectively, offset by a positive
valuation
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adjustment of $5.2 million. The following sections discuss the changes made to the Company's prepayment, credit loss and discount rate
assumptions during the year ended June 30, 1999:

Rate of Prepayment. For the quarters up to and including September 30, 1998, prepayment rates used by the Company were held
constant, i.e. flat, over the life of the pool. The estimates used by the Company for the quarters up to and including September 30,
1998 were flat prepayment rates ranging from 26% for fixed to 30.5% for adjustable and hybrid loan products. These rates
represented a weighted average loan life of approximately 2.6 to 3.8 years. During the quarter ended December 31, 1998, the
Company changed its estimate of prepayment rates from a flat prepayment rate to a vectored rate, which more closely approximates
the performance of the securitized loans. The new vectored prepayment rates peak at approximately 29% for fixed and
approximately 42% to 57% for adjustable rate loans. These revised prepayment rates resulted in a weighted average life of
approximately 2.9 years. The impact of the change in prepayment speeds amounted to $62.1 million, which was included in the
$188.6 million write-down recorded during the year ended June 30, 1999.
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Credit Losses. For the quarters up to and including September 30, 1998, the Company used a prospective cumulative loan loss
estimate of 1.4% of the balance of the loans in the securitization pools as an appropriate estimate to determine fair value. This
estimate was developed through a review of the credit performance of securitized loans in the aggregate. In conjunction with its
previous quarterly reviews of loss estimates, the Company considered the level of delinquency of securitized loans and the
percentage of annualized losses to securitized loans in the aggregate. As market conditions deteriorated in the quarter ended
December 31, 1998, the Company refined its estimate of credit losses by expanding the factors it considered in developing its credit
loss estimates to include loss and delinquency information by channel, credit grade and product, and information available from
other market participants such as investment bankers, credit providers and credit agencies. For the quarter ended December 31,
1998, the percentage of losses to average servicing portfolio amounted to 1.08%, a significant increase from the previous quarter's
level of .80%. The Company had seen levels spike to .96% in the quarter ended June 30, 1998 but then subside to the .80%
previously noted. This trend was in line with the Company's assumption that losses were being realized as the servicing portfolio
was transferred in-house from sub-servicers. Management believes the increase in losses in the December 1998 quarter reflected
general market conditions rather than the continuing effects of the transfer of servicing in-house. Publicly available information
from investment banking firms and credit agencies began to indicate a market expectation that credit losses within the sub-prime
home equity sector would rise. Those indications, in part, arose from the impact of the adverse market conditions on severely
delinquent borrowers who, in a more favorable market, would have avoided default by refinancing with other lenders. With
competition lessening and underwriting guidelines tightening, these borrowers were much more likely to default. Accordingly, the
Company increased its prospective cumulative loan loss estimate to 2.7% of the balance of the loans in the securitization pools at
December 31, 1998. The impact of the change in credit loss estimate amounted to $67.2 million, which was included in the
$188.6 million valuation adjustment recorded during the year ended June 30, 1999.

Discount Rate. For the quarters up to and including September 30, 1998, the Company used the weighted average interest rates of
the loans included in the pool as the best estimate available as an appropriate discount rate to determine fair value. As the market
deteriorated in the quarter ended December 31, 1998, it became apparent that a change in discount rate would be required in order
for the estimate of fair value to be consistent with market conditions. Since the quarter commencing with the quarter ended
December 31, 1998, the Company has used a discount rate of 15% to reflect current market conditions and the appropriate rate of
return given the inherent risk of the related asset. The impact of the change in discount rate amounted to $64.5 million, which was
included in the $188.6 million valuation adjustment recorded during the year ended June 30, 1999.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities." ("SFAS 133") SFAS No. 133 requires companies to record derivatives on the balance sheet as assets and liabilities,
measured at fair value. Gains and losses resulting from changes in the values of those derivatives would be accounted for in earnings.
Depending on the use of the derivative and the satisfaction of other requirements, special hedge accounting may apply. At June 30, 2000, the
Company had no freestanding derivative instruments in place and had no material amounts of embedded derivative instruments. The Company
adopted SFAS 133 on July 1, 2000. Based upon the Company's application of SFAS No. 133, its adoption had no materially adverse effect on
the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations��Fiscal Years 2001, 2000 and 1999

The following table sets forth information regarding the components of the Company's revenue and expenses in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999:

2001 2000 1999

$ % $ % $ %

(Dollars in thousands)

Revenue:
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Gain on sale of loans $ 73,435 38.9 % $ 48,098 42.3 % $ 44,855 (277.7)%
Write-down of residual
interests and mortgage
servicing rights

(33,600) (17.8) (82,490) (72.5) (194,551) 1,204.4

Origination fees 47,430 25.1 37,951 33.4 39,689 (245.7)
Loan servicing 14,989 7.9 15,654 13.8 23,329 (144.4)
Interest 86,477 45.8 94,569 83.1 70,525 (436.6)

Total revenue, including
write-down of residual
interests and mortgage
servicing rights

188,731 100.0 113,782 100.0 (16,153) 100.0

Expenses:
Personnel 98,404 52.1 93,239 81.9 80,167 (496.3)
Production 19,034 10.1 26,718 23.5 40,061 (248.0)
General and administrative 49,044 26.0 58,489 51.4 60,635 (375.4)
Interest 50,884 27.0 52,339 46.0 44,089 (272.9)
Provision for uncollectible
receivables

� 0.0 2,000 1.8 37,044 (229.3)

Total expenses 217,366 115.2 232,785 204.6 261,996 (1,622.0)

Loss before income taxes (28,635) (15.2) (119,003) (104.6) (278,149) 1,722.0
Provision (benefit) for income
taxes

1,889 1.0 3,369 3.0 (30,182) 186.8

Net loss $ (30,524) (16.2)% $ (122,372) (107.6)% $ (247,967) 1,535.2 %

Revenue

General. Total revenue during the year ended June 30, 2001 was $188.7 million, compared to $113.8 million during the year ended
June 30, 2000 and $(16.2) million during the year ended June 30, 1999. Included in total revenue during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000
and 1999 were write-downs of $33.6 million, $82.5 million and $194.6 million, respectively, to the Company's residual interests and mortgage
servicing rights.
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Excluding the write-down of residual interests and mortgage servicing rights, total revenue during the year ended June 30, 2001 increased
$26.1 million to $222.3 million from $196.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2000. The $26.1 million increase in total revenue was
attributable primarily to increases in gain on sale of loans and origination fees, partially offset by declines in loan servicing revenue and
interest income. Excluding the write-down of residual interests and mortgage servicing rights, total revenue during the year ended June 30,
2000 increased $17.9 million to $196.3 million from $178.4 million for the year ended June 30, 1999. The $17.9 million increase in total
revenue is attributable primarily to an increase in gain on sale of loans and interest income, partially offset by declines in origination fees and
loan servicing revenue.

Gain on Sale of Loans. Gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 2001 was $73.4 million, an increase of $25.3 million, or
52.7%, from the $48.1 million reported during the year ended June 30, 2000. The increase in gain on sale of loans resulted primarily from
higher gain on sale rates recognized by the Company in its securitization and whole loan sales for cash during the year ended June 30, 2001
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when compared to the gain on sale rates recognized on its loan dispositions during the year ended June 30, 2000. To a lesser extent, the
increase in gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 2001 from the comparable period a year ago is due to the sale of mortgage
servicing rights and the rights to prepayment fees and to the $111.2 million increase in loan dispositions during the year ended June 30, 2001
over the level of loan dispositions reported during the prior year. During the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company relied on a
combination of securitizations and whole loan sales for cash as its loan disposition strategy. However, the mix in the composition of
securitizations and whole loan sales for cash differed during each of the respective periods based upon the Company's review of market
conditions, profitability and cash flow requirements. During the year ended June 30, 2001, $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion of mortgage loans
were disposed in securitizations and whole loan sales, respectively, or 52.8% and 47.2% of the $2.3 billion of total loan dispositions during the
period. In comparison, during the year ended June 30, 2000, mortgage loan dispositions in whole loan sales for cash were $1.4 billion and
loans sold in securitizations were the $803.6 million, or 63.8% and 36.2%, respectively, of the $2.2 billion of total loan dispositions during the
period. The higher reliance on whole loan sales for cash as a mortgage loan disposition strategy was due to the Company's focus on its
liquidity levels during that period and its limited access to the securitization markets due to the negative cash aspects of securitization. As a
result of the Residual Facility which became available in August 2000 the Company increased loan dispositions through securitizations by
$427.9 million to $1.2 billion during the year ended June 30, 2001 from $803.6 million of mortgage loans sold in securitizations a year ago.
Whole loan sales for cash declined by $316.7 million to $1.1 billion during the year ended June 30, 2001 from $1.4 billion during the year
ended June 30, 2000. Gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 2001 includes $15.7 million of gain on sale of mortgage servicing
rights and the rights to prepayment fee income sold to an unaffiliated independent mortgage servicing company relating to all of the mortgage
loans in the Company's fiscal 2001 securitizations. The gain on sale rates realized by the Company on whole loan sales for cash were
generally higher during the year ended June 30, 2001 compared to gain rates on whole loan sales for cash during the year ended June 30, 2000
due to a combination of pricing and underwriting changes made by the Company and generally better conditions in the whole loan markets
during fiscal 2001 when compared to the market conditions existing during fiscal 2000. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company,
as it has from to time to time, entered into forward interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure to fixed rate mortgage loans
in its inventory and pipeline in anticipation of closing securitizations during the year. Gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30,
2001 is net of $6.0 million of derivative losses. There were no derivative transactions in place at or during the year ended June 30, 2000. Of
the $73.4 million in gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 2001, $45.1 million was attributable to residual sales for cash to CZI
under the Residual Facility. Gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 2001 is net of $1.9 million of amortized expenses related to
the Residual Facility, of which $1.7 million related to amortization of the

31

facility fee paid to CZI. As the Residual Facility was made available to the Company in August 2000, gain on sale of loans during fiscal 2000
has no similar activity.

Gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 2000 was $48.1 million, an increase of $3.2 million, or 7.2%, from the $44.9 million
reported during the year ended June 30, 1999. The increase in gain on sale of loans during the year end June 30, 2000 over the year ended
June 30, 1999 was due to increases in the volume of loans sold in whole loan sales and securitizations, and higher gains on whole loan sales in
fiscal 2000 compared to fiscal 1999, partially offset by lower gains recorded on securitizations during the year ended June 30, 2000. During
the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company disposed of $1.4 billion and $803.6 million of loans in whole loan sales and securitizations,
respectively, compared to $1.2 billion of loans in whole loan sales for cash and $650.0 million of loan dispositions in the form of
securitizations for the year ended June 30, 1999. Gain on sale of loans in securitizations during the year ended June 30, 2000 were lower than
historical gains due to, among other things, market conditions at the time of the securitizations, higher margins paid by the Company on the
certificates issued by the securitization trusts and the Company's adoption of revised gain rate assumptions during the second half of the year
ended June 30, 1999. However, the gain on sale recognized on whole loan sales during the year ended June 30, 2000 were generally higher
than the gains recognized during the year ended June 30, 1999 due primarily to improved market conditions during fiscal 2000, changes in
loan product mix and loan pricing and, to a lesser extent, to the volume of whole loans sold during the year ended June 30, 2000 over that
during fiscal 1999. Additionally, gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 1999 was negatively impacted by conditions imposed by
whole loan buyers due to the onset of adverse market conditions in October 1998 and the Company's limited warehouse capacity which
necessitated the expeditious sale of loans. As previously reported, gain on sale during the year ended June 30, 1999 was adversely effected by
a $13.5 million hedge loss.
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Origination Fees. Origination fee revenue is primarily comprised of points and other fees charged by the Company on mortgage loans
originated by the Company. Origination fee revenue is primarily a function of the volume of mortgage loans originated by the Company
through its retail channel and the points charged on such loans. Deferred origination fee revenue recognized during the period is attributable to
the mix in the composition of mortgage loans being either securitized or sold in whole loan sales in excess of the mortgage loans originated
during the same periods. The recognition or deferral of deferred origination fee revenue during a period coincides with the recognition or
deferral of deferred compensation expense during the same period. See "Expenses�Compensation."

Origination fee revenue during the year ended June 30, 2001 was $47.4 million as compared to $38.0 million and $39.7 million during the
years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. Excluding the effects of the recognition or deferral of deferred origination fee income, origination fee
revenue was $47.5 million, $36.7 million and $41.5 million during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase
in origination fee revenue during the year ended June 30, 2001 over a year ago is attributable primarily to increase in retail production during
fiscal 2001, partially offset by a decrease in points and fees charged per loan due to the Company's focus on higher credit quality borrowers
and a reduction in points and fees charged by the Company in certain states and for certain loan products in response to recent regulatory
changes. The decrease in origination fee revenue during the year ended June 30, 2000 from the year ended June 30, 1999 was primarily
attributable to changes in the Company's pricing strategies which placed a higher emphasis on coupon rates rather than points charged at
origination and a focus on higher credit-quality borrowers. The weighted average points charged by the Company during the years ended
June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were 4.0%, 4.7% and 4.8%, respectively. The Company expects weighted average points charged to decline
further in fiscal 2002 as the Company expects to continue to reduce points and fees charged in certain states in response to pending legislation
and regulation restricting points and fees in numerous states.

Loan Servicing. Loan servicing revenue consists of prepayment fees, late charges and other fees retained by the Company, and servicing
fees earned on securitized pools, reduced by subservicing costs
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and amortization of the Company's MSR's. See "�Certain Accounting Considerations." Loan servicing revenue during the year ended June 30,
2001 was $15.0 million as compared to $15.7 million and $23.3 million during the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The $0.7 million decrease in loan servicing revenue during the year ended June 30, 2001 from a year ago was due primarily to declines in
servicing, late and prepayment fees aggregating $5.5 million, partially offset by declines in subservicing related expenses and amortization of
mortgage servicing rights in the aggregate amount of $4.7 million. The declines in servicing, late and prepayment fees in fiscal 2001 are due
to the $843.0 million decrease in the size of the servicing portfolio at June 30, 2001 compared to June 30, 2000, together with a decrease in
prepayment fees due to the aging of loans in the portfolio beyond the term of prepayment fees. Subservicing expenses and related resolution,
set-up and reperformance expenses during the year ended June 30, 2001 were $4.5 million, down $1.8 million from the $6.3 million of such
expenses during the year ended June 30, 2000. During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company entered into arrangements with an
investment bank pursuant to which the investment bank purchased certain servicing related advances and agreed to undertake the obligation to
make a substantial portion of the Company's advance obligations on its 1999 securitization trusts. During the fourth quarter of the year ended
June 30, 1999, the Company entered into two arrangements designed to reduce its servicing advance obligations. In the first arrangement, a
loan servicing company purchased certain servicing related advances and agreed to make future servicing related advances with respect to an
aggregate $388.0 million ($184.0 million at June 30, 2001) in principal amount of loans. In the second arrangement, an investment bank
purchased certain servicing related advances and agreed to undertake the obligation to make a substantial portion of the Company's advance
obligations on its pre-1999 securitization trusts. The $7.7 million decrease in loan servicing revenue during the year ended June 30, 2000 from
the year ended June 30, 1999 was due primarily to expenses incurred due to these arrangements during the year ended June 30, 2000 that were
not in place during the entire year ended June 30, 1999. Subservicing expenses and related resolution, set-up and reperformance expenses
associated with these arrangements during the year ended June 30, 2000 were $6.3 million, an increase of $5.7 million from the $623,000 of
similar expenses incurred during the year ended June 30, 1999.

The Company has generally not added any new loans to the servicing portfolio (excluding loans subserviced on an interim basis) since
January 1, 2000 due to the Company's sale of all of its mortgage loan production in whole loan sales for cash and securitizations with
servicing released since that time. The Company's loan servicing portfolio at June 30, 2001 decreased $843.0 million, or 23.7% to $2.7 billion
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from $3.6 billion reported at June 30, 2000, reflecting loan servicing portfolio runoff during the period. Moreover, subsequent to June 30,
2001, the Company transferred to the purchasers or their designated servicers the approximately $334.5 million of loans, which represented
loans sold in whole loan sales during the June 2001 quarter and in the June 2001 securitization but subserviced by the Company at June 30,
2001 on an interim basis. The Company's servicing portfolio will continue to be impacted in the future by the Company's dispositions of its
loan production through whole loan sales and securitizations on a servicing released basis, which has resulted in a smaller servicing portfolio.
See "Risk Factors." Future loan servicing revenue will be negatively impacted by continuing declines in the size of the loan servicing
portfolio, and in prepayment fees due to the aging of loans in the portfolio past the term of any prepayment penalties on loans, and by the costs
associated with the arrangements the Company entered into to reduce servicing advances on securitization trusts. See "Item 1. Business�Loan
Servicing."

Interest. Interest income includes interest on loans held for sale, accretion income associated with the Company's residual interests and, to a
lesser extent, interest on short-term overnight investments. Interest income was $86.5 million during the year ended June 30, 2001, compared
to $94.6 million reported during the year ended June 30, 2000 and $70.5 million reported during the year ended June 30, 1999. Interest income
decreased $8.1 million, or 8.6% during the year ended June 30, 2001
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from the prior year due primarily to lower accretion on lower average residual interest, partially offset by an increase in interest income earned
on loans held for sale resulting from higher weighted average interest rates on higher average outstanding balances of loans held for sale
during fiscal 2001 when compared to such rates and balances during fiscal 2000. Interest income increased $24.0 million, or 34.1% during the
year ended June 30, 2000 over the year ended June 30, 1999 due primarily to higher accretion on higher average balances of the Company's
residual interests and through the use of a higher discount rate during all of fiscal 2000; whereas, during fiscal 1999, the Company's change in
the interest rate used to discount residual interest asset cashflows affected only the second half of that fiscal year. To a lesser extent, interest
income increased during the year ended June 30, 2000 over the year ended June 30, 1999 due to higher weighted average interest rates on
higher outstanding balances of loans held for sale during fiscal 2000 when compared to such rates and balances during fiscal 1999.

Expenses

Personnel. Personnel expense includes salaries, payroll taxes and medical and other employee benefits. Personnel expense also includes
incentives that are generally related to the Company's loan origination volume, as retail and broker account executives earn incentives on
funded loans. Personnel expense during the year ended June 30, 2001 increased $5.2 million, or 5.5%, to $98.4 million from $93.2 million
during the year ended June 30, 2000. Personnel expense for the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 includes $0.2 million and $2.2 million of
recognized deferred direct compensation costs associated with loans originated in prior periods that were disposed of in either whole loan
sales or securitizations during the years then ended. Personnel expense during the year ended June 30, 2000 also includes $4.0 million of
nonrecurring severance costs. Net of the effects of the recognition or deferral of direct compensatory costs, personnel expense during the years
ended June 30, 2001 increased $7.1 million to $98.2 million during the year ended June 30, 2001 from $91.1 million during the year ended
June 30, 2000. This increase is comprised primarily of $4.2 million of incentive compensation to retail and broker executives relative to the
$292.3 million increase in retail and broker production during fiscal 2001 over a year ago, and to a lesser extent, to $1.7 million of bonus
compensation awarded to other senior management and $1.4 million of increased payroll taxes, medical and other benefit costs during the year
ended June 30, 2001 over levels from a year ago.

Personnel expense during the year ended June 30, 2000 increased $13.1 million, or 16.3%, to $93.2 million from $80.2 million during the
year ended June 30, 1999. Personnel expense during the year ended June 30, 1999 excludes $6.5 million of direct compensation expense
associated with loans produced during fiscal 1999 which were deferred to future periods pending disposition of the loans in either whole loan
sales or securitizations. Excluding the effects of the recognition or deferral of direct compensatory costs, compensation expense during the
year ended June 30, 2000 increased $4.4 million to $91.1 million from $86.6 million during the year ended June 30, 1999. This increase is
attributable primarily to the aforementioned nonrecurring severance costs, incentives paid to retail loan production employees and, to a lesser
extent, other incentive and bonus awards and the hiring of certain employees during the year ended June 30, 2000.
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Production. Production expense, primarily advertising, outside appraisal costs, travel and entertainment, and credit reporting fees decreased
$7.7 million, or 28.8%, to $19.0 million during the year ended June 30, 2001 from $26.7 million during the year ended June 30, 2000. The
decrease in production expense during the year ended June 30, 2001 from a year ago is due primarily to continued cost containment efforts in
reducing advertising expense through refinement of the Company's decentralized marketing approach in its retail loan office network and
reductions in travel and entertainment, partially offset by increases in appraisal and credit investigation expenses.

Production expense decreased $13.3 million, or 33.3%, to $26.7 million during the year ended June 30, 2000 from $40.1 million during the
year ended June 30, 1999. The decrease during the year ended June 30, 2000 from the year ended June 30, 1999 is due primarily to the
Company's cost
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reduction efforts, which included reducing its advertising expenses by improving the efficiency and penetration of its advertising strategies
through the adoption of the decentralized marketing approach in its retail loan office network. Additionally, during the first half of fiscal 2000,
in an effort to further reduce production costs, the Company commenced the practice of having prospective borrowers pay for appraisal costs
prior to the incurrence of the appraisal expense during the loan origination process whenever possible. Prior thereto, the Company did not
charge customers for appraisals unless and until their loans closed, and absorbed as a production expense appraisal costs incurred for loan
applications where the prospective applicants' loans were not closed and funded.

Production expense expressed as a percentage of total loan origination volume for the year ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was 0.80%,
1.3% and 1.8%, respectively. The decrease in the percentage during the year ended June 30, 2001 from the percentage during the year ended
June 30, 2000 is attributable to the 28.8% decrease in production expense combined with the $292.3 million, or 14.1% increase in total loan
production during the year ended June 30, 2001 over the origination volume reported for the year ended June 30, 2000. The decrease in the
percentage during the year ended June 30, 2000 from the percentage during the year ended June 30, 1999 is attributable to the 33.3% decrease
in production expense partially offset by the $114.3 million, or 5.2%, decrease in total loan production during the year ended June 30, 2000
from the origination volume reported for the year ended June 30, 1999.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expense decreased $9.4 million, or 16.2%, to $49.0 million during the year ended
June 30, 2001 from $58.5 million during the year ended June 30, 2000. General and administrative expense decreased $2.1 million, or 3.5%,
during the year ended June 30, 2000 from the year ended June 30, 1999. The decrease in the general and administrative expenses during the
year ended June 30, 2001 from the year ended June 30, 2000 were primarily due to declines in professional, legal, communication and
occupancy expenses. General and administrative expense during the year ended June 30, 2000 includes fees for outside professional advisors
on specific operational projects, primarily to support the two servicing advance facilities the Company put into place to reduce its servicing
advance obligations and miscellaneous operational charges taken by the Company. General and administrative expense decreased to
$58.5 million during the year ended June 30, 2000, from $60.6 million during the year ended June 30, 1999, due to declines in legal,
communication and miscellaneous expenses.

On January 31, 2001, the Company entered into a sublease involving approximately 44,800 rentable square feet at its headquarters office
located at 350 South Grand Avenue, Los Angeles, California. The sublease will result in a $600,000 reduction to the Company's annual
occupancy expense. In accounting for the sublease transaction, the Company charged income for the differential between the present values of
lease payments payable under the master lease and the lease payments receivable under the sublease. The Company also charged income for
the unamortized portion of the leasehold improvements that were abandoned and expenses associated with the transaction. Additionally, the
Company reversed certain accruals and deferred credits applicable to the sublet space. Consequently, there was no net charge to earnings as a
consequence of this sublease transaction. The Company was required by the terms of the sublease to pledge approximately $1.9 million in the
form of a cash deposit to guarantee the differential between the present values of the master lease payment streams and the sublease receivable
streams. The cash deposit is refundable to the Company over the term of the sublease if no performance default occurs.

As part of the Company's on-going cost savings program, the Company is evaluating other subleasing opportunities for space it currently
occupies that is subject to operating leases. If the Company agrees to sublease such space at lease rates significantly less than existing base
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lease terms, or if the lease commitments are bought out as a consequence of a negotiated lease termination, the Company could incur a
significant charge to earnings.
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Interest. Interest expense declined $1.5 million to $50.9 million during the year ended June 30, 2001 from $52.3 million during the year
ended June 30, 2000 which, in turn, was an increase of $8.2 million over the $44.1 million of interest expense reported during the year ended
June 30, 1999. The decrease in interest expense during the year ended June 30, 2001 from levels reported a year ago resulted primarily from
lower interest rates associated with the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities used to fund the origination of mortgage
loans prior to their disposition despite increased average borrowings under the facilities during fiscal 2001 when compared to average
borrowings during fiscal 2000. The Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase agreements bear interest rates that are indexed to one-
month LIBOR which, during the year ended June 30, 2001, declined from levels during the year ended June 30, 2000. The increase in interest
expense during the year ended June 30, 2000 over the year ended June 30, 1999 resulted primarily from increased average borrowings at
higher interest rates under revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities used to fund the origination and purchase of mortgage loans prior to
their securitization or sale in the secondary markets. While the Company's interest costs on its revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities
trended down during the year ended June 30, 2001 from a year ago, interest expense is expected to increase in future periods due to the
Company's continued reliance on external financing arrangements to fund increased production volumes.

Provision for Uncollectible Receivables. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, the Company recorded provisions of
$2.0 million and $37.0 million related to the Company's advances which are recorded as accounts receivable on the Company's consolidated
balance sheet. As previously reported, these advances relate to payments made by the Company to the securitization trusts for which it acts as
servicer. As servicer of the loans it securitizes, the Company is obligated to advance, or "loan," to the trusts delinquent interest. In addition, as
servicer, the Company advances to the securitization trusts foreclosure-related expenses and certain tax and insurance remittances relating to
loans in securitized trusts. The Company, as servicer, is then entitled to recover these advances from regular monthly cash flows from the
trusts, including monthly payments, pay-offs and liquidation proceeds on the related loan. Until recovered, the Company records the
cumulative advances as accounts receivable on its consolidated balance sheet. In early fiscal 1999, the Company began to explore ways to
reduce the cash burden of its advance obligations through various financing techniques. At the same time, the Company determined that
certain amounts recorded as accounts receivable associated with the Company's securitization trusts were not recoverable from the
securitization trusts' monthly cash flows. As a result, accounts receivable were written-down by $37.0 million. During the year ended June 30,
2000, the Company reviewed its accounts receivable consisting of advances made by the Company in connection with its securitized trusts
and adjusted such receivables to reflect their collectibility which resulted in a write-down of $2.0 million.

Income Taxes. During the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company recorded an income tax provision (benefit) of
$1.9 million, $3.4 million and $(30.2) million, respectively, which reflect effective tax rates of 6.2%, 2.8% and (10.9%), respectively. The
provisions for income taxes during the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 are related primarily to estimated taxes on excess inclusion
income on the Company's REMIC trusts and, to a lesser extent, other miscellaneous state taxes. The benefit for income taxes recorded during
the year ended June 30, 1999 was due to the net operating loss incurred during that year and is net of tax valuation adjustments recorded to
account for estimated nonrealizable deferred tax assets. The investment in the Company by Capital Z in fiscal 1999 resulted in a change in
control for income tax purposes, thereby limiting the Company's ability to use future net operating loss carryforwards and certain other future
deductions.

Financial Condition

Loans Held for Sale. The Company's portfolio of loans held for sale increased to $417.2 million at June 30, 2001 from $398.9 million at
June 30, 2000. The increase is attributable to the Company's
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$2.4 billion of loan production exceeding its $1.2 billion of securitizations and $1.1 billion of whole loan sales in the secondary market during
the year ended June 30, 2001.

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable are comprised of servicing related advances; servicing and late fees; amounts due from CZI
under the Residual Facility; cash due from the securitization trusts; and accrued interest receivable and other miscellaneous receivables.
Accounts receivable increased $18.3 million to $71.1 million at June 30, 2001 from $52.7 million at June 30, 2000. The increase is primarily
attributable to a $19.7 million increase in servicing related advances, and increases of $4.8 million and $1.0 million in amounts due from CZI
and in accrued interest receivable and other receivables, respectively, partially offset by declines of $6.0 million and $1.2 million in cash due
from the securitization trusts and servicing and late fees receivable, respectively.

The $19.7 million increase in servicing advances at June 30, 2001 from June 30, 2000 is comprised of $55.1 million of servicing related
advances made by the Company in its role of servicer of the mortgage loans in the securitization trusts, net of $25.4 million of recoveries of
such advances and net of a $10.0 million sale of servicing advances at par for cash to an investment bank during the year ended June 30, 2001.
The level of servicing advances, in any given period, is dependent upon portfolio delinquencies, the level of REO and loans in the process of
foreclosure, and the timing and remittance of cash collections on mortgage loans in the securitization trusts. At June 30, 2001, the Company
was owed $4.8 million by CZI under the Residual Facility related to the Company's sale for cash to CZI of the residual interest created in the
June 2001 securitization. The Residual Facility was not in place at June 30, 2000. Subsequent to June 30, 2001, the $4.8 million was received
in full. The increase in accrued interest and other receivables at June 30, 2001 from June 30, 2000 resulted primarily from interest accruals on
higher average balances of loans held for sale at June 30, 2001 over such balances a year ago and, to a lesser extent, from increased settlement
balances due from counterparties to mortgage loan disposition transactions at June 30, 2001 when compared to such balances a year ago. The
decline in cash due from the securitized trusts at June 30, 2001 from June 30, 2000 is attributable to the timing and amount of cash expected to
be released to the Company from the securitization trusts at June 30, 2001 when compared to timing and amounts of cash expected to be
released at June 30, 2000. The decline in servicing and late fees receivable at June 30, 2001 from June 30, 2000 is due primarily to declining
servicing and late fees earned by the Company as a consequence of the decrease in its servicing portfolio to $2.7 billion at June 30, 2001 from
the $3.6 billion servicing portfolio balance at June 30, 2000.

Residual Interests. Residual interests decreased $53.1 million to $237.8 million at June 30, 2001 from $291.0 million at June 30, 2000,
reflecting the $33.6 million residual interest write-down and $60.5 million of cash received from the securitization trusts, partially offset by
$41.0 million of residual interest accretion during the year ended June 30, 2001. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company did not
retain any residual interests in the $1.2 billion of securitizations it consummated, having sold such residual interests to CZI for cash under the
Residual Facility.

Mortgage Servicing Rights, net. Mortgage servicing rights, net, decreased to $6.5 million at June 30, 2001 from $12.3 million at June 30,
2000 reflecting amortization of $5.8 million of mortgage servicing rights during the year ended June 30, 2001. During the year ended June 30,
2001, the Company did not capitalize any mortgage servicing rights. The Company sold for cash the servicing rights on the mortgage loans in
the $1.2 billion of securitizations which closed during the year ended June 30, 2001. All of the Company's $1.1 billion of loans sold in whole
loan sales for cash during the year ended June 30, 2001 were sold with servicing released.

Equipment and Improvements, net. Equipment and improvements, net, increased to $11.1 million at June 30, 2001 from $10.5 million at
June 30, 2000 due primarily to equipment acquisitions, principally technology related, outpacing depreciation and amortization and, to a lesser
extent, sales and abandonments during the year ended June 30, 2001.
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Prepaid and Other Assets. Prepaid and other assets decreased to $14.1 million at June 30, 2001 from $14.7 million at June 30, 2000,
primarily reflecting amortization during the year ended June 30, 2001, outpacing the capitalization of eligible expenses incurred for financing
and other arrangements entered into by the Company during the year ended June 30, 2001. At June 30, 2001, prepaid and other assets included
$1.4 of remaining unamortized costs relating the Residual Facility, of which $1.3 million related to the remaining unamortized facility fee paid
by the Company to CZI.
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Borrowings. Amounts outstanding under borrowings at June 30, 2001 decreased to $269.7 million from $275.5 million and reflects the
Company's $5.8 million scheduled sinking fund payment on its 10.5% Senior Notes due 2002 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

Revolving Warehouse and Repurchase Facilities. Amounts outstanding under revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities increased to
$393.3 million at June 30, 2001 from $375.0 million at June 30, 2000, primarily due to the increase in loans held for sale resulting from the
Company's loan production during the year ended June 30, 2001, partially offset by the Company's whole loan sales and securitizations during
the same period. At June 30, 2001 and June 30, 2000, the Company was holding loans held for sale in anticipation of consummating a
securitization and whole loan sales during the respective subsequent September quarters. Proceeds from whole loan sales and securitizations
are used to reduce balances outstanding under the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities.

Income Taxes Payable. At both June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company had approximately $2.0 million of taxes currently payable. The
Company's gross deferred tax liabilities increased by $0.6 million to $16.6 million at June 30, 2001 from $16.0 million at June 30, 2000 due to
the change in the tax effects of temporary differences relating to state taxes. The Company's gross deferred tax assets increased approximately
$13.2 million at June 30, 2001 to $160.6 million from $147.4 million at June 30, 2000, primarily due to a $14.4 million increase in temporary
differences relating to nonrecognized net operating losses partially offset by a $1.2 million decline in the tax versus financial statement
recognition of income and expense related to residual interests. The Company's tax valuation allowance increased to $150.2 million at
June 30, 2001 from $137.8 million at June 30, 2000 due to the increase in the Company's deferred tax assets. At June 30, 2001 and 2000, it
was the Company's belief, based upon available evidence, that it was not more likely than not that its deferred tax assets would be realized.
During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company received $1.7 million of tax refunds receivable at June 30, 1999.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company's operations require continued access to short-term and long-term sources of cash. The Company's primary operating cash
requirements include: (i) the funding of mortgage loan originations and purchases prior to their securitization and sale, (ii) fees, expenses and
hedging costs, if any, incurred in connection with the securitization and sale of loans, (iii) cash reserve accounts or over-collateralization
requirements in connection with securitizations, (iv) ongoing administrative, operating, and tax expenses, (v) interest and principal payments
under the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities and other existing indebtedness and (vi) advances in connection with the
Company's servicing portfolio.

The Company's primary sources of liquidity are expected to be (i) fundings under revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities, (ii) the
securitization and sale of mortgage loans and related servicing rights, (iii) sales of residual interests under the Residual Facility and (iv) the
monetization of the Company's servicing advances. The Company historically had access to working capital financing facilities and the
issuance of debt and equity securities, to finance its operating cash requirements; however, due to the Company's operating performance in the
three most recent fiscal years, the Company does not expect access to those capital resources in the foreseeable future. See "�Risk Factors�If
we are unable to maintain adequate financing sources or outside sources of cash are not

38

sufficient, our earnings and financial position will suffer and jeopardize our ability to operate as a going concern."

Warehouse and Repurchase Facilities. The Company generally relies on revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities to originate and
purchase mortgage loans and hold them prior to securitization or sale. At June 30, 2001, the Company had committed revolving warehouse
and repurchase facilities in the amount of $790.3 million (excluding $9.7 million outstanding on a $35.0 million non-revolving subline
described more fully below). At June 30, 2001, amounts outstanding under the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase agreements
were $393.3 million. As previously reported, on January 24, 2001, the Company renewed an existing $200.0 million revolving warehouse
facility and increased the capacity under the facility to $300.0 million. Included in this facility's renewal was a $40.0 million subline that
provides for the funding of mortgage loans at closing. Of the $800.0 million of committed revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities
currently available to the Company at June 30, 2001, $300.0 million, $300.0 million and $200.0 million expire on October 26, 2001,
January 23, 2002, and June 30, 2002, respectively.
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Certain of the Company's warehouse and repurchase lenders advance less than 100% of the principal balance of the mortgage loans,
requiring the Company to use working capital to fund the remaining portion of the principal balance of the mortgage loans.

All of the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities contain provisions requiring the Company to meet certain periodic
financial covenants, including among other things, minimum liquidity, stockholders' equity, leverage, and net income levels. Due to the
$33.2 million net loss during the quarter ended March 31, 2001, the Company failed to meet certain financial covenants under its revolving
warehouse and repurchase facilities at March 31, 2001, April 30, 2001 and May 31, 2001. However, the Company successfully sought and
obtained amendments to these financial covenants from its warehouse and repurchase lenders to bring itself into compliance at March 31,
2001 and during the three months ended June 30, 2001. If the Company is unable to meet these financial covenants going forward, or is unable
to obtain subsequent amendments, if required, or for any other reason is unable to maintain existing warehouse or repurchase lines or renew
them when they expire, it would have to cease loan production operations which would negatively impact profitability and jeopardize the
Company's ability to continue to operate as a going concern.

Pursuant to agreements relating to the Company's two 1999 securitization trusts, the monoline insurance company providing credit
enhancement requires the Company to maintain a specified net worth and level of liquidity in order to be able to continue to service the loans
in the trusts. Due to the $33.2 million net loss for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, the Company currently does not satisfy the net worth test,
and as a result, the monoline insurer can terminate the Company as servicer. The monoline insurer has to date waived the Company's failure to
satisfy the net worth test.

Under the terms of the Company's Indenture dated October 21, 1996 with respect to its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2003, the Company's
ability to incur certain additional indebtedness, including residual financing, is limited to two times stockholders' equity. Funded warehouse
indebtedness is generally not included in the indebtedness limitations. Securitization obligations are generally not included in the indebtedness
limitations. The Company is currently restricted from incurring additional indebtedness as defined in the Indenture. The Company's revolving
repurchase and warehouse facilities also contain limits on the Company's ability to incur additional indebtedness. Further, until the Company
receives investment grade ratings for the notes issued under the Indenture, the amount of assets allocable to post-September 1996
securitizations which the Company may pledge to secure debt is limited by the Indenture to 75% of the difference between such post-
September 1996 residuals and servicing advances and $225.0 million. Because of the recent financial performance of the Company and the
Company's sale of its residual interests created in its 2001 securitization, the Company does not anticipate having additional residual interests
available to finance in the near term. This could restrict the Company's ability to borrow to provide working capital as needed in the future.
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The Securitization and Sale of Mortgage Loans. The Company's ability to sell loans originated by it in the secondary market through
securitization and whole loan sales is necessary to generate cash proceeds to pay down its warehouse and repurchase facilities and fund new
originations and purchases. The ability of the Company to sell loans in the secondary market on acceptable terms is essential for the
continuation of the Company's loan origination operations. See "Risk Factors�An interruption or reduction in the securitization and whole
loan market would hurt our financial performance."

The Company securitized $1.2 billion of loans held for sale during the year ended June 30, 2001 compared to $803.6 million and
$650.0 million of loans during the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The gain on sale recognized by the Company on
securitizations and whole loan sales is affected by, among other things, market conditions at the time of the loan disposition, and the
Company's assumptions used in securitizations. See "Results of Operations�Revenue." The gain on sale recognized on securitizations during
the year ended June 30, 2001 was higher than gains during the year ended June 30, 2000 due primarily to improved market conditions at the
time of the securitizations. See "Certain Accounting Considerations�Accounting for Securitizations." In connection with securitization
transactions, the Company is generally required to provide credit enhancements in the form of overcollateralization amounts or reserve
accounts. In addition, during the life of the related securitization trusts, the Company subordinates a portion of the excess cash flow otherwise
due it to the rights of holders of senior interests as a credit enhancement to support the sale of the senior interests. The terms of the
securitization trusts generally require that all excess cash flow otherwise payable to the Company during the early months of the trusts be used
to increase the cash reserve accounts or to repay the senior interests in order to increase overcollateralization to specified maximums.
Overcollateralization requirements for certain pools increase up to approximately twice the level otherwise required when the delinquency
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rates or realized losses for those pools exceed the specified limit. At June 30, 2001, the Company was required to maintain
overcollateralization amounts of $343.9 million, of which $203.4 million was maintained. The remaining $140.5 million is required to be
added to the overcollateralization amounts from future spread income from the loans in the securitization trusts. Of the $343.9 million of
overcollateralization amounts required at June 30, 2001, $60.3 million is required to be maintained due to the level of delinquency rates and
realized losses of mortgage loans being in excess of specified delinquency rates and realized losses in certain securitization trusts.

In the Company's securitizations structured as a REMIC, the recognition of non-cash gain on sale has a negative impact on the cash flow of
the Company since the Company is required to pay federal and state taxes on a portion of these amounts in the period recognized although it
does not receive the cash representing the gain until later periods as the related service fees are collected and applicable reserve or
overcollateralization requirements are met.

Residual Forward Sale Facility. On August 31, 2000, the Company entered into the Residual Facility with CZI, an affiliate of Capital Z,
the Company's largest shareholder. Pursuant to the terms of the Residual Facility, the Company may sell up to $75.0 million of its residual
interests for cash in future securitizations through the earliest of (i) September 30, 2002, (ii) the full utilization of the $75.0 million amount of
the Residual Facility, or (iii) a termination event, as defined in the Residual Facility. The Company believes that the Residual Facility has
strengthened its ability to include securitizations in its loan disposition strategy through reducing the negative cash flow aspects of
securitizations and by providing another source of cash to the Company through periodically converting residual interests into cash.

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company sold $45.1 million of residual interests to CZI pursuant to the Residual Facility for cash.
At June 30, 2001, the remaining amount available under the Residual Facility was approximately $29.9 million. It is the Company's
expectation to periodically sell to CZI residual interests created in future securitizations as a means of enhancing its working capital on a
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periodic basis. There can be no assurance that the Residual Facility will be renewed beyond its expiration.

Monetization of Servicing Advances. In January 2001, February 2000 and June 1999, in order to reduce its servicing advance obligations,
the Company entered into arrangements with an investment bank pursuant to which the bank purchased certain cumulative advances and
undertook the obligation to make a substantial portion of the Company's advance obligations on its securitization trusts. In the future, the
Company may enter into similar arrangements as a means to further reduce its servicing advance obligations and to monetize then existing
servicing advance receivables. In April 1999, the Company reduced its servicing advance obligations by engaging a loan servicing company to
subservice two of the Company's securitization trusts, pursuant to which the loan servicing company assumed the obligations to make all
future advances on those two trusts.

Working Capital Financing Facilities. On February 11, 2000, the Company secured and drew down a $35.0 million non-revolving subline
(outstanding balance at June 30, 2001 was $9.7 million) to a warehouse facility secured by certain of its residual interests and certain other
collateral to provide working capital. As part of the transaction, Capital Z, the Company's largest shareholder, agreed to provide certain credit
enhancements to the lender for a portion of the subline for which the Company paid Capital Z a $1.0 million fee.

The Issuance of Debt and Equity Securities. The Company has historically funded negative cash flow primarily from the sale of its equity
and debt securities. However, current market conditions have restricted the Company's ability to access its traditional equity and debt sources.

As previously reported, on June 10, 2000 and in the first of a two phase $50.0 million equity investment by SFP, a partnership controlled by
Capital Z (the "Supplemental Investment"), the Company received $34.7 million of additional capital. In return, the Company issued
(i) 40.8 million shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock at a price of $0.85, which reflected the average closing market price for the five
trading days prior to closing phase one and (ii) warrants to purchase 5.0 million shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock at $0.85 per
share. Net proceeds to the Company, after issuance expenses, were $34.4 million. Subsequently, on July 12, 2000, in the second phase of the
Supplemental Investment, the Company received $15.3 million of additional capital. In return, the Company issued 18.0 million shares of
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock at a price of $0.85. At the same time, the 40.8 million shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and
the warrants to purchase 5.0 million shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock issued in phase one were canceled and the Company
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issued an equivalent number of share and warrants of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock in replacement thereof. Net proceeds to the
Company, after issuance expenses, were $14.3 million.

The Company has filed a registration statement with the SEC to distribute to the holders of the Company's Common Stock and Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock, in the form of a dividend of nontransferable subscription rights, to purchase shares of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock for $0.85 per share. The number of shares offered in the Rights Offering to Nonaffiliated Stockholders will be approximately
19.8 million shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock. The registration statement has not been declared effective by the SEC. The
Company has not commenced a distribution of any such rights. The Company is reviewing the proposed rights offering and may or may not
go forward with the rights offering.

As previously reported, in August 2000, the Company issued $1.3 million of preferred stock to certain current and former management
investors, and consultants to the Company.

The Company has previously raised $127.9 million through the sale of preferred stock in several phases to Capital Z and its designees,
certain members of the Company's management and holders of the Company's common stock. The Company raised $76.8 million in
February 1999, $25.0 million in August 1999 and $25.0 million ($4.2 million in a rights offering and $20.8 million from Capital Z
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pursuant to their standby commitment) in October 1999. In October 1999, the Company also issued $1.1 million of preferred stock to certain
management investors. In connection with the sale of stock to Capital Z, the Company also issued warrants to affiliates and employees of an
affiliate of Capital Z to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shares of the Company's common stock for $5.00 per share.

In December 1991, July 1993, June 1995 and October 1996, the Company effected public offerings and in April 1998 effected a private
placement of its common stock with net proceeds to the Company aggregating $217.0 million. In March 1995, the Company completed an
offering of its 10.5% Senior Notes due 2002 with net proceeds to the Company of $22.2 million. In February 1996, the Company completed
an offering of its 5.5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2006 with net proceeds to the Company of $112.0 million. In October 1996,
the Company completed an offering of its 9.125% Senior Notes due 2003 with net proceeds to the Company of $145.0 million. Under the
agreements relating to these debt issuances, the Company is required to comply with various operating and financial covenants including
covenants which may restrict the Company's ability to pay certain distributions, including dividends. At June 30, 2001, the Company did not
have the ability to pay such distributions and does not expect to have the ability to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $27.6 million at June 30, 2001. See "�Risk Factors�If we are unable to
maintain adequate financing sources or outside sources of cash are not sufficient, our ability to make and service loans will be impaired and
our revenues will suffer."

If the Company's access to warehouse lines, working capital or the securitization or whole loan markets is restricted, the Company may
have to seek additional equity. There can be no assurance that sufficient sources of liquidity will be available to the Company at any given
time or that favorable terms will be available. As a result of the limitations described above, the Company may be restricted in the amount of
loans that it will be able to produce and sell. This would negatively impact profitability and jeopardize the Company's ability to continue to
operate as a going concern.

Risk Management

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company, as it has from time to time, entered into agreements to hedge economic exposure to its
fixed rates loans held for sale. At June 30, 2001, the Company had $25.0 million of forward interest rate swap agreements in place to mitigate
interest rate exposure to its inventory and pipeline of fixed rate loans held for sale. Included in gain on sale of loans during the year ended
June 30, 2001 are charges of $6.0 million resulting from the Company's mark to the estimated fair value of interest rate swap agreements. The
Company continually monitors the interest rate environment and its hedging strategies. However, there can be no assurance that the earnings
of the Company would not be adversely affected during any period of unexpected changes in interest rates or prepayment rates, including
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additional charges to earnings on the Company's existing forward interest rate swap agreements or charges to earnings on future derivative
contracts into which the Company may enter. At June 30, 2000 and 1999, the Company had no derivative transactions in place.

Financial Instruments and Off-Balance Sheet Activities

Sale of Loans�Securitizations and Whole Loan Sales�Interest Rate Risk. The most significant variable in the determination of gain on sale
in a securitization is the spread between the weighted average coupon on the securitized loans and the pass-through interest rate. In the interim
period between loan origination or purchase and securitization of such loans, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk. The majority of
loans are securitized within 90 days of origination or purchase. However, a portion of the loans are held for sale or securitization for as long as
12 months (or longer, in very limited circumstances) prior to securitization or sale. If interest rates rise during the period that the mortgage
loans are held, the spread between the weighted average interest rate on the loans to be securitized and the pass-through interest rates on the
securities to be sold (the latter having increased as a result of market rate movements) would narrow. Upon securitization, this would result in
a

42

reduction of the Company's related gain on sale. The Company is also exposed to rising interest rates for loans originated or purchased which
are held pending sale in the whole loan market. From time to time, the Company mitigates exposure to rising interest rates through swap
agreements with third parties that sell United States Treasury securities not yet purchased and the purchase of Treasury Put Options. These
hedging activities help mitigate the risk of absolute movements in interest rates but they do not mitigate the risk of a widening in the spreads
between pass-through certificates and U.S. Treasury securities with comparable maturities.

The following table illustrates certain information about the Company's rate sensitive assets and liabilities at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

June 30, 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total Fair Value

(dollars in thousands)

Rate Sensitive Assets:
Loans held for sale:

Fixed rate mortgage
loans

$ 23,981 $ 32,478 $ 25,093 $ 19,031 $ 13,848 $ 32,138 $ 146,569 $ 149,670

Weighted average rate 9.72% 9.72% 9.72% 9.72% 9.72% 9.72% 9.72%
Variable rate mortgage
loans

$ 38,292 $ 79,126 $ 52,642 $ 38,404 $ 22,962 $ 38,294 $ 270,595 $ 277,957

Weighted average rate 9.88% 9.95% 10.47% 10.75% 10.74% 10.69% 10.34%
Rate Sensitive
Liabilities:
Borrowings:

Fixed rate $ 5,750 $ � $ 150,000 $ � $ 113,970 $ � $ 269,720 $ 118,354
Weighted average rate 7.62% 7.56% 5.5% 5.5% 5.50% � 7.62%
Variable rate $ 393,301 $ � $ � $ � $ � $ � $ 393,301 $ 393,301
Weighted average rate 5.02% � � � � � 5.02%

During the year ended June 30, 2001, certain interest rates generally declined from levels existing during the year ended June 30, 2000. At
June 30, 2001, the Company's rate sensitive assets, primarily fixed and variable rate mortgage loans held for sale, reflect these lower rates
when compared to interest rates applicable to such mortgate loans held at June 30, 2000. The Company's variable rate borrowings, which are
comprised of revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities, are indexed to the one-month LIBOR. At June 30, 2001, the one-month LIBOR
was 3.86%, a 278 basis point decline from the 6.64% one-month LIBOR at June 30, 2000. The weighted average interest rate on borrowings
outstanding under revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities at June 30, 2001 declined to 4.99% from 8.17% at June 30, 2000. During the
year ended June 30, 2001, interest expense on the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities declined from interest expense
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incurred during the year ended June 30, 2000 due to the decline in the one-month LIBOR and to reductions in pricing imposed by certain of its
lenders.

June 30, 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Thereafter Total Fair Value

(dollars in thousands)

Rate Sensitive Assets:
Loans held for sale:

Fixed rate mortgage
loans

$ 25,016 $ 36,144 $ 28,449 $ 20,152 $ 14,030 $ 31,789 $ 155,580 $ 162,780

Weighted average rate 10.79% 10.79% 10.79% 10.79% 10.79% 10.79% 10.79%
Variable rate mortgage
loans

$ 23,109 $ 73,837 $ 48,747 $ 30,913 $ 19,869 $ 37,866 $ 234,341 $ 245,187

Weighted average rate 10.50% 11.65% 12.85% 12.83% 12.82% 12.82% 10.48%
Rate Sensitive Liabilities:
Borrowings:

Fixed rate $ 5,750 $ 5,750 $ � $ 150,000 $ � $ 113,970 $ 275,470 $ 123,452
Weighted average rate 7.62% 7.56% 7.56% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 7.68%
Variable rate $ 366,975 $ 8,040 $ � $ � $ � $ � $ 375,015 $ 375,015
Weighted average rate 8.11% 7.99% � � � � 8.11%

During the year ended June 30, 2000, certain interest rates generally rose from levels existing during the year ended June 30, 1999. At
June 30, 2000, the Company's rate sensitive assets, primarily fixed and variable rate mortgage loans held for sale, reflect these higher rates
when compared to interest rates applicable to such loans held for sale at June 30, 1999. The Company's variable rate
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borrowings, which are comprised of revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities, are indexed to one-month LIBOR. At June 30, 2000 and
1999, the one-month LIBOR was 6.64% and 5.23%, respectively, and the weighted average interest rate on such borrowings was 8.17% and
6.69% at June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company's short-term borrowing costs increased
from those during the year ended June 30, 1999 due to the increase in LIBOR and to pricing increases imposed by certain of its lenders.

Rate Sensitive Derivative Financial Instruments

Residual Interests and MSRs. The Company had residual interests of $237.8 million and $291.0 million outstanding at June 30, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The Company also had MSRs outstanding at June 30, 2001 and 2000 in the amount of $6.5 million and $12.3 million,
respectively. Both of these instruments are recorded at estimated fair value at June 30, 2001 and 2000. The Company values these assets based
on the present value of future revenue streams net of expenses using various assumptions. The discount rate used to calculate the present value
of the residual interests and MSRs was 15.0% at June 30, 2001 and 2000. The weighted average life of the mortgage loans used for valuation
at both June 30, 2001 and 2000 was 3.1 years.

These assets are subject to risk in accelerated mortgage prepayment or losses in excess of assumptions used in valuation. Ultimate cash
flows realized from these assets would be reduced should prepayments or losses exceed assumptions used in the valuation. Conversely, cash
flows realized would be greater should prepayments or losses be below expectations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company's financial instruments recorded at contractual amounts that approximate market or fair
value primarily consist of loans held for sale, accounts receivables, and revolving warehouse and repurchase agreements. As these amounts
are short term in nature and/or generally bear market rates of interest, the carrying amounts of these instruments are reasonable estimates of
their fair values. The carrying amount of the Company's borrowings approximates fair value when valued using available quoted market
prices.
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Credit Risk. The Company is exposed to on-balance sheet credit risk related to its loans held for sale and residual interests. The Company
is exposed to off-balance sheet credit risk related to loans which the Company has committed to originate or purchase.

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk in the normal course of business. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit to borrowers and commitments to purchase loans from correspondents. The Company has a
first or second lien position on all of its loans, and the CLTV permitted by the Company's mortgage underwriting guidelines generally may not
exceed 90%. In some cases, the Company originates loans up to 97% CLTV that are insured down to approximately 67% with mortgage
insurance. The CLTV represents the combined first and second mortgage balances as a percentage of the appraised value of the mortgaged
property, with the appraised value determined by an appraiser with appropriate professional designations. A title insurance policy is required
for all loans.

Warehousing Exposure. The Company utilizes warehouse and repurchase financing facilities to facilitate the holding of mortgage loans
prior to securitization. As of June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company had total committed revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities
available in the amount of $790.3 million and $622.5 million, respectively, (net of a $9.7 million and $27.5 million outstanding under a
$35.0 million subline, respectively) and the total amounts outstanding related to these facilities was $393.3 million and $375.0 million at
June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities are typically for a term of one year or less and are
designated to fund mortgages originated within specified underwriting guidelines. The majority of the assets remain in the facilities for a
period of up to 90 days at which point they are securitized and sold to institutional investors. As
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these amounts are short term in nature and/or generally bear market rates of interest, the contractual amounts of these instruments are
reasonable estimates of their fair values.

Risk Factors

Our Common Stock could be delisted which would affect the liquidity of our Common Stock and our Preferred Stock.

The Common Stock is currently traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "AAM." However, we cannot assure you that
the Common Stock will remain listed on the New York Stock Exchange. We have received a notice from the New York Stock Exchange that,
due to the fact that the 30-day average trading price of our Common Stock was below $1.00, we do not meet the requirements to maintain an
ongoing listing on the New York Stock Exchange. We were also notified that the Common Stock may be subject to suspension or delisting.
On September 26, 2001, the 30-day average closing price of the Common Stock was $1.11. If the Common Stock were to be delisted the
liquidity of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock would be affected because you would no longer be able to convert shares of Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock into a listed security.

If we are unable to maintain adequate financing sources or outside sources of cash are not sufficient, our earnings and financial
position will suffer and jeopardize our ability to operate as a going concern.

We operate on a negative cash flow basis, which means our cash expenditures exceed our cash earnings. Therefore, we need continued
access to short- and long-term external sources of cash to fund our operations. Without continued access to cash, we may be restricted in the
amount of mortgage loans that we will be able to produce and sell, and our ability to operate as a going concern would be jeopardized.

We use cash primarily for:

��

mortgage loan originations and purchases before their securitization or sale in the secondary market;
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��

fees and expenses incurred for the securitization of mortgage loans;

��

cash reserve accounts or overcollateralization required in the securitization of loans;

��

tax payments generally due on recognition of non-cash gain on sale recorded in the securitizations of mortgage loans;

��

ongoing administrative and other operating expenses;

��

interest and principal payments under our revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities and other existing indebtedness; and

��

delinquent interest and other servicing related expenses we advance on the mortgage loans in our servicing portfolio.

We receive cash primarily from the following sources:

��

Revolving Borrowings. We borrow cash from various commercial loans, called revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities,
to fund the mortgage loans that we make or buy. We are required to pay down these revolving warehouse and repurchase
facilities when we sell our pledged mortgage loans. We currently have three revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities
with a total credit limit of $800.0 million. These revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities expire between October 2001
and June 2002.

��

Sale of Mortgage Loans. We sell some of our mortgage loans for cash in the whole loan sale market and we sell the rest of our
mortgage loans in securitization transactions. We receive the
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difference between the price at which we sell the mortgage loans and the amount owed on our revolving warehouse or
repurchase facilities for these loans in cash.

��

Sale of Residual Interest Assets Created in Securitizations. In a securitization transaction, we retain a subordinated interest,
called the residual interest, in the securitized mortgage loans. The holder of the residual interest is entitled to receive the excess
spread from the securitization, or the difference between the interest rate received on the mortgages, and the lower interest rate
paid the bondholders in the securitization transaction after specified overcollateralization amounts have been met. As the
holder of the residual interest, we also retain the right to any mortgage loans that are still outstanding after the bonds from the
securitization transaction are paid in full. At the time of the securitization transaction, we determine the value of the residual
interest as the present value of expected cash flows from the excess spread, and record the value of the residual interest as an
asset. During the year ended June 30, 2001, we sold the residual interest in our securitization transactions for cash under a
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residual forward sale facility and may sell future residual interests for cash until the expiration of that facility.

��

Sale of Accounts Receivable. When borrowers fail to make payments on their mortgage loans that we service, we are required
to advance the interest due to the bondholders. We also advance delinquent property taxes and property insurance on the
mortgage loans that we service if our borrowers do not pay them. These advances become accounts receivable. We are repaid
when the borrowers make their delinquent payments or when the loans are foreclosed upon and the mortgaged properties are
sold. We have, from time to time, sold these accounts receivable in order to recover our advances without having to wait until
borrowers make their payments or until the mortgage loans are foreclosed upon.

Our right to service loans may be terminated because of the high delinquencies and losses on the mortgage loans in our servicing
portfolio, which will hurt our earnings.

The value of our right to service most of our approximately $2.7 billion mortgage loan servicing portfolio (at June 30, 2001) is an asset on
our balance sheet called mortgage servicing rights. If we were to lose the right to service some or all of the mortgage loans in our portfolio, we
would be required to write down or write off our mortgage servicing rights, which would decrease our earnings and decrease our net worth
and the value of your investment.

Most of our securitization transactions are insured by certain commercial insurance companies called monoline insurers. The policies issued
by the monoline insurers protect the securitization bondholder against certain losses. The agreement that we generally enter into with the
monoline insurer allows the monoline insurer to terminate us as the servicer in certain cases. For example, we could be terminated as the
servicer for any transaction if the dollar amount or percentage of mortgage loans that are more than a certain number of days past due (usually
60 days, 90 days or more) or if the losses on mortgage loans in a particular securitization transaction are over a specified limit. Also, our
agreement with the monoline insurer for the securitization transactions we completed in 1999 and 2000 automatically terminates us
periodically unless the monoline insurer renews our servicing right.

As of June 30, 2001, we are over the limit for delinquent mortgage loans we service for ten of the securitization transactions and we are
over the limit for losses for all of those ten securitization transactions plus six additional securitization transactions. The monoline insurers
have the right to terminate us as the servicer for these securitization transactions as well as the securitization transactions from 2000 and 1999.

None of our servicing rights have been terminated so far, and our monoline insurers have not indicated that they plan to terminate us.
However, the monoline insurers do have the right to terminate us at any time with respect to those securitization transactions described above.
If we are terminated, we would be required to write-down or write-off our mortgage servicing rights.
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High delinquencies or losses on the mortgage loans in our servicing portfolio may decrease our cash flows.

In a securitization transaction, the excess spread is initially used to over-collateralize the bonds by paying down the principal balance of the
bonds below the principal balance of the mortgage loans collateralizing the bonds in the securitization transaction. Once the bonds are over-
collateralized to a certain amount, we start receiving the excess spread. If the mortgage loans are more delinquent or if the loss on mortgage
loans is greater than expected, the excess spread that we are supposed to receive from the securitization transaction is diverted to over-
collateralize the bonds further.

In addition, when borrowers do not make their required mortgage loan payments or do not pay their real estate taxes or insurance premiums
on loans that we service, we are required to advance those payments out of our working capital.

High losses on the mortgage loans in our servicing portfolio may decrease our earnings.
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All of the mortgage loans are secured by residential property. If borrowers do not repay their loans, we recover the principal and unpaid
interest and any servicing expenses incurred by us by foreclosing on the loans and selling the properties. If the value of the property
collateralizing a loan is not sufficient to cover the principal amount of the loan and related interest and servicing expenses in the event of
foreclosure of that loan and sale of the mortgaged property, we suffer a loss.

High loan loss levels may affect our net earnings. During the period of time we hold mortgage loans before we sell them, the entire loan
loss reduces our earnings. For mortgage loans we have sold in a securitization transaction, we apply certain assumptions to estimate losses to
determine the amount of non-cash gain on sale that we record at the closing of a securitization transaction. If actual loan losses exceed our
estimated losses, we may be required to write down our residual interests which would decrease our earnings and decrease our net worth and
the value of your investment. Higher than expected loan losses contributed to the write-downs of our residual interests of $33.6 million,
$77.5 million and $188.6 million during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The mortgage loans are subject to higher risks of loss, which may decrease our earnings.

We make many of our mortgage loans to borrowers in lower credit grades. In addition, many of the mortgage loans we make have an
adjustable interest rate feature. Both low credit grade mortgage loans and adjustable interest rate mortgage loans are more likely to result in a
loss. Low credit grade mortgage loans are more likely to become delinquent and result in a foreclosure loss because the borrowers on these
loans have a history of late payment or non-payment. Adjustable interest rate mortgage loans are more likely to become delinquent and result
in a foreclosure loss because the borrower is qualified for the loan at a reduced interest rate and the amount of the payment in most cases will
increase over time. If the payment amounts increase, borrowers may have difficulty making their payments. When loan loss rates are higher
than we expected, our earnings can be hurt.

If the mortgage loans we service pay off faster than expected, our earnings will decrease.

When we close a securitization transaction, we record the value of the residual interest asset based upon the present value of the excess
spread that we expect to receive from the mortgage loans until they are repaid. In order to estimate the present value of the expected excess
spread, we estimate (among other factors) how quickly the mortgage loans in the securitization transaction will pay off, which we call the
prepayment rate. An increase in the actual rate the mortgage loans pay off would reduce the number of loans that we service and the income
we earn from servicing. If the actual rate the mortgage loans pay off is higher than we expected, we are required to write-down the residual
interest that we recorded when we closed the securitization transaction.
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Our earnings may decrease by increases or decreases in interest rates.

An increase in long-term interest rates could, among other things:

��

decrease the demand for consumer credit in general; and

��

reduce the average size of mortgage loans that we make, by decreasing demand for refinancing lower-rate first mortgage loans
and increasing demand for second mortgage loans.

An increase in short-term interest rates could, among other things,

��

increase our borrowing costs, most of which are tied to those rates;
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��

reduce our excess spread and the income recognized in a securitization. In addition, during the time the securitization bonds
are outstanding, adjustable rate mortgage loans adjust based on an index or adjustment period different from the index and
adjustment period for bonds issued in a securitization. Adjustable rate mortgage loans are also subject to interest rate caps,
which limit the amount the interest rate can change during any given period and over the life of the loans. If interest rates
increase, the interest rates on the bonds issued in a securitization transaction could increase faster, without limitation by caps,
than the interest rates on our adjustable rate mortgage loans in the securitization, and

��

reduce the price paid for loans we made at lower interest rates in whole loan sales of mortgage loans.

A decline in long-term or short-term interest rates could increase the prepayment rate. Any of these changes in interest rates could hurt our
earnings.

An interruption or reduction in the securitization and whole loan market would hurt our financial performance.

In order for us to continue our mortgage loan origination and purchase operations, we must be able to sell the mortgage loans we make in
the securitization and whole loan markets. We use the cash proceeds from these sales to pay down our warehouse and repurchase facilities and
make new mortgage loans. The value of our mortgage loans depends on a number of factors, including general economic conditions, interest
rates and governmental regulations. In addition, we rely on institutional purchasers, such as investment banks, financial institutions and other
mortgage lenders, to purchase our mortgage loans in the whole loan market and the bonds issued in securitization transactions. We cannot be
sure that the purchasers will be willing to purchase mortgage loans on satisfactory terms or that the market for such loans will continue.
Adverse changes in the securitization and whole loan markets may affect our ability to securitize or sell our mortgage loans for acceptable
prices within a reasonable period of time, which would hurt our earnings.

If we are unable to sell a significant portion of our mortgage loans on at least a quarterly basis, our earnings would decrease.

We earn income on our mortgage loans when they are sold. Our strategy is to sell all of the mortgage loans we make at least quarterly.
However, market and other considerations could affect the timing of the sale of our mortgage loans. If we are not able to sell all of the
mortgage loans that we make during the quarter in which the loans are made, we would likely not be profitable for that quarter.
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Changes in the volume and cost of our broker loans may decrease our loan production and decrease our earnings.

We depend on independent mortgage brokers for many of our mortgage loans, called broker loans. A significant portion of our loan
production is made up of broker loans. Our earnings and financial condition could be hurt by a decrease in the volume or an increase in the
cost of our broker loans. A decrease in volume or an increase in the cost of broker loans could result from competition from other lenders and
purchasers of broker loans. The independent mortgage brokers are not obligated by contract or otherwise to do business with us and negotiate
with many lenders for each prospective borrower. We compete with these other lenders for the independent brokers' business on pricing,
service, loan fees, costs and other factors.

Our competitors in the mortgage banking market are often larger and have greater financial resources than we do, which will make it
difficult for us to successfully compete.

We face intense competition in the business of originating, purchasing and selling mortgage loans. Competition among industry participants
can take many forms, including convenience in obtaining a mortgage loan, customer service, marketing and distribution channels, amount and
term of the loan, mortgage loan origination fees and interest rates. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and have considerably
greater financial, technical and marketing resources and lower costs of capital than we do. In the future, we may also face competition from
government-sponsored entities, such as FannieMae and FreddieMac. These government-sponsored entities may enter the subprime mortgage
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market and target potential customers in our highest credit grades, who constitute a significant portion of our customer base. Additional
competition may lower the rates we can charge borrowers and increase the cost to purchase mortgage loans, which would decrease our
earnings on the sale or securitization of these loans. Increased competition may also reduce the volume of our mortgage loan originations and
mortgage loan sales and increase the demand for our experienced personnel and the potential that such personnel will leave for competitors.

Because a significant amount of the mortgage loans we service are in California and Florida, our operations could be hurt by
economic downturns or natural disasters in those states.

At June 30, 2001, 22.9% and 11.3% of the mortgage loans we serviced were collateralized by residential properties located in California
and Florida, respectively. Because of these concentrations in California and Florida, declines in those residential real estate markets may
reduce the values of the properties collateralizing the mortgage loans, increase foreclosures and losses and hurt our earnings.

California historically has been vulnerable to certain natural disaster risks, such as earthquakes and erosion-caused mudslides. Florida
historically has been vulnerable to certain other natural disasters, such as tropical storms and hurricanes. Since such natural disasters are not
typically covered by the standard hazard insurance policies maintained by borrowers, the borrowers have to pay for repairs due to such
disasters. Uninsured borrowers may not repair the property or may stop paying their mortgage loans if the property is damaged. This would
cause increased foreclosures and decrease our ability to recover losses on properties affected by such disasters, and hurt our earnings.

The risks associated with our business increase in any economic slowdown or recession.

Foreclosures and resulting losses generally increase during economic slowdowns or recessions. Periods of economic slowdown or recession
may also reduce real estate values. Any decline in real estate values reduces the ability of borrowers to use their home equity to borrow
money, and may reduce the demand for our mortgage loans. Declines in real estate values also increase losses in the event of foreclosure.
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We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans or indemnify investors if we breach representations and warranties, which would
hurt our earnings.

We are required under agreements governing our securitization transactions and whole loan sales to repurchase or replace mortgage loans
which do not conform to representations and warranties we make at the time of sale concerning breaches of fiduciary obligations,
misrepresentations, errors and omissions of our employees and officers, incomplete documentation and failures to comply with various laws
and regulations applicable to our business. In addition, we may be obligated, in certain whole loan sales, to buy back mortgage loans if the
borrower defaults on the first payment of principal and interest due. Such repurchase obligations could hurt our earnings and have a material
adverse effect on our financial position.

If we are unable to comply with mortgage banking rules and regulations, our ability to make mortgage loans may be restricted, which
would hurt our earnings.

Our operations are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and licensing by federal, state and local governmental authorities. Our
operations are also subject to various laws, regulations and judicial and administrative decisions. These rules and regulations, among other
things, impose licensing obligations on us, establish eligibility criteria for mortgage loans, prohibit discrimination, govern inspections and
appraisals of properties and credit reports on mortgage loan applicants, regulate collection, foreclosure and claims handling, investment and
interest payments on escrow balances and payment features, mandate certain disclosures and notices to borrowers and, in some cases, fix
maximum interest rates, fees and mortgage loan amounts. Failure to comply with these requirements can lead to loss of approved status,
certain rights of rescission for mortgage loans, class action lawsuits and administrative enforcement action.

Because our business is highly regulated, the laws, rules and regulations applicable to us are subject to regular modification and change.
There are currently proposed various laws, rules and regulations which, if adopted, could negatively impact our operations and our earnings.

Changes in the mortgage interest deduction could decrease our loan production and hurt our financial performance.
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Members of Congress and government officials have from time-to-time suggested the elimination of the mortgage interest deduction for
federal income tax purposes, either entirely or in part, based on borrower income, type of loan or principal amount. Because many of our
mortgage loans are made to borrowers for the purpose of consolidating consumer debt or financing other consumer needs, the competitive
advantages of tax deductible interest, when compared with alternative sources of financing, could be eliminated or seriously impaired by this
change. Accordingly, the reduction or elimination of these tax benefits could have a material adverse effect on the demand for mortgage loans
of the kind offered by us.

We will be unable to pay dividends on our capital stock for the foreseeable future.

The indentures governing certain of our outstanding indebtedness as well as our other credit agreements limit our ability to pay cash
dividends on our capital stock. Under the most restrictive of these limitations, we will be prevented from paying cash dividends on our capital
stock for the foreseeable future.

The concentrated ownership of our voting stock by our controlling stockholder may have an adverse effect on your ability to influence
the direction we will take.

At June 30, 2001, entities controlled by Capital Z beneficially owned senior preferred stock representing 47.2% of our combined voting
power in the election of directors and 91.4% of the
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combined voting in all matters other than the election of directors. Representatives or nominees of Capital Z have five seats on our nine person
Board of Directors, and as current members' terms expire Capital Z has the continuing right to appoint and elect four directors and nominate
one additional director. As a result of its beneficial ownership and Board representation, Capital Z has, and will continue to have, sufficient
power to determine our direction and policies. Also because of its ownership percentage, Capital Z may unilaterally force the conversion into
Common Stock of all shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock or the Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following financial statements are attached to this report:

Reports of Independent Auditors

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2001 and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant

Information regarding directors and executive officers of the Registrant will appear in the proxy statement for the 2001 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders or an amendment to this Form 10-K, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive compensation will appear in the proxy statement for the 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an
amendment to this Form 10-K, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will appear in the proxy statement for the 2001
Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendment to this Form 10-K, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions will appear in the proxy statement for the 2001 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders or an amendment to this Form 10-K, and is incorporated by this reference.
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PART IV

[Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.]

(a)
The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1)
Consolidated Financial Statements: Financial Statements listed as part of "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data."

(2)
Financial Statement Schedules: Financial Statement Schedules listed in the "Exhibit Index" as Exhibit 11.

(3)
Exhibits: All exhibits listed in the "Exhibit Index" are filed with this report or are incorporated by reference into this
report. Management contracts and compensatory plans or arrangements are filed, or incorporated by reference, as
exhibits 10.1 through 10.15.
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(b)
The Company filed the following Current Reports on Form 8-K during the last quarter of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001:

(1)
The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on April 12, 2001 (dated April 9, 2001) reporting the receipt of notice
by the New York Stock Exchange of listing status.

(2)
The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on May 15, 2001 (dated March 31, 2001) reporting delinquency and
loss statistics in the loan servicing portfolio of Aames Capital Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as well as the Company's third fiscal quarter operating results.

(3)
The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on May 24, 2001 (dated April 30, 2001) reporting delinquency and
loss statistics in the loan servicing portfolio of Aames Capital Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION (Registrant)

Dated: September 28, 2001 By:
/s/ A. JAY MEYERSON

A. Jay Meyerson
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ A. JAY MEYERSON
A. Jay Meyerson

Chief Executive Officer,
Director (Principal Executive
Officer)

September 28, 2001

/s/ RONALD J. NICOLAS, JR.

Ronald J. Nicolas, Jr.

Executive Vice
President�Finance and Chief
Financial Officer

September 28, 2001

/s/ JENNE K. BRITELL
Jenne K. Britell

Director September 28, 2001
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/s/ DAVID H. ELLIOTT

David H. Elliott
Director September 28, 2001

/s/ DANIEL C. LIEBER
Daniel C. Lieber

Director September 28, 2001

/s/ ERIC C. RAHE
Eric C Rahe

Director September 28, 2001

/s/ MANI A. SADEGHI

Mani A. Sadeghi
Chairman of the Board and
Director

September 28, 2001
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/s/ ROBERT A. SPASS
Robert A. Spass

Director September 28, 2001

/s/ JOSEPH R. TOMEI
Joseph R. Tomei

Director September 28, 2001

/s/ STEPHEN E. WALL
Stephen E. Wall

Director September 28, 2001
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors

Aames Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Aames Financial Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
June 30, 2001 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended June 30, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based upon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Aames Financial Corporation and subsidiaries at June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.
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/s/ ERNST &
YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles, California
September 14, 2001

F�1

AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

June 30,

2001

June 30,

2000

Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,583,000 $ 10,179,000
Loans held for sale, at lower of cost or market 417,164,000 398,921,000
Accounts receivable 71,052,000 52,713,000
Residual interests, at estimated fair value 237,838,000 290,956,000
Mortgage servicing rights, net 6,545,000 12,346,000
Equipment and improvements, net 11,076,000 10,522,000
Prepaid and other 14,139,000 14,727,000

Total assets $ 785,397,000 $ 790,364,000

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Borrowings $ 269,720,000 $ 275,470,000
Revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities 393,301,000 375,015,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 44,385,000 46,931,000
Accrued dividends on convertible preferred stock 23,975,000 10,054,000
Income taxes payable 8,131,000 8,416,000

Total liabilities 739,512,000 715,886,000

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Stockholders' equity:

Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share; 500,000 shares
Authorized; none outstanding

� �

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share;
29,704,000 and 100,000,000 shares authorized; 26,704,000 shares
outstanding

27,000 27,000

Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share;
61,230,000 and 107,105,700 shares authorized; 20,327,000 and
60,977,000 shares outstanding

20,000 61,000

Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share;
108,566,000 shares authorized; 59,412,000 shares outstanding

59,000 �

Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share; 400,000,000 shares
authorized; 6,264,000 and 6,235,000 shares outstanding

6,000 6,000
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Additional paid-in capital 417,486,000 401,652,000
Retained deficit (371,713,000) (327,268,000)

Total stockholders' equity 45,885,000 74,478,000

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 785,397,000 $ 790,364,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Revenue:
Gain on sale of loans $ 73,435,000 $ 48,098,000 $ 44,855,000
Write-down of residual interests and mortgage servicing
rights

(33,600,000) (82,490,000) (194,551,000)

Origination fees 47,430,000 37,951,000 39,689,000
Loan servicing 14,989,000 15,654,000 23,329,000
Interest 86,477,000 94,569,000 70,525,000

Total revenue, including write-down of residual
interests and mortgage servicing rights

188,731,000 113,782,000 (16,153,000)

Expenses:
Personnel 98,404,000 93,239,000 80,167,000
Production 19,034,000 26,718,000 40,061,000
General and administrative 49,044,000 58,489,000 60,635,000
Interest 50,884,000 52,339,000 44,089,000
Provision for uncollectible receivables � 2,000,000 37,044,000

Total expenses 217,366,000 232,785,000 261,996,000

Loss before income taxes (28,635,000) (119,003,000) (278,149,000)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,889,000 3,369,000 (30,182,000)

Net loss $ (30,524,000) $ (122,372,000) $ (247,967,000)

Basic and diluted net loss to common stockholders $ (44,445,000) $ (130,498,000) $ (249,917,000)

Net loss per common share:
Basic $ (7.11) $ (21.02) $ (40.31)

Diluted $ (7.11) $ (21.02) $ (40.31)
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Dividends per common share $ � $ � $ 0.17

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 6,251,000 6,209,000 6,200,000

Diluted 6,251,000 6,209,000 6,200,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Series B

Convertible

Preferred

Stock

Series C

Convertible

Preferred

Stock

Series D

Convertible

Preferred

Stock

Common

stock

Additional

Paid-in

Capital

Retained

Earnings

(Deficit)

Total

At June 30, 1998 $ � $ � $ � $ 6,000 $ 249,876,000 $ 54,169,000 $ 304,051,000

Issuance of Common Stock � � � � 265,000 � 265,000

Issuance of Series B

Convertible Preferred Stock
27,000 � � � 26,677,000 � 26,704,000

Issuance of Series C

Convertible Preferred Stock
� 15,000 � � 65,460,000 � 65,475,000

Dividends paid on Common

Stock
� � � � � (1,022,000) (1,022,000)

Dividends accrued on

Convertible Preferred Stock
� � � � � (1,950,000) (1,950,000)

Net loss � � � � � (247,967,000) (247,967,000)

At June 30 1999 27,000 15,000 � 6,000 342,278,000 (196,770,000) 145,556,000

Issuance of Common Stock � � � � 2,000 � 2,000

Issuance of Series C

Convertible Preferred Stock
� 46,000 � � 59,372,000 � 59,418,000

Dividends accrued on

Convertible Preferred Stock
� � � � � (8,126,000) (8,126,000)

Net loss � � � � � (122,372,000) (122,372,000)

At June 30, 2000 27,000 61,000 � 6,000 401,652,000 (327,268,000) 74,478,000

Issuance of Series C

Convertible Preferred Stock
� � � � 898,000 � 898,000

Cancellation of Series C

Convertible Preferred Stock
� (41,000) � � (34,639,000) � (34,680,000)

Issuance of Series D

Convertible Preferred Stock
� � 59,000 � 49,575,000 � 49,634,000

Dividends accrued on

Convertible Preferred Stock
� � � � � (13,921,000) (13,921,000)

Net loss � � � � � (30,524,000) (30,524,000)
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At June 30, 2001 $ 27,000 $ 20,000 $ 59,000 $ 6,000 $ 417,486,000 $ (371,713,000) $ 45,885,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Operating activities:
Net loss $ (30,524,000) $ (122,372,000) $ (247,967,000)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 4,494,000 5,637,000 5,673,000
Gain on sale of loans � (34,596,000) (35,716,000)
Write-down of residual interests 33,600,000 77,490,000 186,451,000
Accretion of residual interests (41,029,000) (50,692,000) (34,671,000)
Mortgage servicing rights originated � (5,175,000) (6,194,000)
Mortgage servicing rights amortized 5,801,000 8,757,000 11,431,000
Mortgage servicing rights charged-off � 5,000,000 8,100,000
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Loans held for sale originated or purchased (2,371,630,000) (2,079,278,000) (2,193,635,000)
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale 2,353,387,000 2,240,226,000 1,831,968,000
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable (18,339,000) 4,251,000 (5,892,000)
Residual interests 60,547,000 49,169,000 39,976,000
Prepaid and other 588,000 286,000 2,007,000
Income tax refund receivable � 1,737,000 (1,737,000)

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,546,000) (1,646,000) (1,409,000)
Accrued dividends on convertible preferred
stock

13,921,000 8,126,000 1,950,000

Deferred income taxes (285,000) 597,000 (25,351,000)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 7,985,000 107,517,000 (465,016,000)
Investing activities:

Purchases of equipment and improvements (5,048,000) (2,664,000) (5,229,000)
Financing activities:

Net proceeds from issuance of convertible preferred
stock

15,852,000 59,418,000 92,179,000

Proceeds from sale of common stock or exercise of
options

� 2,000 265,000

Reductions in borrowings (5,750,000) (5,750,000) (5,770,000)
Proceeds from (reductions in) revolving warehouse
and repurchase facilities

18,286,000 (160,982,000) 394,985,000
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Accrued dividends on convertible preferred stock (13,921,000) (8,126,000) (1,950,000)
Dividends paid � � (1,022,000)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 14,467,000 (115,438,000) 478,687,000

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,404,000 (10,585,000) 8,442,000
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 10,179,000 20,764,000 12,322,000

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 27,583,000 $ 10,179,000 $ 20,764,000

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid $ 51,585,000 $ 53,392,000 $ 41,769,000
Income taxes paid (refunded) $ 791,000 $ 1,028,000 $ (4,470,000)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

Aames Financial Corporation (the "Company" or "Aames") operates in a single industry segment as a consumer finance company primarily
engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the business of originating, purchasing, selling, and servicing home equity mortgages collateralized by
single family residences. The Company's principal market is borrowers whose financing needs are not being met by traditional mortgage
lenders for a variety of reasons, including the need for specialized loan products or credit histories that may limit such borrowers' access to
credit. Loans originated by the Company are extended on the basis of the equity in the borrower's property and the creditworthiness of the
borrower.

At June 30, 2001, Aames operated 100 retail branches, five regional broker offices and one National Loan Center throughout the United
States. The Company originates mortgage loans on a nationwide basis through its two production channels�retail, broker and, to a much lesser
extent, through affiliations on the Internet. During the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company originated $2.4 billion and
$2.1 billion of mortgage loans, respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company sold and securitized $2.3 billion
and $2.2 billion of mortgage loans, respectively. The aggregate outstanding balance of mortgage loans serviced by the Company was
$2.7 billion and $3.6 billion at June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively (which includes $184.0 million and $265.4 million of mortgage loans at
June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively, serviced for the Company by unaffiliated subservicers under subservicing agreements).

At June 30, 2001, Specialty Finance Partners ("SFP"), a partnership controlled by Capital Z Financial Services Fund, II, L.P., a Bermuda
partnership (together with SFP, "Capital Z") owned preferred stock representing approximately 47.2% of the Company's combined voting
power in the election of directors and approximately 91.4% of the combined voting power in all matters other than the election of directors.
Representatives or nominees of Capital Z have five seats on the Board of Directors, and as current members' terms expire, Capital Z has the
continuing right to appoint and elect four directors and nominate one additional director. As a result of its beneficial ownership and Board
representation, Capital Z has, and will continue to have, sufficient power to determine the Company's direction and policies.

Principles of Accounting and Consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of Aames and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of no more than three months to be cash equivalents.

F�6

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are mortgage loans the Company plans to securitize or sell as whole loans and are carried at the lower of aggregate cost
or market value. Market value is determined by current investor yield requirements.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of interest advances and other servicing related advances to securitization trusts. Accounts
receivable also includes cash distributions receivable from securitization trusts, servicing and late fees receivable, accrued interest and other
miscellaneous receivables. Miscellaneous receivables includes the Company's limited partnership interest in a partnership created for
monetizing advances made to securitization trusts.

In its capacity as servicer of loans in the securitization trusts, the Company is required to advance the interest due to the bondholders of the
securitization trusts when delinquent borrowers fail to make timely payments on their mortgage loans. The Company is also required to
advance to the securitization trusts foreclosure-related expenses and delinquent real estate taxes and property insurance on loans in the
securitization trusts. In its capacity as servicer of the loans in the securitization trusts, the Company is not required to make advances which
would not be expected to be recoverable from the securitization trusts. The Company records interest advances and servicing advances as
accounts receivable on its consolidated balance sheets at the time the cash advance is made and until recovered. The Company, as servicer, is
entitled to recover these advances from regular monthly cash flows from the securitization trusts, including monthly payments, loan pay-offs
and liquidation proceeds from the sale of real estate collateral underlying the mortgage loan if the properties are foreclosed upon and sold. The
Company periodically evaluates the realizability of its interest advances, servicing advances and other accounts receivable, and charges
income for amounts deemed uncollectible. As a means of improving its liquidity, the Company has entered into agreements with unaffiliated
third parties pursuant to which they make certain, but not all, of the servicing advances directly to the securitization trusts. Additionally, as a
means of recovering interest advances and servicing advances made by the Company prior to the time borrowers remit their payments or the
mortgaged property is foreclosed upon and sold, from time to time, the Company will sell its interest advances and servicing advances.

Equipment and Improvements, Net

Equipment and improvements, net, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are
being recorded utilizing straight-line and accelerated methods over the following estimated useful lives:

Computer hardware Five years
Furniture and fixtures Five to seven years
Computer software Three years
Leasehold improvements Lower of life of lease or asset

Revenue Recognition
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The Company depends on its ability to sell loans in the secondary markets, as market conditions allow, to generate cash proceeds to pay
down its warehouse and repurchase facilities and fund new
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originations and purchases. The ability of the Company to sell loans in the secondary market on acceptable terms is essential for the
continuation of the Company's loan origination and purchase operations.

The Company records a sale of loans and the resulting gain on sale of loans when it surrenders control over the loans to a buyer (the
"transferee"). Control is surrendered when (i) the loans are isolated from the Company, put presumptively beyond the reach of the Company
and its creditors, even in a bankruptcy or other receivership, (ii) either the transferee has the right to pledge or exchange the loans or the
transferee is a qualifying special purpose entity and the beneficial interest holders in the qualifying special purpose entity have the right to
pledge or exchange the beneficial interests, and (iii) the Company does not maintain effective control over the loans through an agreement to
repurchase or redeem the loans before their maturity or through an agreement that entitles the Company to repurchase or redeem loans that are
not readily obtainable.

In a securitization, the Company conveys loans to a separate entity (such as a trust) in exchange for cash proceeds and a residual interest in
the trust. The cash proceeds are raised through an offering of pass-through certificates or bonds evidencing the right to receive principal
payments and interest on the certificate balance or bonds. The non-cash gain on sale of loans represents the difference between the proceeds
(including premiums) from the sale, net of related transaction costs, and the allocated carrying amount of the loans sold. The allocated
carrying amount is determined by allocating the original cost basis amount of loans (including premiums paid on loans purchased) between
the portion sold and any retained interests (residual interests), based on their relative fair values at the date of transfer. The residual interests
represent, over the estimated life of the loans, the present value of the estimated future cash flows based upon the expected timing that the
estimated future cash flows would be released from the securitization trusts to the Company, i.e., the "cash out" method for residual interest
valuation. These cash flows are determined by the excess of the weighted average coupon on each pool of loans sold over the sum of the
interest rate paid to investors, the contractual servicing fee, a monoline insurance fee, if any, and an estimate for loan losses. Each agreement
that the Company has entered into in connection with its securitizations requires the overcollateralization of the trust that may initially be
funded by cash deposited by the Company. The amount and timing of the cash flows expected to be released from the securitization trusts
considers the impact of the applicable delinquency and loss limits specified in the securitization agreements.

The Company determines the present value of the cash flows at the time each securitization transaction closes using certain estimates made
by management at the time the loans are sold. These estimates include: (i) a future rate of prepayment; (ii) credit losses; and (iii) a discount
rate used to calculate present value. The future cash flows represent management's best estimate. Management monitors performance of the
loans and changes in the estimates are reflected in earnings. There can be no assurance of the accuracy of management's estimates.

Additionally, upon sale or securitization of servicing retained mortgages, the Company capitalizes mortgage servicing rights. The Company
determines fair value based on the present value of estimated net future cash flows related to servicing income. In estimating net future cash
flows from servicing income, the Company first determines net future servicing income which is future servicing revenue less future servicing
expense over the expected life of the servicing arrangement. Servicing revenue includes contractual servicing fees and other ancillary fees,
prepayment and late fees. Servicing expenses consist of direct servicing costs and allocated indirect expenses relating to the servicing
operations. Servicing expenses also includes an estimate for the interest cost to carry advances to the securitization trusts
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which approximates 20 basis points of the mortgage loans in the securitization trusts. The Company uses a 15% discount rate to calculate the
present value of net future cash flows relating to servicing income. The servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of
estimated net future servicing fee income. The Company periodically reviews capitalized servicing rights for valuation impairment. The
Company's periodic valuation of its servicing rights considers the amount of advances which have been made and that are expected to be
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made, an estimate for the cost to carry such advances, and the estimated period of time over which the advances will be outstanding. At
June 30, 2001 and 2000, there were no valuation allowances on mortgage servicing rights.

On a quarterly basis, the Company reviews the fair value of the residual interests by analyzing its prepayment, credit loss and discount rate
assumptions in relation to its actual experience and current rates of prepayment and credit loss prevalent in the industry. The Company may
adjust the value of the residual interests or take a charge to earnings related to the residual interests, as appropriate, to reflect a valuation or
write-down of its residual interests based upon the actual performance of the Company's residual interests as compared to the Company's key
assumptions and estimates used to determine fair value. Although management believes that the assumptions to estimate the fair values of its
residual interests are reasonable, there can be no assurance as to the accuracy of the assumptions or estimates.

Advertising Expense

The Company's policy is to charge advertising costs to expense when incurred.

Income Taxes

Taxes are provided on substantially all income and expense items included in earnings, regardless of the period in which such items are
recognized for tax purposes. The Company uses an asset and liability approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company's financial statements or tax returns. In
estimating future tax consequences, the Company generally considers all expected future events other than the enactment of changes in the tax
law or rates.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share of common stock is computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during each period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share includes the effects of the conversion of shares related to the Company's 5.5%
Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2006, preferred stock convertible into common shares as well as the average number of stock
options outstanding, except when their effect is antidilutive.

All references in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, consolidated statements of operations and notes to consolidated financial
statements to the number of common shares and per common share amounts have been restated to reflect the one-for-five reverse stock split
effected on April 14, 2000.

Risk Management

The Company's earnings may be directly affected by the level of and fluctuation in interest rates in the securitization trusts. No derivative
financial instruments were in place at and during the year ended June 30, 2001 applicable to the securitization trusts.
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From time to time, the Company hedges its fixed rate loans and some variable rate certificates or bonds in the securitization trusts. The
Company has utilized hedge products that included the sale of U.S. Treasury securities not yet purchased, interest rate futures contracts,
interest rate caps and the purchase of options to sell U.S. Treasury securities. The use, amount, and timing of derivative financial instruments
are determined by members of the Company's senior management.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts related to 2000 and 1999 have been reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

Adoption of Recent Accounting Standards
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In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." ("SFAS 133"). SFAS
No. 133, as amended, requires companies to record derivatives on the balance sheets as assets and liabilities, measured at fair value. Gains and
losses resulting from changes in the values of those derivatives would be accounted for in earnings. Depending on the use of the derivative
and the satisfaction of other requirements, special hedge accounting may apply. From time to time, the Company utilizes derivative financial
instruments, such as forward interest rate swap agreements, to mitigate interest rate risk related to rising interest rates. Commencing July 1,
2000, derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. The Company's derivative
financial instruments are not designated, and do not qualify, as accounting hedges. Therefore, changes in the fair value of the derivative
financial instruments are recorded currently in operations as realized or incurred.

Note 2. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Cash Held in Trust

At June 30, 2001, the Company had corporate cash and cash equivalents available of $27.6 million, none of which was restricted. Cash
equivalents include $18.9 million of overnight investments at June 30, 2001.

The Company services loans on behalf of customers. In such capacity, certain funds are collected and placed in segregated trust accounts
which totaled $74.6 million and $90.4 million at June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. These accounts and corresponding liabilities are not
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Note 3. Loans Held for Sale

The following summarizes the composition of the Company's loans held for sale by interest rate type at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

June 30,

2001 2000

Fixed rate mortgages $ 146,569,000 $ 155,580,000
Adjustable rate mortgages 270,595,000 243,341,000

Loans held for sale $ 417,164,000 $ 398,921,000
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Note 4. Accounts Receivable

At June 30, 2001 and 2000, accounts receivable were comprised of the following:

2001 2000

Interest and servicing advances $ 51,552,000 $ 31,849,000
Servicing and late fees 5,246,000 6,484,000
Cash due from CZI under Residual Facility 4,847,000 �

Cash due from securitization trusts 3,532,000 9,555,000
Accrued interest and other 5,875,000 4,825,000

Accounts receivable $ 71,052,000 $ 52,713,000

The balance due from CZI was received subsequent to June 30, 2001.

During the year ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company entered into arrangements with an investment bank pursuant to which the
investment bank purchased certain cumulative advances and undertook the obligation to make a substantial portion of the Company's advance
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obligations on its securitized pools. As a result of these arrangements, during the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company received
approximately $10.0 million and $15.0 million, respectively, in cash.

Note 5. Residual Interests

The activity in the residual interests during the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 is summarized as follows:

Year Ended

June 30,

2001 2000

Residual interests, at beginning of year $ 290,956,000 $ 332,327,000
Gain on sale of securitized loans � 34,596,000
Accretion 41,029,000 50,692,000
Cash received from trusts (60,547,000) (49,169,000)
Write-down of residual interests (33,600,000) (77,490,000)

Residual interests, at end of year $ 237,838,000 $ 290,956,000

The Company sold to CZI for $45.1 million of cash the residual interests created in the $1.2 billion of securitizations closed during the year
ended June 30, 2001.

The actual performance of the Company's residual interests as compared to the key assumptions and estimates used to evaluate their
carrying value resulted in write-downs to the residual interests of $33.6 million and $77.5 million during the years ended June 30, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The $33.6 million write-down recorded during the year ended June 30, 2001, reflected the Company's unfavorable assessment of credit loss
and delinquency experience of certain mortgage loans in its securitized trusts.

The $77.5 million write-down recorded during the year ended June 30, 2000 was comprised of unfavorable adjustments of $86.3 million
taken in light of higher than expected credit loss experience and $12.3 million due to the effects of rising interest rates on excess spreads
which were offset by a favorable $21.1 million adjustment due to actual prepayment rate trends compared to prepayment rate assumptions.
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The following table summarizes certain information about the securitization trusts at June 30, 2001 and 2000 (dollars in thousands):

June 30,

2001 2000

Aggregate principal balance of securitized loans at the time of the
securitizations

$ 7,016,205 $ 7,016,205

Outstanding principal balance of securitized loans 1,998,650 2,879,578
Outstanding principal balance of pass-through certificates or bonds of the
securitization trusts

1,795,278 2,626,422

Weighted average coupon rates of:
Securitized loans 11.28% 11.29%
Pass-through certificates or bonds 6.14% 7.04%

In connection with its securitization transactions, the Company initially deposits with a trustee cash or the required overcollateralization
amount and subsequently deposits a portion of the excess spread collected on the related loans. Residual interests at June 30, 2001 and 2000
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include overcollateralization of approximately $203.4 million and $253.2 million, respectively. These amounts are subject to increase, as
specified in the related securitization documents. To the extent the overcollateralization exceeds specified levels, distributions are made to the
Company.

There is no active market with quoted prices for the Company's residual interests. Therefore, the Company estimates the fair value of its
residual interests based upon the present value of expected future cash flows based on certain prepayment, credit loss and discount rate
assumptions. There can be no assurance that the Company could realize the fair value of its residual interests in a sale.

Certain historical data and key assumptions and estimates used by the Company in its June 30, 2001 and 2000 reviews of the residual
interests were the following:

June 30,

2001 2000

Prepayments:
Actual weighted average annual prepayment rate, as a
percentage of outstanding principal balance of securitized loans

29.9% 30.9%

Estimated annual prepayment rates, as a percentage of
outstanding principal balance of securitized loans:

Fixed rate loans 22.3% to 29.5% 22.3% to 29.5%
Adjustable rate loans 37.2% to 46.9% 36.7% to 46.3%

Estimated weighted average life of securitized loans 3.1 years 3.1 years
Credit losses:

Actual credit losses to date, as a percentage of original
principal balances of securitized loans

3.9% 2.6%

Future estimated prospective credit losses, as a percentage of
original principal balances of securitized loans

1.4% 2.0%

Total actual and estimated prospective credit losses, as a
percentage of original principal balance of securitized loans

5.3% 4.6%

Total actual credit losses to date and estimated prospective
credit losses (dollars in thousands)

$368,479 $323,634

Discount rate 15.0% 15.0%

To estimate the effects of changes in interest rates on the coupon rates of the adjustable rate mortgage loans, the Company considers current
underlying indices, periodic interest rate caps, lifetime
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interest rate caps and contractual interest rate floors. In determining the interest rates for the floating rate pass-through certificates in the
securitization trusts, the Company uses each certificates' specific spread over the one-month LIBOR.

The total actual and estimated prospective credit losses, as a percentage of original principal balance of securitized loans, in selected
securitization trusts at June 30, 2001 were as follows:

Mortgage Loans

Securitized In:

Actual and

Estimated

Prospective

Credit Losses(1) at

June 30, 2001
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1999 4.32%
1998 5.49
1997 5.06
1996 5.94
1995 6.31
(1)

Static pool losses are calculated by adding the actual and estimated future credit losses and dividing that sum by the balance of the
mortgage loans in each securitization trust at the time of securitization. The amount shown for each year is the weighted average for all
securitizations during that period.

Actual and estimated credit losses vary between securitization trusts due to differing credit quality i.e., credit grade, production channel and
other factors considered by the Company when evaluating credit loss estimates.

As of June 30, 2001, the effect on the fair value of the residual interests caused by immediate adverse changes in the assumptions shown
above would be as follows (dollars in thousands):

Prepayment speed assumption:
Impact of a +10% change $ 229,351
Impact of a +20% change 221,510

Credit loss assumption:
Impact of a +10% change 229,451
Impact of a +20% change 221,093

Residual interest cash flows discount rate:
Impact of a +10% change 232,972
Impact of a +20% change 227,379

Interest rate on adjustable mortgage loans:
Impact of a +10% change 217,449
Impact of a +20% change 195,948

These sensitivities are hypothetical, are presented for illustrative purposes only, and should be used with caution. The changes in the
assumptions regarding prepayments and credit losses were applied to the cash flows of the mortgage loans underlying the retained interests.
Changes in assumptions regarding discount rate were applied to the cash flows of the securitization trusts. Generally, changes in fair value
based upon a change in assumptions cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the change in fair value
may not be linear. The changes in assumptions presented in the table above were calculated without changing any other assumptions. In
reality,
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changes in one assumption may result in changes in another, which may magnify or offset the sensitivities presented. For example, changes in
market interest rates may simultaneously impact the prepayment, credit loss and the discount rate assumptions.

The table below summarizes cash flows received from (paid to) securitization trusts during the year ended June 30, 2001:

Proceeds from new securitizations $ 1,227,023,000
Cash received from CZI 45,100,000
Servicing fees received 10,416,000
Purchases of delinquent and foreclosed loans (4,049,000)
Servicing advances made (55,053,000)
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Servicing advances received 25,350,000
Servicing advances sold $ 10,000,000

The principal balance of loans past due 90 days or more in loans held for sale and in the securitization trusts was $10.1 million and
$232.6 million, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company charged-off $2.0 million of loans held for sale and net losses
on liquidations of mortgage loans in the securitization trusts were $89.8 million, which includes the purchase amount of delinquent and
foreclosed loans.

Note 6. Residual Forward Sale Facility

On August 31, 2000, the Company entered into a Residual Forward Sale Facility (the "Residual Facility") with Capital Z Investments, L.P.,
a Bermuda partnership ("CZI"), an affiliate of Capital Z, the Company's largest shareholder. Pursuant to the terms of the Residual Facility, the
Company may sell up to $75.0 million of its residual interests for cash in future securitizations through the earliest of (i) September 30, 2002,
(ii) the full utilization of the $75.0 million Residual Facility amount, or (iii) a termination event, as defined in the Residual Facility.

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company securitized $1.2 billion of mortgage loans and sold for $45.1 million of cash the residual
interests created therein to CZI under the Residual Facility.

Included in accounts receivable at June 30, 2001 was $4.8 million due to the Company from CZI all of which was received subsequent to
June 30, 2001. At June 30, 2001, the available capacity remaining for future use under the Residual Facility was $29.9 million.

In connection with obtaining the Residual Facility, the Company paid a facility fee of $3.0 million to CZI. Other costs capitalized in
connection with obtaining the Residual Facility were $300,000. These costs were capitalized and are being amortized to gain on sale of loans
based upon the ratio of the dollar amount of the residual interests sold to CZI under the Residual Facility to the total Residual Facility amount.
During the year ended June 30, 2001, amortization charged to gain on sale of loans was $1.9 million, of which $1.7 million relates to the
Facility fee paid to CZI. At June 30, 2001, remaining unamortized costs relating to the Residual Facility were $1.4 million and are included in
prepaid and other assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2001.
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Note 7. Mortgage Servicing Rights, Net

The activity in mortgage servicing rights during the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 is summarized as follows:

June 30,

2001 2000

Mortgage servicing rights, net, at beginning of year. $ 12,346,000 $ 20,928,000
Mortgage servicing rights:

Originated � 5,175,000
Amortized (5,801,000) (8,757,000)
Charged-off � (5,000,000)

Mortgage servicing rights, net, at end of year $ 6,545,000 $ 12,346,000

The mortgage servicing rights are amortized over the estimated lives of the loans to which they relate.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company reduced the carrying value of its mortgage servicing rights by $5.0 million reflecting
management's estimate of the effects of increased costs associated with the Company's increased early intervention efforts in servicing
delinquencies in the servicing portfolio.
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Note 8. Equipment and Improvements, Net

Equipment and improvements, net, consisted of the following at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

June 30,

2001 2000

Computer hardware $ 16,082,000 $ 12,119,000
Furniture and fixtures 8,632,000 8,578,000
Computer software 7,972,000 7,802,000
Leasehold improvements 2,378,000 2,525,000

Total 35,064,000 31,024,000
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (23,988,000) (20,502,000)

Equipment and improvements, net $ 11,076,000 $ 10,522,000
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Note 9. Borrowings

Borrowings consisted of the following at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

June 30,

2001 2000

9.125% Senior Notes due November 2003, guaranteed by
each of the restricted subsidiaries (as defined in the
Indenture) of the Company

$ 150,000,000 $ 150,000,000

5.5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due March
2006, convertible into 6.1 million shares of common
stock at $78.15 per share. The 5.5% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures are subordinate to all existing
and future senior indebtedness (as defined in the
Indenture) of the Company

113,970,000 113,970,000

10.5% Senior Notes due 2002, principal payment of
$5,750,000 required on February 1, 2002

5,750,000 11,500,000

Borrowings $ 269,720,000 $ 275,470,000

Maturities on borrowings are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
2002 $ 5,750,000
2003 �

2004 150,000,000
2005 �

2006 113,970,000

Total borrowings $ 269,720,000
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In October 1996, the Company completed an offering of its 9.125% Senior Notes due November 2003 which are guaranteed by all but one
of the Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries. The guarantees are joint and several, full, complete and unconditional. There are no restrictions
on the ability of such subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Company in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances. The Company is a
holding company with limited assets or operations other than its investments in its subsidiaries. Separate financial statements of the guarantors
are not presented because the aggregate total assets, net income (loss) and net equity of such subsidiaries are substantially equivalent to the
total assets, net income (loss) and net equity of the Company on a consolidated basis.

At June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company had unamortized debt issuance costs of $3.4 million and $4.6 million, respectively, related to the
initial issuance of the $23.0 million of 10.5% Senior Notes due February 2002, the initial issuance of the $115.0 million of 5.5% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures due March 2006 and the initial issuance of the $150.0 million of 9.125% Senior Notes due November 2003.
Unamortized debt issuance costs are included in prepaid and other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are amortized
to expense over the terms of the related debt issuances.
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Note 10. Revolving Warehouse and Repurchase Facilities

Amounts outstanding under committed revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities consisted of the following at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

June 30,

2001 2000

Warehouse facility with a non-revolving $35.0 million subline(1), from an
investment bank, collateralized by loans held for sale

At June 30, 2001:
$300.0 million facility, expires January 31, 2002; bears interest at 1.0%
to 1.75% over one month LIBOR, depending on collateral; includes
$9.7 million outstanding under the subline

$ 207,395,000 $ �

At June 30, 2000:
$200.0 million facility; expired January 31, 2001; bore interest at 1.5%
over one month LIBOR; included $27.5 million outstanding under the
subline

� 48,236,000

Repurchase facility from an investment bank, collateralized by loans held for
sale

At June 30, 2001:
$300.0 million facility, expires October 26, 2001; generally bears
interest at 0.9% to 1.5% over one month LIBOR, depending on
collateral

65,566,000 �

At June 30, 2000:
$250.0 million facility; expired October 27, 2000; bore interest at 1.15%
over one month LIBOR

� 186,371,000

Repurchase facility from an investment bank, collateralized by loans held for
sale:

At June 30, 2001:
$200.0 million facility; expires June 30, 2002; bears interest at 1.0% to
1.75% over one month LIBOR, depending on document status

120,340,000 �

At June 30, 2000:
$200.0 million facility; expired June 30, 2001; bore interest at 1.5% to
2.0% over one month LIBOR, depending on document status

� 140,408,000
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Amounts outstanding under revolving warehouse and repurchase
facilities

$ 393,301,000 $ 375,015,000

(1)
The subline is secured by certain residual interests of the Company and bears interest at 3.75% over one month LIBOR. The subline had
an initial 364-day term through January 31, 2001, was renewed for an additional 364-day term to January 31, 2002; and thereafter, is
renewable on a month-to-month basis for an additional six month period contingent upon, in all cases, if certain repayment, financial and
performance conditions are met by the Company.

The Company utilizes revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities to finance the origination of mortgage loans prior to sale or
securitization. At June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company had total committed revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities available in the
amount of $790.3 million and $622.5 million, respectively, net of $9.7 million and $27.5 million outstanding on a $35.0 million
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non-revolving subline. Revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities typically have a term of less than one year and are designated to fund
mortgage loans originated within specified underwriting guidelines. All of the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities
contain provisions requiring the Company to meet certain periodic financial covenants, including, among other things, minimum liquidity,
stockholders' equity, leverage and net income levels. Additionally, all of the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities fund
less than 100% of the principal balance of the mortgage loans financed requiring the Company to use working capital to fund the remaining
portion of the principal balance of the mortgage loans. The majority of the mortgage loans originated under the facilities remain in the
facilities for a period generally of up to 90 days at which point they are securitized or sold to institutional investors.

At June 30, 2001 and 2000, one month LIBOR was 3.86% and 6.64%, respectively.

The weighted-average interest rates on borrowings outstanding under revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities at June 30, 2001 and
2000 were approximately 4.99% and 8.17%, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the average amount of borrowings under
revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities was $407.5 million and the maximum outstanding under such lines at any one time during the
year ended June 30, 2001 was $650.7 million.

At June 30, 2001, included in prepaid and other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet was approximately $2.0 million of
deferred commitment fees relating to the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities remaining to be amortized to expense over
their remaining terms.

Note 11. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999:

June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Current:
Federal $ 1,400,000 $ 2,200,000 $ 1,200,000
State 489,000 572,000 400,000

1,889,000 2,772,000 1,600,000

Deferred:
Federal � 597,000 (24,155,000)
State � � (7,627,000)
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� 597,000 (31,782,000)

Total $ 1,889,000 $ 3,369,000 $ (30,182,000)
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Current and deferred taxes payable were comprised of the following at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

June 30,

2001 2000

Current taxes payable:
Federal $ 1,199,000 $ 1,199,000
State 800,000 800,000

1,999,000 1,999,000

Deferred taxes payable:
Federal 6,132,000 6,417,000
State � �

6,132,000 6,417,000

Total $ 8,131,000 $ 8,416,000

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities consisted of
the following at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000

Deferred tax liabilities:
Mark-to-market $ 6,979,000 $ 6,979,000
State taxes 9,616,000 9,035,000

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 16,595,000 16,014,000

Deferred tax assets:
Residual interests (71,208,000) (72,356,000)
Net operating loss carry forward (86,517,000) (72,109,000)
Other, net (2,894,000) (2,894,000)

Total gross deferred tax assets (160,619,000) (147,359,000)
Tax valuation allowance 150,156,000 137,762,000

Net deferred tax liabilities $ 6,132,000 $ 6,417,000
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The estimated effective tax rates for the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were as follows:

2001

Permanent

Differences

Tax Affected

Permanent

Differences

Effective

Tax Rate

Calculation

Tax provision 1,889,000
Loss before income taxes (28,635,000)
Effective tax rate (6.6)%

Federal statutory rate (35.0)%
Tax valuation allowance $ 29,560,000 $ 12,394,000 43.3%
Other, net 117,000 49,000 (1.7)

6.6%

2000

Permanent

Differences

Tax Affected

Permanent

Differences

Effective

Tax Rate

Calculation

Tax provision $ 3,369,000
Loss before income taxes (119,003,000)
Effective tax rate (2.8)%

Federal statutory rate (35.0)%
State pre-tax after permanent difference $ (11,334,000) $ (7,378,000) (6.2)
Tax valuation allowance 126,512,000 52,123,000 43.8
Other, net 200,000 130,000 .2

2.8%

1999

Permanent

Differences

Tax Affected

Permanent

Differences

Effective

Tax Rate

Calculation

Tax benefit $ (30,182,000)
Loss before income taxes (278,149,000)
Effective tax rate 10.9%

Federal statutory rate (35.0)%
State pre-tax after permanent difference $ � $ (21,142,000) (7.6)
Disallowed compensation 3,000,000 1,050,000 .4
Tax valuation allowance � 87,174,000 31.3
Other, net 253,000 89,000 �

(10.9)%
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The investment in the Company by Capital Z resulted in a change of control for income tax purposes thereby potentially limiting the
Company's ability to utilize net operating loss carry forwards and certain other future deductions.

The Company's residual interest in real estate mortgage investment conduits ("REMIC") creates excess inclusion income for tax purposes
which may give rise to a current income tax payable. Available loss carry forwards and operating losses may not reduce taxable income below
excess inclusion income earned from the REMIC.

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space under operating leases expiring at various dates through February 2012. Total rent expense related to such
operating leases amounted to $8.8 million, $9.7 million and $9.9 million during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Rent expense during the year ended June 30, 2001 was net of sublease rental income of $83,000. Certain leases have provisions for renewal
options and/or rental increases at specified increments or in relation to increases in the Consumer Price Index (as defined).

At June 30, 2001, future minimum rental payments required under non-cancelable operating leases and minimum receipts under subleases
that have initial or remaining terms in excess of one year are as follows:

Minimum Rental

Payments

Minimum Sublease

Receipts

Net Minimum Rental

Payments

2002 $ 8,722,000 $ 877,000 $ 7,845,000
2003 7,834,000 904,000 6,930,000
2004 5,403,000 868,000 4,535,000
2005 4,300,000 868,000 3,432,000
2006 3,813,000 868,000 2,945,000
Thereafter 23,068,000 4,989,000 18,079,000

$ 53,140,000 $ 9,374,000 $ 43,766,000

Litigation

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in Fowler et. al. v. Aames Financial Corporation and Aames Funding
Corporation, a putative class action filed on approximately May 11, 2001, in U.S. District Court of California, case 2:01cv04330. Plaintiff, a
former loan executive, filed this putative class action on behalf of himself and current and former loan executives employed by the Company,
and seeks certification of class, damages consisting of alleged unpaid overtime, statutory liquidated damages and waiting time penalties,
attorneys' fees and costs, restitution, disgorgement of profits and injunctive relief. Plaintiff alleges that during his employment, he and other
loan executives worked in excess of 8 hours per day or 40 hours per week, and he contends that the Company willfully failed to pay overtime
in violation of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act and, with respect to loan executives employed in California, in violation of the California
Labor Code and Business &
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Professional Code §17200, et seq. Aames filed an answer denying the claims and asserting various affirmative defenses on September 4, 2001.
No trial date has been set.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in Alvarez et. al. v. American General Finance, et. al (including One Stop
Mortgage, Inc., Aames Funding Corp., d/b/a/ Aames Home Loan), a putative class action filed on approximately July 20, 2001, in U.S.
District Court, Northern District, Eastern Div., Illinois, case No. 01C4648. Plaintiff, a former customer, filed this action on behalf of herself
and all wholesale borrowers who paid a broker's fee and whose brokers also received a form of compensation from the Company generally
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known as a "yield spread premium." Plaintiff alleges that such yield spread premium payments constituted kickbacks and/or illegal referrals
under RESPA. The complaint seeks certification of the class, unspecified compensatory and statutory damages, attorneys' fees and costs,
disgorgement of profits and injunctive relief. The Company has been granted an open extension of time to respond, pending plaintiff's
decision on the Company's request that plaintiff submit to arbitration pursuant to the terms of the loan documents. No trial date has been set.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in Aslami et. al. v. Aames Home Loan, Aames Financial Corporation, et. al., a
putative class action filed on approximately April 11, 2000, in Los Angeles County Superior Court, case No. BC228027. Plaintiffs, former
customers, filed this action on behalf of themselves and all persons who applied for or obtained loans from the Company during the preceding
four years. Plaintiffs allege various state law claims premised their contention that the Company routinely "upcharges" third party fees and
underdiscloses annual prepayment rates. On September 19, 2001, Plaintiffs amended their complaint to assert claims based upon the payment
of a yield spread premium to their broker. Plaintiffs contend that such yield spread premium payments constitute kickbacks and/or illegal
referrals under RESPA. Plaintiffs seek certification of the class, damages consisting of fees paid to mortgage brokers, statutory treble
damages, attorneys' fees and costs, restitution, disgorgement of improperly collected charges, punitive damages and injunctive relief. Aames'
response to the amended complaint is due October 19, 2001. Trial has been set for February 26, 2002.

The Company cannot predict the outcome of these matters. The Company intends to vigorously defend these actions; however, the
Company believes that an unfavorable outcome of one or more of the above cases could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company is subject to various claims made against it by borrowers, private investors and others
arising from, among other things, losses that are claimed to have been incurred as a result of alleged breaches of fiduciary obligations,
misrepresentations, errors and omissions of employees and officers of the Company, incomplete documentation and failures by the Company
to comply with various laws and regulations applicable to its business. The Company believes that liability with respect to any of these
currently asserted claims or legal action is not likely to be material to the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations;
however, any claims asserted or legal action in the future may result in expenses which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Note 13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following disclosures of the estimated fair value of financial instruments as of June 30, 2001 and 2000 are made by the Company using
available market information, historical data, and
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appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required to interpret market and historical data to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in
a current market exchange.

The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

June 30, 2001 June 30, 2000

Carrying

Amount

Estimated

Fair Value

Carrying

Amount

Estimated

Fair Value

Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,583,000 $ 27,583,000 $ 10,179,000 $ 10,179,000
Loans held for sale 417,164,000 427,627,000 398,921,000 407,967,000
Accounts receivable 71,052,000 71,052,000 52,713,000 52,713,000
Residual interests, at estimated fair value 237,838,000 237,838,000 290,956,000 290,956,000
Mortgage servicing rights, net 6,545,000 6,545,000 12,346,000 12,346,000
Borrowings 269,720,000 118,354,000 275,470,000 123,452,000
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Revolving warehouse and repurchase
facilities

393,301,000 393,301,000 375,015,000 375,015,000

The fair value estimates as of June 30, 2001 and 2000 are based on pertinent information available to management as of the respective
dates. Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, such amounts have
not been revalued for purposes of these consolidated financial statements since those dates and, therefore, current estimates of fair value may
differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.

The following describes the methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating fair values:

��

Cash and cash equivalents are based on the carrying amount which is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.

��

Loans held for sale are based on current investor yield requirements.

��

Accounts receivable are generally short term in nature, therefore the carrying value approximates fair value.

��

Residual interests and mortgage servicing rights are based on the present value of expected future cash flows using
assumptions based on the Company's historical experience, industry information and estimated rates of future prepayment and
credit loss.

��

Borrowings are based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to the Company
for debt of the same remaining maturities.

��

Amounts outstanding under revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities are short term in nature and generally bear market
rates of interest and, therefore, are based on the carrying amount which is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

��

Derivatives are based on quoted market prices.
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Note 14. Employee Benefit Plans

401(k) Retirement Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan, a defined contribution plan. Substantially all employees are eligible to
participate in the plan after reaching the age of 21 and completion of six months of service. Contributions are made from employees' elected
salary deferrals. Effective January 1, 2001, the Company began contributing to the plan on a matching basis, however, the Company's
contribution remains at its option. Under the match, the Company's contributions are made based upon 50% of an employee's contribution up
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to a maximum of 6% of an employee's salary. Prior thereto, employer contributions were determined at the beginning of the plan year at the
option of the Company. Contributions made to the Plan by the Company during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $558,000,
$321,000 and $-0-, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

During the year ended June 30, 1999, the Company terminated the Deferred Compensation Plan which had been implemented in April 1997
and no contributions to the plan were made by the Company.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company's Board of Directors adopted the Aames Financial Corporation Stock Option Plan (the "1999 Plan") as of February 10, 1999,
as amended, which was subsequently approved by the stockholders during the year ended June 30, 2000. The 1999 Plan supercedes the
Company's 1991 Stock Incentive Plan, 1995 Stock Incentive Plan, 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, 1997 Stock Option Plan and 1997 Non-
Qualified Stock Option Plan. The 1999 Plan provides for the issuance of options to purchase shares of the Company's common stock to
officers, key executives and consultants of the Company. Under the 1999 Plan, the Company may grant incentive and non-qualified options to
eligible participants that may vest immediately on the date of grant or in accordance with a vesting schedule, as determined in the sole
discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Company's Board of Directors. The exercise price is based on the 20-day average closing
price of the common stock on the day before the date of grant. Each option plan provides for a term of 10 years. Subject to adjustment for
stock splits, stock dividends and other similar events at June 30, 2001 there were 2,922,401 shares reserved for issuance under the 1999 Plan.

At June 30, 1999, the Company had reserved 563,936 shares of the common stock for issuance under its 1991 Stock Incentive Plan, 1995
Stock Incentive Plan, 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, 1997 Stock Option Plan and 1997 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (the "Terminated
Plans"). The Terminated Plans were terminated by the Company in February 1999; however, options granted prior to February 1999 under the
Terminated Plans will remain outstanding until they expire. The Company has also granted options outside of these plans, on terms
established by the Compensation Committee.

F�24

A summary of the Company's stock option plans and arrangements as of June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 and changes during the years then
ended are as follows:

Option

Shares

Option

Price Range

2001
Outstanding at beginning of year 3,128,779 $ 1.00-147.90

Granted 11,990,817 0.85-1.60
Exercised � �

Forfeited (1,872,690) 0.85-144.60

Outstanding at end of year 13,246,906 $ 0.85-147.90

2000
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,005,100 $ 0.95-147.90

Granted 2,873,078 3.95-5.00
Exercised (5,797) 1.00-1.00
Forfeited (743,602) 1.00-144.60

Outstanding at end of year 3,128,779 $ 1.00-147.90
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1999
Outstanding at beginning of year 914,134 $ 0.95-148.50

Granted 182,336 66.90
Exercised (10,653) 19.45-39.70
Forfeited (80,717) 15.20-148.50

Outstanding at end of year 1,005,100 $ 0.95-147.90

The number of options exercisable at June 30, 2001 and 2000, was 3,162,238 and 893,994, respectively. The weighted-average fair value of
options granted during 2001 and 2000 was $0.71 and $1.96, respectively.

The following table summarizes additional information about the Company's options outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of

Exercise Prices

Options

Outstanding

Weighted-Average

Remaining Life

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price

Number

Exercisable

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price

$0.85- 1.24 9,966,533 9.2 $0.90 2,170,941 $0.91
$1.34- 1.60 650,000 9.5 1.44 130,000 1.44
$4.65- 5.00 2,087,809 7.4 5.00 371,819 5.00

$15.20- 19.45 8,669 3.0 18.77 8,415 18.88
$23.90- 23.90 1,499 2.2 23.90 1,499 23.90
$39.70- 59.05 203,954 0.5 56.03 203,918 56.03
$65.00- 71.65 168,107 6.6 67.02 120,219 67.08

$100.00-147.90 160,335 1.0 105.73 155,427 104.82

$0.85- 147.90 13,246,906 8.7 $4.55 3,162,238 $12.65
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The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based compensation
plans and arrangements. No compensation cost has been recognized for its stock option plan. If compensation cost for the stock option plan
and arrangements had been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under this plan consistent with the method
prescribed by SFAS 123, the Company's net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share would have been reflected to the pro forma amounts
indicated below:

June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Net loss:
As reported $ (30,524,000) $ (122,372,000) $ (247,967,000)
Pro forma (32,063,000) (122,619,000) (249,552,000)

Basic and diluted net loss to common stockholders:
As reported $ (44,445,000) $ (130,498,000) $ (249,917,000)
Pro forma (45,984,000) (130,745,000) (251,502,000)

Basic loss per share:
As reported (7.11) (21.02) (40.31)
Pro forma (7.36) (21.06) (40.56)

Diluted loss per share:
As reported (7.11) (21.02) (40.31)
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Pro forma (7.36) (21.06) (40.56)

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

June 30,

2001 2000

Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility 122.00% 83.00%
Risk-free interest rate 5.65% 5.97%
Expected life of option 4.5 years 4.5 years

Note 15. Stockholders' Equity

Year ended June 30, 2001

During the year ended June 30, 2001, in the second of a two-phase $50.0 million investment by Capital Z which occurred on July 12, 2000,
the Company issued 18.0 million of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the "Series D Stock"), to Capital Z for
$0.85 per share, its stated value, and received $15.3 million. Net proceeds, after issuance expenses, were $14.3 million. At the same time,
Capital Z exchanged the 40.8 million shares of Series C Stock and the warrants to purchase 5.0 million shares of Series C Stock received in
the first phase for an equal number of shares and warrants to purchase Series D Stock.

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company issued 179,000 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock in satisfaction of
amounts owed for services rendered by former consultants to the Company. Additionally, during the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company
issued 588,000 shares of
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Series D Convertible Preferred Stock to the Company's chief executive officer under his employment agreement at $0.85 per share and
received approximately $500,000.

Year ended June 30, 2000

During the year ended June 30, 2000, Company received $60.8 million of additional capital. Net proceeds to the Company, after issuance
expenses, were $59.4 million. The additional capital was received in a series of transactions with SFP, a partnership controlled by Capital Z,
existing shareholders and management of the Company. Such transactions are summarized below.

In the first of a two-phase $50.0 million investment by Capital Z, the Company issued 40.8 million shares of Series C Convertible Preferred
Stock, par value $0.001 per share, (the "Series C Stock") for $0.85 per share to Capital Z and received $34.7 million, and issued warrants to
Capital Z to purchase 5.0 million shares of the Series C Stock at $0.85 per share. Net proceeds to the Company, after issuance expenses, were
$34.3 million.

The Company issued 212,000 shares of the Series C for $5.00 per share and received $1.1 million from members of management. No
issuance expenses were incurred in this transaction.

The Company received $4.2 million of additional capital from existing owners of the Company's Common Stock in connection with its
rights offering of up to 6.2 million shares of the Series C Stock to stockholders (the "Rights Offering"). The Company also received
$20.8 million of additional capital from Capital Z in connection with Capital Z's standby commitment to purchase up to $25.0 million
unsubscribed shares in the Rights Offering (the "Standby Commitment"). The Company issued an aggregate of 5.0 million shares in
connection with the Rights Offering and the Standby Commitment. Net proceeds to the Company, after issuance expenses, were
approximately $24.0 million.
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Year ended June 30, 1999

During the year ended June 30, 1999, Company received $102.1 million of additional capital. Net proceeds to the Company, after issuance
expenses, were $92.4 million. The additional capital was received in a series of transactions with Capital Z, designees of Capital Z,
management of the Company, existing shareholders and holders of the Company's convertible debt. The Company also issued warrants to
purchase 500,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock for $5.00 per share to Capital Z and its affiliates. Such transactions are summarized
below.

The Company issued 27,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series B Stock") and 15,000 shares of the Series C Stock
and received $101.8 million. Of the $101.8 million, $100.0 million was received from Capital Z, $1.8 million was received from certain
designees of Capital Z and the Company's former Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company pursuant to his employment contract
with the Company. Net proceeds to the Company, after issuance expenses, were $92.2 million. Of the $101.8 million of additional capital,
$25.0 million was received in cash on August 3, 1999, but was recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 1999 as
an account receivable and as stockholders' equity pursuant to the FASB's Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 85-1.

Common Stock of $265,000 was received through the exercise of Common Stock options or through the conversion of the Company's 5.5%
Convertible Subordinated Debentures.
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Other information

All authorized and outstanding Series B and Series C Stock share amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
retroactively restated to reflect the 1,000-for-1 stock split effected by the Company on September 24, 1999. Outstanding Common Stock and
Series C share amounts and per share information in the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been retroactively restated for
the 1-for-5 reverse stock split effected on April 14, 2000.

The Company's Series B, Series C and Series D Stock rank senior in right to dividends and liquidation to all classes of the Company's
common and other preferred stock. The Series C and Series D Stock does not have the right to vote for directors.

Through March 31, 2001, the Company's Series B, Series C and Series D Stock accrued and accumulated dividends at a rate of 6.5% which
increased to 8.125% on April 1, 2001. At June 30, 2001, aggregate accrued and unpaid dividends on the Company's convertible preferred
stock were $24.0 million. In November 1998, the Board of Directors decided to suspend cash dividends on the common stock until the
Company's earnings and cash flows improved. Credit agreements generally limit the Company's ability to pay dividends if such payment
would result in an event of default under the agreements or would otherwise cause a breach of a net worth or liquidity covenants. The
Company's Indenture relating to its 9.125% Senior Notes due November 2003 prohibits the payment of dividends if the aggregate amount of
such dividends since October 26, 1996 exceeds the sum of (a) 25% of the Company's net income during that period (minus 100% of any
deficit); (b) net cash proceeds from any securities issuances; and (c) proceeds from the sale of certain investments. The Company's Indenture
of Trust relating to its 10.50% Senior Notes due February 2002 restricts the payment of dividends to an amount which does not exceed
(i) $2.0 million, plus (ii) 50% of the Company's aggregate net income for each fiscal year after the year ended June 30, 1994 (minus 100% of
net losses for any fiscal year), plus (iii) 100% of the net proceeds received by the Company on offerings of its equity securities after
December 31, 1994. Under the most restrictive of these limitations, the Company will be prohibited from paying cash dividends on its capital
stock for the foreseeable future.

Note 16. Transactions Involving Directors, Officers and Affiliates

During the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company incurred management fees and out-of-pocket expenses in the amount
of $1.5 million, $2.5 million and $1.2 million, respectively, relating to advisory services rendered by Equifin Capital Management, LLC
("Equifin"), a company whose three principal officers also serve as directors of the Company. In connection with phase one of the
$50.0 million investment of Series D Stock in the Company by Capital Z during the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company paid an $800,000
transaction fee to Equifin. Such transaction fee was deducted from the capital proceeds received. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the
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Company paid a $250,000 transaction fee to Equifin in connection with capital contributions made during that period and the transaction fee
was deducted from capital proceeds received.

The Residual Facility with CZI is more fully discussed in Note 6 included herein.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company paid a $1.0 million fee to Capital Z for Capital Z's agreement to act as guarantor on a
subline to one of the Company's revolving warehouse and repurchase facilities. In connection with capital contributions during the year ended
June 30, 1999,
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the Company paid a transaction fee and a commitment fee of $1.0 million and $2.0 million, respectively, to Capital Z and such fees were
deducted from capital proceeds received. During the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company reimbursed Capital Z $227,000,
$81,000 and $262,000, respectively, for out-of-pocket expenses.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company concluded severance arrangements with certain former members of management that
had employment or severance agreements that provided for enhanced severance and other benefits upon a change in control, as defined in the
agreements. Included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2000 is approximately
$4.0 million of expense related to such settlements.

During the year ended June 30, 1999, and as a means to induce its then president to enter into a new employment agreement, the Company
paid the president a bonus of approximately $1.5 million, the receipt of which the president had deferred since June 1998.

During the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company funded $1.4 million, $0.3 million and $7.0 million, respectively, of
mortgage loans for certain of its directors and officers. At June 30, 2001, there were $1.1 million of such mortgage loans included in loans
held for sale in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet pending disposition. At June 30, 2000, there were no such mortgage loans in
loans held for sale in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet pending disposition. Mortgage loans made during the year ended June 30,
1999 were made under the Executive and Director Loan Program under which directors and executive officers of the Company were entitled
to obtain a mortgage loan from the Company at the Company's cost of funds plus 25 basis points as determined by an approved, independent
investment banking firm. The aforementioned Plan was terminated during 1999.

Note 17. Derivative Financial Instruments

Securitizations�Hedging Interest Rate Risk

The most significant variable in the determination of gain on sale in a securitization is the spread between the weighted average coupon on
the securitized loans and the pass-through interest rate. In the interim period between loan origination or purchase and securitization of such
loans, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk. The majority of loans are securitized within 90 days of origination or purchase. However, a
portion of the loans are held for sale or securitization for as long as twelve months (or longer, in very limited circumstances) prior to
securitization. If interest rates rise during the period that the mortgage loans are held, the spread between the weighted average interest rate on
the loans to be securitized and the pass-through interest rates on the securities to be sold (the latter having increased as a result of market
interest rate movements) would narrow. From time to time, the Company mitigates this exposure through agreements with third parties that
sell United States Treasury securities not yet purchased, forward interest rate swap agreements and the purchase of Treasury put options.
These hedging activities help mitigate the risk of absolute movements in interest rates but they do not mitigate the risk of a widening in the
spreads between pass-through certificates and U.S. Treasury securities with comparable maturities.

Included in gain on sale of loans during the year ended June 30, 2001 is $6.0 million of derivative losses on forward interest rate swap
agreements which closed during the period. The Company entered into the forward interest rate swap agreements to mitigate interest rate
exposure to its inventory and
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pipeline of fixed rate loans held for sale prior to closing its securitization transactions. At June 30, 2001, the Company had $25.0 million
(notional) of forward interest rate swap agreements in place to mitigate interest rate exposure prior to the sale of its inventory and pipeline of
fixed rate mortgage loans held for sale.

At June 30, 2000 and 1999, the Company did not have any derivatives.

Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to on-balance sheet credit risk related to its loans held for sale and residual interests. The Company is exposed to
off-balance sheet credit risk related to loans which the Company has committed to originate or purchase and securitized loans.

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk in the normal course of business, including commitments
to extend credit to borrowers. The Company has a first or second lien position on all of its loans, and the combined loan-to-value ratio
("CLTV") permitted by the Company's mortgage underwriting guidelines generally may not exceed 90%. In some cases, the Company
originates loans up to 97% CLTV that are insured down to 67% CLTV with mortgage insurance. The CLTV represents the combined first and
second mortgage balances as a percentage of the appraised value of the mortgaged property at the time of origination, with the appraised value
determined by an appraiser with appropriate professional designations. A title insurance policy is required for all loans.
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Note 18. Net Loss Per Common Share

The following table sets forth information regarding net loss per common share for the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 (dollars
and weighted average number of shares in thousands):

Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Basic net loss per common share:
Net loss $ (30,524) $ (122,372) $ (247,967)
Plus: Accrued dividends on Series B and C Convertible

Preferred Stock
(13,921) (8,126) (1,950)

Basic net loss to common shareholders (44,445) (130,498) (249,917)
Plus: Interest on convertible subordinated debentures � � �

Diluted net loss to common shareholders $ (44,445) $ (130,498) $ (249,917)

Basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,251 6,209 6,200

Basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,251 6,209 6,200
Plus: Options � � �

Convertible Shares � � �

Diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,251 6,209 6,200

Loss per share:
Basic $ (7.11) $ (21.02) $ (40.31)

Diluted $ (7.11) $ (21.02) $ (40.31)
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Note 19. Provisions for Uncollectible Receivables

During the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company recorded provisions for uncollectible receivables of $-0- million,
$2.0 million and $37.0 million, respectively.

Note 20. Advertising Expense

The Company charged to advertising expense $9.0 million, $17.6 million and $29.0 million during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively.
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Note 21. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

A summary of unaudited quarterly operating results for the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 follows (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Three Months Ended,

Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Mar. 31 June 30

2001
Revenue $ 59,913 $ 57,014 $ 18,714 $ 53,090
Income (loss) before income taxes 729 1,536 (32,317) 1,417
Net income (loss) 693 1,011 (33,216) 988
Net loss per common share�diluted (0.40) (0.36) (5.88) (0.51)
2000
Revenue $ 60,938 $ 12,916 $ (1,991) $ 41,919
Income (loss) before income taxes 1,366 (46,345) (60,932) (13,092)
Net income (loss) 791 (47,695) (61,465) (14,003)
Net loss per common share�diluted (0.10) (8.00) (10.25) (2.64)

Note 22. Subsequent Events (Unaudited)

On September 25, 2001, the Company sold $175.0 million of loans held for sale in the form of a securitization and sold for cash the residual
interest created in the securitization to CZI. The Company also sold its servicing rights and the rights to prepayment penalties under the
securitization for cash to an unrelated, independent mortgage servicing company.
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2000, granted by the Registrant to Specialty Finance Partners (2)

10.24
Historical Advance Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 10, 1999, between ACC and
Steamboat Financial Partnership I, L.P. (3)

10.25(a)
Historical Advance Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 17, 1999, between ACC and
Steamboat Financial Partnership I, L.P. (3)

10.25(b)
Limited Partnership Agreement of Steamboat Financial Partnership I, L.P., dated as of June 10,
1999, between Random Properties Acquisition Corp. IV, ACC and Greenwich Capital
Derivatives, Inc. (3)

10.25(c) Amendment No. 1 to Exhibit 10.25(b) (21)

10.26
Historical Advance Purchase Agreement between ACC and Steamboat Financial Partnership,
L.P., dated as of February 24, 2000 (21)

10.27
Historical Advance Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 5, 2001, between ACC and
Steamboat Financial Partnership I, L.P. (26)
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10.28
Delinquency Advance Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 13, 1999, between ACC and
Fairbanks Capital Corp. (3)

10.29
Sub-Servicing Agreement 1997-1, dated as of April 21, 1999, between ACC and Fairbanks
Capital Corp. (3)

10.30
Sub-Servicing Agreement 1996-D, dated as of April 21, 1999, between ACC and Fairbanks
Capital Corp. (3)

10.31(a)
Master Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of October 29, 1999, between Aames Capital
Corporation and Morgan Stanley Mortgage Capital, Inc. (23)

10.31(b) First Amendment dated as of December 30, 1999, to Exhibit 10.31(a) (24)
10.31(c) Amendment No. 2 dated as of April 4, 2000 to 10.31(a) (24)
10.31(d) Third Amendment, dated as of June 6, 2000, to Exhibit 10.31(a) (20)
10.31(e) Fourth Amendment, dated as of June 8, 2000, to Exhibit 10.31(a) (2)
10.31(f) Fifth Amendment, dated as of August 31, 2000, to Exhibit 10.31(a) (2)
10.31(g) Sixth Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001, to Exhibit 10.31(a) (25)
10.31(h) Seventh Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001, to Exhibit 10.31(a) (25)
10.31(i) Eighth Amendment, dated as of July 13, 2001 to Exhibit 10.31(a) (25)

10.32(a)
First Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001, to Master Repurchase Agreement Governing
Purchases and Sales of Mortgage Loans, dated as of December 1, 2000, between Aames Capital
Corporation, Registrant's wholly owned subsidiary and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB (25)

10.32(b)
Second Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001, to Master Repurchase Agreement Governing
Purchases and Sales of Mortgage Loans, dated as of December 1, 2000, between Aames Capital
Corporation, Registrant's wholly owned subsidiary and Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB (25)

10.33(a)
Warehouse Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2000 as Amended and
Related to and Including January 24, 2001, by and between ACC Aames Funding Corporation
and Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc. (26)

10.33(b) Amendment Number One, dated as of May 1, 2001 to Exhibit 10.33 (a) (25)
10.33(c) Amendment Number Two, dated as of March 30, 2001, to Exhibit 10.33(a) (25)

10.33(d)
Guaranty, dated as of January 24, 2001, between Registrant and Greenwich Capital Financial
Products, Inc., with respect to Exhibit 10.33(a) (26)

10.33(e) Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 30, 2001, with respect to Exhibit 10.33(d) (25)

10.34
Residual Forward Sale Facility, dated as of August 31, 2000, between Registrant and Capital Z
Investments L.P. (2)

11 Computation of Per Share Loss (25)
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (2)

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP (25)

(1)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of, and filed with the Commission on, September 12,
1996

(2)
Incorporated by reference from Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2000 and filed with the
Commission on September 28, 2000.

(3)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1999 and filed with the
Commission on September 3, 1999
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(4)
Included in Exhibit 3.1 hereto

(5)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Registration Statement on Form 8-A, File No. 33-13660, filed with the Commission on
July 12, 1996

(6)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A dated as of, and filed with the Commission on,
April 27, 1998

(7)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of December 23, 1998 and filed with the Commission
on December 31, 1999

(8)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-2, File No. 33-88516

(9)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1995 and on file with the
Commission

(10)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1996 and filed with the
Commission on July 3, 1996

(11)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1998 and filed with the
Commission on February 22, 1999

(12)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1997 and filed with the
Commission on September 29, 1997

(13)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 1996 and filed with the
Commission on September 16, 1996

(14)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 33-62400
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(15)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated as of, and filed with the Commission on,
January 13, 1997

(16)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated as of, and filed with the Commission on, June 25,
1998

(17)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated as of, and filed with the Commission on,
September 15, 2000

(18)
Incorporated by reference to the Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of the Registrant, filed as Exhibit F to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated as of December 23, 1998 and filed with the Commission on December 31, 1998

(19)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of May 19, 2000 and filed with the Commission on
May 24, 2000

(20)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of June 7, 2000 and filed with the Commission on
June 9, 2000

(21)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000 and filed with the
Commission on May 22, 2000

(22)
Incorporated by reference to the Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of the Registrant, filed as Exhibit C to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated as of December 23, 1998 and filed with the Commission on December 31, 1998

(23)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of October 29, 1999 and filed with the Commission on
January 14, 2000

(24)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1999 and filed with the
Commission on February 14, 2000

(25)
Filed herewith
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(26)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q in the quarter ended December 31, 2000 and filed with the
Commission on February 14, 2001

(27)
Incorporated by reference from Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000 and filed with the
Commission on November 14, 2000
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Exhibit 10.3

CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT

THIS CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is between Aames Financial Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the
"Company"), and Ronald J. Nicolas, Jr. (the "Executive"). This Agreement shall become effective (the "Effective Date") as of the 23rd day
of April, 2001.

In consideration of the mutual agreements set forth below, the parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

I. Definitions. For the purpose of this Agreement only:

A. "Base Salary" shall mean the annual salary at the time of termination of Executive's employment which is paid by the
Company to the Executive in installments twice each calendar month.

B. "Cause" shall mean a finding by the Company that the Executive: (1) shall have been determined by a court of law to have
committed any felony; (2) shall have been arrested or indicted for violation of any criminal statute constituting a felony, provided
the Board of Directors of the Company reasonably determines that the continuation of the Executive's employment after such event
would have an adverse impact on the operation or reputation of the Company or its affiliates (subsequent references to the
"Company" in this Agreement shall be deemed to refer to the Company or its affiliates); (3) shall have engaged in an act of fraud,
theft, embezzlement, or misappropriation against the Company; (4) shall have committed one or more acts of gross negligence or
willful misconduct, either within or outside the scope of his employment that materially impair the goodwill or business of the
Company or cause material damage to its property, goodwill, or business, or would, if known, subject the Company to public
ridicule; (5) shall have refused or failed to a material degree to perform his duties hereunder (continuing without cure for ten
(10) days after receipt of written notice of need to cure); or (6) shall have violated any material written Company policy provided to
the Executive during or prior to his employment and that has caused material harm to the Company; provided, however, that any
finding made pursuant to clauses (3) through (6) above shall be made by the Board of Directors of the Company and any such
finding shall be made in good faith and, further provided, that no termination of Executive's employment for Cause shall be deemed
to have occurred unless Executive is given notice of the reason therefore including the allegations which may constitute reason for
such termination.

C. "Change in Control" shall mean a Change in Control of the Company as that term is defined in Article XI(b) of the Company's
Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option Plan.

II. Payments Upon Termination Following Change In Control. The Company shall continue to pay the Base Salary to the Executive for a
period of twelve (12) months following the date of termination of Executive's employment in the event that the Executive's employment is
terminated (a) by the Company or its successor(s) in interest for any reason other than for Cause within one (1) year following a Change in
Control of the Company, or (b) by Executive for any reason within six (6) months following a Change in Control of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date and year first set forth below.

DATED:

AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION
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By:

Its:

EXECUTIVE

By: (Signature)
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Exhibit 10.31(g)

SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

Sixth Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001 (this "Amendment"), to the Master Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of October 29,
1999 (as previously amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, the "Existing Loan Agreement", and as amended hereby, the "Loan
Agreement"), between AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION (the "Borrower"), and MORGAN STANLEY DEAN WITTER MORTGAGE
CAPITAL INC., formerly MORGAN STANLEY MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC., (the "Lender").

RECITALS

The Borrower and the Lender are parties to the Existing Loan Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall
have the meanings given to them in the Existing Loan Agreement.

The Borrower and the Lender have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of this Amendment, that the Existing Loan Agreement be
amended as set forth herein.

Accordingly, the Borrower and the Lender hereby agree, in consideration of the mutual premises and mutual obligations set forth herein,
that the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 1. Amendments.

(a) Section 7.16 of the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended, which amendment shall be effective as of March 30, 2001,
by deleting such Section in its entirety and substituting in lieu thereof the following new Section 7.16:

"7.16 Maintenance of Profitability. The Borrower shall not permit, for any period of two consecutive fiscal quarters
(each such period, a "Test Period"), commencing with the two consecutive fiscal quarters ending September 30, 2001, Net
Income for such Test Period, before income taxes for such Test Period and distributions made during such Test Period, to
be less than $1.00."

(b) Section 7 of the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following new Section 7.22:

"7.22 June Quarter Maintenance of Profitability. The Borrower shall not permit, for the fiscal quarter ending June 30,
2001, Net Income for such quarter, before income taxes for such quarter and distributions made during such quarter, to be
less than $1.00."

(c) Section 8 of the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended by adding the new clause (o):

"(o) the Borrower shall fail to deliver to the Lender by June 29, 2001, evidence, satisfactory to the Lender in its sole
discretion, that the Borrower has obtained waivers or amendments from each of Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB and
Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc. with respect to any maintenance of profitability requirement set forth in their
respective loan agreements."

SECTION 2. Conditions Precedent. This Amendment shall become effective on the date (the "Amendment Effective Date") on which the
following conditions precedent shall have been satisfied:

1
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2.1 Delivered Documents. On the Amendment Effective Date, the Lender shall have received the following documents, each of which shall
be satisfactory to the Lender in form and substance:

(a) Amendment. This Amendment, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of the Borrower and the Lender; and

(b) Other Documents. Such other documents as the Lender or counsel to the Lender may reasonably request.

2.2 No Default. On the Amendment Effective Date, (i) the Borrower shall be in compliance with all the terms and provisions set forth in
the Existing Loan Agreement on its part to be observed or performed, (ii) the representations and warranties made and restated by the
Borrower pursuant to Section 3 of this Amendment shall be true and complete on and as of such date with the same force and effect as if made
on and as of such date and (iii) no Default shall have occurred and be continuing on such date.

SECTION 3. Representations and Warranties. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants to the Lender that it is in compliance with all
the terms and provisions set forth in the Loan Documents on its part to be observed or performed, and that no Default has occurred or is
continuing, and hereby confirms and reaffirms the representations and warranties contained in Section 6 of the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4. Limited Effect. Except as expressly amended and modified by this Amendment, the Existing Loan Agreement shall continue
to be, and shall remain, in full force and effect in accordance with its terms; provided, however, that reference therein and herein to the "Loan
Documents" shall be deemed to include, in any event, (i) the Existing Loan Agreement, (ii) this Amendment, (iii) the Note and (iv) the
Custodial Agreement. Each reference to the Loan Agreement in any of the Loan Documents shall be deemed to be a reference to the Loan
Agreement as amended hereby.

SECTION 5. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by each of the parties hereto on any number of separate counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

SECTION 6. GOVERNING LAW. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THE CHOICE OF LAW PROVISIONS THEREOF.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered as of the day and year first
above written.

BORROWER

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Title:

LENDER

MORGAN STANLEY DEAN WITTER
MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC. (formerly
MORGAN STANLEY MORTGAGE
CAPITAL INC.)
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By:
Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 10.31(h)

SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

Seventh Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001 (this "Amendment"), to the Master Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of October 29,
1999 (as previously amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, the "Existing Loan Agreement", and as amended hereby, the "Loan
Agreement"), between AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION (the "Borrower"), and MORGAN STANLEY DEAN WITTER MORTGAGE
CAPITAL INC., formerly MORGAN STANLEY MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC., (the "Lender").

RECITALS

The Borrower and the Lender are parties to the Existing Loan Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall
have the meanings given to them in the Existing Loan Agreement.

The Borrower and the Lender have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of this Amendment, that the Existing Loan Agreement be
amended as set forth herein.

Accordingly, the Borrower and the Lender hereby agree, in consideration of the mutual premises and mutual obligations set forth herein,
that the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 1. Amendments.

1

(a) Section 1.01 of the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the definition of "Applicable Collateral
Percentage" and substituting in lieu thereof the following new definition:

"'Applicable Collateral Percentage' shall mean, with respect to each Eligible Mortgage Loan, the applicable collateral
percentage set forth in the chart below opposite the applicable product type:

Product Type
Applicable Collateral

Percentage

First Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included in
the Borrowing Base for 120 days or less

97%

First Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included in
the Borrowing Base for longer than 120 days but less than 270 days

85%

Second Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included
in the Borrowing Base for 120 days or less

97%

Second Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included
in the Borrowing Base for longer than 120 days but less than 270
days

85%

First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class A Defaulted 80%
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Loan and has been included in the Borrowing Base for 120 days or
less

First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class B Defaulted
Loan and has been included in the Borrowing Base for 120 days or
less

75%

First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class C Defaulted
Loan, prior to receipt by the Lender of a BPO for such Class C
Defaulted Loan and has been included in the Borrowing Base for
364 days or less

50%

First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class C Defaulted
Loan, after receipt by the Lender of a BPO for such Class C
Defaulted Loan and has been included in the Borrowing Base for
364 days or less

65%

2

(b) Section 1.01 of the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the definition of "Applicable Margin" and
substituting in lieu thereof the following new definition:

"Applicable Margin' shall mean the sum of the weighted average of the applicable rates per annum for each product
type of Eligible Mortgage Loan for each day that Loans shall be secured by such Eligible Mortgage Loans, determined by
multiplying (a) for each product type set forth in the table below, a fraction equal to the Collateral Value of all Eligible
Mortgage Loans of such product type divided by the Collateral Value of all Eligible Mortgage Loans, times (b) for each
product type set forth in the following table below, the percentage set forth below opposite such product type:

Product Type
Applicable

Margin

First Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included in the
Borrowing Base for 120 days or less

0.90%

First Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included in the
Borrowing Base for longer than 120 days but less than 270 days

1.10%

Second Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included in
the Borrowing Base for 120 days or less

0.90%

Second Lien Loan that is a Performing Loan and has been included in
the Borrowing Base for longer than 120 days but less than 270 days

1.10%

First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class A Defaulted Loan
and has been included in the Borrowing Base for 120 days or less

1.20%

First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class B Defaulted Loan
and has been included in the Borrowing Base for 120 days or less

1.20%

First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class C Defaulted Loan
and has been included in the Borrowing Base for 364 days or less

1.50%"
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(c) Section 1.01 of the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the definition of "Collateral Value" and
substituting in lieu thereof the following new definition:

"'Collateral Value' shall mean, with respect to each Eligible Mortgage Loan, the lesser of (a) the Applicable Collateral
Percentage of the Market Value of such Eligible Mortgage Loan, except in the case of any Class C Defaulted Loan prior to
the receipt by the Lender of a BPO relating thereto, in which case the Applicable Collateral Percentage of the outstanding

3

principal balance of such Eligible Mortgage Loan, and (b) 100% of the outstanding principal balance of such Eligible
Mortgage Loan."

SECTION 2. Conditions Precedent. This Amendment shall become effective on the date (the "Amendment Effective Date") on which the
following conditions precedent shall have been satisfied:

2.1 Delivered Documents. On the Amendment Effective Date, the Lender shall have received the following documents, each of which
shall be satisfactory to the Lender in form and substance:

(a) Amendment. This Amendment, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of the Borrower and the Lender; and

(b) Other Documents. Such other documents as the Lender or counsel to the Lender may reasonably request.

2.2 No Default. On the Amendment Effective Date, (i) the Borrower shall be in compliance with all the terms and provisions set forth in
the Existing Loan Agreement on its part to be observed or performed, (ii) the representations and warranties made and restated by the
Borrower pursuant to Section 3 of this Amendment shall be true and complete on and as of such date with the same force and effect as if made
on and as of such date and (iii) no Default shall have occurred and be continuing on such date.

SECTION 3. Representations and Warranties. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants to the Lender that it is in compliance with all
the terms and provisions set forth in the Loan Documents on its part to be observed or performed, and that no Default has occurred or is
continuing, and hereby confirms and reaffirms the representations and warranties contained in Section 6 of the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4. Limited Effect. Except as expressly amended and modified by this Amendment, the Existing Loan Agreement shall continue
to be, and shall remain, in full force and effect in accordance with its terms; provided, however, that reference therein and herein to the "Loan
Documents" shall be deemed to include, in any event, (i) the Existing Loan Agreement, (ii) this Amendment, (iii) the Note and (iv) the
Custodial Agreement. Each reference to the Loan Agreement in any of the Loan Documents shall be deemed to be a reference to the Loan
Agreement as amended hereby.

SECTION 5. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by each of the parties hereto on any number of separate counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

SECTION 6. GOVERNING LAW. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THE CHOICE OF LAW PROVISIONS THEREOF.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered as of the day and year first
above written.
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BORROWER

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Title:

LENDER

MORGAN STANLEY DEAN WITTER
MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC. (formerly
MORGAN STANLEY MORTGAGE
CAPITAL INC.)

By:
Name:
Title:

5
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EXHIBIT 10.31(i)

EIGHTH AMENDMENT
TO THE MASTER LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

Eigth Amendment, dated as of July 13, 2001 (this "Amendment"), to the Master Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of October 29, 1999
(as previously amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, the "Existing Loan Agreement", and as amended hereby, the "Loan
Agreement"), between AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION (the "Borrower"), and MORGAN STANLEY DEAN WITTER MORTGAGE
CAPITAL INC., formerly MORGAN STANLEY MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC., (the "Lender").

RECITALS

The Borrower and the Lender are parties to the Existing Loan Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall
have the meanings given to them in the Existing Loan Agreement.

The Borrower and the Lender have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of this Amendment, that the Existing Loan Agreement be
amended as set forth herein.

1

Accordingly, the Borrower and the Lender hereby agree, in consideration of the mutual premises and mutual obligations set forth herein,
that the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 1. Amendment. Section 1.01 of the Existing Loan Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following language at the end of
the definition of "Applicable Collateral Percentage":

"First Lien Loan or Second Lien Loan that is a Class A Defaulted Loan or a
Class B Defaulted Loan and has been included in the Borrowing Base for
longer than 120 days but less than 270 days

50%"

SECTION 2. Conditions Precedent. This Amendment shall become effective on the date (the "Amendment Effective Date") on which the
following conditions precedent shall have been satisfied:

2.1 Delivered Documents. On the Amendment Effective Date, the Lender shall have received the following documents, each of which shall
be satisfactory to the Lender in form and substance:

(a) Amendment. This Amendment, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of the Borrower and the Lender; and

(b) Other Documents. Such other documents as the Lender or counsel to the Lender may reasonably request.

2.2 No Default. On the Amendment Effective Date, (i) the Borrower shall be in compliance with all the terms and provisions set forth in the
Existing Loan Agreement on its part to be observed or performed, (ii) the representations and warranties made and restated by the Borrower
pursuant to Section 3 of this Amendment shall be true and complete on and as of such date with the same force and effect as if made on and as
of such date and (iii) no Default shall have occurred and be continuing on such date.
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SECTION 3. Representations and Warranties. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants to the Lender that it is in compliance with all
the terms and provisions set forth in the Loan Documents on its part to be observed or performed, and that no Default has occurred or is
continuing, and hereby confirms and reaffirms the representations and warranties contained in Section 6 of the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4. Limited Effect. Except as expressly amended and modified by this Amendment, the Existing Loan Agreement shall continue
to be, and shall remain, in full force and effect in accordance with its terms; provided, however, that reference therein and herein to the "Loan
Documents" shall be deemed to include, in any event, (i) the Existing Loan Agreement, (ii) this Amendment, (iii) the Note and (iv) the
Custodial Agreement. Each reference to the Loan Agreement in any of the Loan Documents shall be deemed to be a reference to the Loan
Agreement as amended hereby.

SECTION 5. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by each of the parties hereto on any number of separate counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

SECTION 6. GOVERNING LAW. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THE CHOICE OF LAW PROVISIONS THEREOF.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered as of the day and year first
above written.

BORROWER:

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION

By: Name:
Title:

LENDER:

MORGAN STANLEY DEAN WITTER
MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC. (formerly
MORGAN STANLEY MORTGAGE
CAPITAL INC.)

By: Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 10.32(a)

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT GOVERNING
PURCHASES AND SALES OF MORTGAGE LOANS

This Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001 (the "Amendment"), to the Master Repurchase Agreement Governing Purchases and Sales of
Mortgage Loans dated as of December 1, 2000 (as amended, the "Agreement'), is made by and between LEHMAN BROTHERS BANK, FSB
("Buyer") and AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION ("Seller" and, together with the Buyer, the "Parties").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Seller and the Buyer are parties to the Agreement, pursuant to which the Buyer has agreed, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in the Agreement, to purchase certain Mortgage Loans owned by the Seller, including, without limitation, all rights of
Seller to service and administer such Mortgage Loans. Terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Agreement, as amended hereby.

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to modify certain of the terms and conditions governing the purchase and sale of the
Mortgage Loans.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties
hereto agree as follows:

Section 1. Amendment.

1.1 The definitions of "Adjusted Leverage Ratio" and "Leverage Ratio" in Section 2 of the Agreement are hereby
deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following, effective on and after March 31, 2001:

"Adjusted Leverage Ratio" means, at any time, the ratio of (i) the aggregate principal amount of all indebtedness (other
than indebtedness incurred in connection with Mortgage Loan warehousing facilities of Guarantor and its subsidiaries) of
Guarantor and its subsidiaries at such time which on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP would be required to
be reflected on a consolidated balance sheet of Guarantor and its subsidiaries as a liability to (ii) the sum of (1) Tangible
Net Worth of Guarantor and its subsidiaries plus (2) accrued but unpaid dividends on preferred stock of Guarantor and its
subsidiaries at such time.

"Leverage Ratio" means, at any time, the ratio of (i) the aggregate principal amount of all indebtedness of Guarantor or
Seller, as applicable, and its respective subsidiaries at such time which on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP
would be required to be reflected on a consolidated balance sheet of Guarantor or Seller, as applicable, and its respective
subsidiaries as a liability to (ii) the sum of (1) the Tangible Net Worth of Guarantor or Seller, as applicable, and its
respective subsidiaries plus (2) with respect to Guarantor and its subsidiaries only, accrued but unpaid dividends on
preferred stock at such time.

1.2 Section 13(a) (xii)�(xviii), (xx) and (xxi) are hereby deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following and the following new
Section 13(a)(xxii) is hereby added after Section 13(a)(xxi):
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(xii)
Tangible Net Worth of the Guarantor shall (x) at any time between March 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2001, be less than $37,000,000 and (y) at any time thereafter, be less than
$34,000,000;

(xiii)
commencing on and after March 31, 2001, Tangible Net Worth of the Seller shall be less than the
$300,000,000;

(xiv)
the Interest Coverage Ratio of the Guarantor shall exceed 1.05 to 1.0 on the last Business Day of
any calendar quarter commencing with the quarter ending June 30, 2001;

(xv)
commencing on and after March 31, 2001, the Leverage Ratio of the Guarantor shall exceed 12.0 to
1.0;

(xvi)
commencing on and after March 31, 2001, the Adjusted Leverage Ratio of the Guarantor shall
exceed 6.0 to 1.0;

(xvii) commencing on and after March 31, 2001, the Leverage Ratio of the Seller shall exceed 3.0 to 1.0;

(xviii)

commencing on and after March 31, 2001, the aggregate amount of the Guarantor's cash, cash
equivalents and available borrowing capacity on unencumbered assets that could be drawn against
(taking into account required haircuts) under committed warehouse or working capital facilities, on
a consolidated basis and on any given day, shall be less than $17,500,000 at any time;

(xx)
the Seller shall be a party to committed facilities (other than this Agreement) with a maximum
aggregate principal amount of commitments equal to less than $200,000,000 at any time;

(xxi)
for any two fiscal quarters of Guarantor after the date of this Agreement, Guarantor and its
subsidiaries shall incur a loss on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP; or

(xxii)
Guarantor shall pay any dividends under its preferred stock at any time (it being understood and
agreed that such dividends may accrue).

Section 2. Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the Parties.

2.1 Except as expressly amended by Section 1 hereof, the Agreement remains unaltered and in full force and effect. Each of the Parties
hereby reaffirms all terms and covenants made in the Agreement as amended hereby.

2.2 Each of the Parties hereby represents and warrants to the other that (a) this Amendment constitutes the legal, valid and binding
obligation of such Party, enforceable against such Party in

2

accordance with its terms, and (b) the execution and delivery by such Party of this Amendment has been duly authorized by all requisite
corporate action on the part of such Party and will not violate any provision of the organizational documents of such Party.

Section 3. Effect upon the Agreement.

3.1 Except as specifically set forth herein, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and confirmed. All
references to the "Agreement" in the Master Repurchase Agreement Governing Purchases and Sales of Mortgage Loans shall mean and refer
to the Master Repurchase Agreement Governing Purchases and Sales of Mortgage Loans as modified and amended hereby.
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3.2 The execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of any Party
under the Agreement, or any other document, instrument or agreement executed and/or delivered in connection therewith.

Section 4. Governing Law.

THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED, INTERPRETED AND GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES THEREOF.

Section 5. Counterparts.

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all such counterparts shall together constitute the same agreement.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed as of the day and year first above written.

SELLER:

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION, as Seller

By:
Name:
Title:

BUYER:

LEHMAN BROTHERS BANK, FSB, as Buyer

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT 10.32(b)

SECOND AMENDMENT TO MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT
GOVERNING PURCHASES AND SALES OF MORTGAGE LOANS

This Amendment, dated as of June 21, 2001 (the "Amendment"), to the Master Repurchase Agreement Governing Purchases and Sales of
Mortgage Loans dated as of December 1, 2000 (as amended, the "Agreement"), is made by and between LEHMAN BROTHERS BANK, FSB
("Buyer") and AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION ("Seller" and, together with the Buyer, the "Parties").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Seller and the Buyer are parties to the Agreement, pursuant to which the Buyer has agreed, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in the Agreement, to purchase certain Mortgage Loans owned by the Seller, including, without limitation, all rights of
Seller to service and administer such Mortgage Loans. Terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Agreement, as amended hereby.

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to modify certain of the terms and conditions governing the purchase and sale of the
Mortgage Loans.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties
hereto agree as follows:

Section 1. Amendment.

1.1 The definitions of "Final Repurchase Date", "Pricing Spread" and "Purchase Price" in Section 2 of the Agreement are hereby
deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following:

"Final Repurchase Date" means June 30, 2002 or such earlier date on which all Purchased Mortgage Loans are required to be
immediately repurchased pursuant to Section 14(a).

"Pricing Spread" means the rate specified in the Confirmation, which shall be equal to (i) on each date prior to the delivery to the
Custodian of the complete Mortgage Files with respect to the related Purchased Mortgage Loans, 1.75% and (ii) on each date on and
after the delivery to the Custodian of such Mortgage Files, 1.00%.

"Purchase Price" means on each Purchase Date, the price at which Purchased Mortgage Loans are transferred by Seller to Buyer or
its designee (including the Custodian) which shall be equal to, with respect to each Purchased Mortgage Loan, the lowest of
(x) 95.5% of the Market Value of such Purchased Mortgage Loan as determined by the Buyer in its sole discretion, (y) 97.0% of the
Securitization Value of such Purchased Mortgage Loan as determined by the Buyer in its sole discretion and (z) 98.5% (or, with
respect to any Purchased Loan which is a Wet Ink Mortgage Loan, 95.0%) of the outstanding principal amount of such Purchased
Mortgage Loan.

1.2 Seller represents and warrants to Buyer that, at all times while the Agreement is in full force and effect, any and all
obligations on the part of the Seller or the Guarantor to make payments on its respective preferred shares shall in all cases be
subordinate to Seller's obligations to make payments under the Agreement and Guarantor's obligations to make payments under the
Guaranty, dated as of December 1, 2000, for the benefit of the Buyer.

Section 2. Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the Parties.
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2.1 Except as expressly amended by Section 1 hereof, the Agreement remains unaltered and in full force and effect. Each of the
Parties hereby reaffirms all terms and covenants made in the Agreement as amended hereby.

2.2 Each of the Parties hereby represents and warrants to the other that (a) this Amendment constitutes the legal, valid and binding
obligation of such Party, enforceable against such Party in accordance with its terms, and (b) the execution and delivery by such
Party of this Amendment has

been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of such Party and will not violate any provision of the
organizational documents of such Party.

Section 3. Effect upon the Agreement.

3.1 Except as specifically set forth herein, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and
confirmed. All references to the "Agreement" in the Master Repurchase Agreement Governing Purchases and Sales of Mortgage
Loans shall mean and refer to the Master Repurchase Agreement Governing Purchases and Sales of Mortgage Loans as modified
and amended hereby.

3.2 The execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of
any Party under the Agreement, or any other document, instrument or agreement executed and/or delivered in connection therewith.

Section 4. Governing Law.

THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED, INTERPRETED AND GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES THEREOF.

Section 5. Counterparts.

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all such counterparts shall together constitute the same agreement.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed as of the day and year first above written.

SELLER:

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION, as Seller

By: Name:
Title:

BUYER:

LEHMAN BROTHERS BANK, FSB, as Buyer

By: Name:
Title:
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AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE
to the

Warehouse Loan and Security Agreement
dated as of February 10, 2000,

as Amended and Restated to and including January 24, 2001
Among

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION,
AAMES FUNDING CORPORATION

and
GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC.

This AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE (this "Amendment") is made this 1st day of May, 2001, among AAMES CAPITAL
CORPORATION, AAMES FUNDING CORPORATION (each, a "Borrower" and collectively, the "Borrowers") and GREENWICH
CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC. ("Lender") to the WAREHOUSE LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of
February 10, 2000, as Amended and Restated to and including January 24, 2001 between Lender and Borrowers (the "Loan Agreement").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Borrowers have requested that Lender agree to amend the Loan Agreement to permit the financing of concurrent second lien
mortgage loans originated by the Borrowers and Lender has agreed to make such amendment as more expressly set forth below to the Loan
Agreement.

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Amendment, Borrowers represent to the Lender that they are in compliance with all of the representations
and warranties and all of the affirmative and negative covenants set forth in the Loan Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and of the mutual
covenants herein contained, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Effective as of May 1, 2001, Section 1 of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended to include the following definition of
"Concurrent Second Lien Mortgage Loan" to read in its entirety as follows:

"Concurrent Second Lien Mortgage Loan" shall mean a Second Lien Mortgage Loan as to which the prior lien on such Mortgaged
Property is secured by financing which was obtained by the related Mortgagor from the related Borrower at the same time that such
Second Lien Mortgage Loan was originated.

SECTION 2. Effective as of May 1, 2001, the definition of "Collateral Value" in Section 1 of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended by
deleting the word "or" at the end of clause (13) thereto, by amending the "." at the end of clause (14) thereto to be "; or" and by adding the
following new clause (15) to read in its entirety as follows:

(15) if such Mortgage Loan is a Concurrent Second Lien Mortgage Loan and the Collateral Value of such Concurrent Second Lien
Mortgage Loan when added to the aggregate Collateral Value of all other Concurrent Second Lien Mortgage Loans exceeds, at any
time, the lesser of (a) $3,000,000, and (b) 5% of the aggregate outstanding amount of all Advances;

SECTION 3. Effective as of May 1, 2001, the last sentence of representation (j) in Schedule 1 to the Loan Agreement is hereby amended to
read in its entirety as follows:
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Except with respect to any First Lien Mortgage Loan which was originated in connection with a Concurrent Second Lien Mortgage
Loan, the Mortgaged Property was not, as of the date of origination of the Mortgage Loan, subject to a mortgage, deed of trust, deed
to secure debt or other security instrument creating a lien subordinate to the lien of the Mortgage.

SECTION 4. Effective as of May 1, 2001, representation (v) in Schedule 1 to the Loan Agreement is hereby amended by adding the
following sentence to the end thereof:

Any Concurrent Second Lien Mortgage Loan satisfies the Aames Guidelines for the 80-20 Program which are provided pursuant to
the applicable Underwriting Guidelines.

SECTION 5. Fees and Expenses. Borrowers agree to pay to Lender all fees and out of pocket expenses incurred by Lender in connection
with this Amendment (including all reasonable fees and out of pocket costs and expenses of the Lender's legal counsel incurred in connection
with this Amendment Number One), in accordance with Section 10.03 of the Loan Agreement

SECTION 6. Defined Terms. Any terms capitalized but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings set forth in the
Loan Agreement.

SECTION 7. Representations. In order to induce the Lender to execute and deliver this Amendment Number One, the Borrowers hereby
represent to the Lender that as of the date hereof, after giving effect to this Amendment Number One, the Borrowers are in full compliance
with all of the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement.

SECTION 8. Limited Effect. Except as expressly amended and modified by this Amendment, the Loan Agreement shall continue in full
force and effect in accordance with its terms. Reference to this Amendment Number One need not be made in the Loan Agreement or any
other instrument or document executed in connection therewith, or in any certificate, letter or communication issued or made pursuant to, or
with respect to, the Loan Agreement, any reference in any of such items to the Loan Agreement being sufficient to refer to the Loan
Agreement as amended hereby.

SECTION 9. Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK AND THE OBLIGATIONS, RIGHTS, AND REMEDIES OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE
DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH LAWS WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICT OF LAWS DOCTRINE APPLIED IN
SUCH STATE.

SECTION 10. Counterparts. This Amendment Number One may be executed by each of the parties hereto on any number of separate
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrowers and Lender have caused this amendment to be executed and delivered by their duly authorized
officers as of the day and year first above written.

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION
Borrower

By:
Name:

Title:
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AAMES FUNDING CORPORATION
Borrower

By:
Name:

Title:

GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL
PRODUCTS, INC.,

Lender

By:
Name:

Title:

Acknowledged and Agreed:

AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION

By:

Name: John Kohler
Title: Executive Vice President
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EXHIBIT 10.33(c)

AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO
to the

Warehouse Loan and Security Agreement
dated as of February 10, 2000,

as Amended and Restated to and including January 24, 2001
Among

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION,
AAMES FUNDING CORPORATION

and
GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC.

This AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO (this "Amendment") is made this 30th day of March, 2001, among AAMES CAPITAL
CORPORATION, AAMES FUNDING CORPORATION (each, a "Borrower" and collectively, the "Borrowers") and GREENWICH
CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC. ("Lender") to the WAREHOUSE LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of
February 10, 2000, as Amended and Restated to and including January 24, 2001 between Lender and Borrowers (the "Loan Agreement").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Borrowers have requested that Lender agree to the amendments to the Loan Agreement as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Lender has consented to such amendments to the Loan Agreement as set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and of the mutual
covenants herein contained, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Effective as of March 30, 2001, the definition of "Tangible Net Worth" in Section 1.01 of the Loan Agreement is hereby
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Tangible Net Worth" shall mean, with respect to any Person, as of any date of determination, the consolidated Net Worth of such
Person and its Subsidiaries, less the consolidated net book value of all assets of such Person and its Subsidiaries (to the extent
reflected as an asset in the balance sheet of such Person or any Subsidiary at such date) which will be treated as intangibles under
GAAP; provided, that residual securities issued by such Person or its Subsidiaries shall not be treated as intangibles for purposes of
this definition.

SECTION 2. Fees and Expenses. Borrowers agree to pay to Lender all fees and out of pocket expenses incurred by Lender in connection
with this Amendment (including all reasonable fees and out of pocket costs and expenses of the Lender's legal counsel incurred in connection
with this Amendment Number Two), in accordance with Section 10.03 of the Loan Agreement

SECTION 3. Defined Terms. Any terms capitalized but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings set forth in the
Loan Agreement.

SECTION 4. Representations. In order to induce the Lender to execute and deliver this Amendment Number Two, the Borrowers hereby
represent to the Lender that as of the date hereof, after giving effect to this Amendment Number Two, the Borrowers are in full compliance
with all of the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement.
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SECTION 5. Limited Effect. Except as expressly amended and modified by this Amendment, the Loan Agreement shall continue in full
force and effect in accordance with its terms. Reference to this Amendment Number Two need not be made in the Loan Agreement or any
other instrument or

document executed in connection therewith, or in any certificate, letter or communication issued or made pursuant to, or with respect to, the
Loan Agreement, any reference in any of such items to the Loan Agreement being sufficient to refer to the Loan Agreement as amended
hereby.

SECTION 6. Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK AND THE OBLIGATIONS, RIGHTS, AND REMEDIES OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE
DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH LAWS WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICT OF LAWS DOCTRINE APPLIED IN
SUCH STATE.

SECTION 7. Counterparts. This Amendment Number Two may be executed by each of the parties hereto on any number of separate
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrowers and Lender have caused this Amendment Number Two to be executed and delivered by their duly
authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION
Borrower

By: Name: John Kohler
Title: Executive Vice President

AAMES FUNDING CORPORATION
Borrower

By: Name: John Kohler
Title: Executive Vice President

GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL
PRODUCTS, INC.,

Lender

By:

Name:

Title:

Acknowledged and Agreed:

AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION

By:
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Name: John Kohler
Title: Executive Vice President
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CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC.
RECITALS
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EXHIBIT 10.33(e)

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE
to the

Guaranty
dated as of January 24, 2001

made by
AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION

in favor of
GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC.

This AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE (this "Amendment") is made as of this 30th day of March, 2001, by and between AAMES
FINANCIAL CORPORATION ("Guarantor") and GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC. (the "Lender"), to the
GUARANTY, dated as of January 24, 2001, made by the Guarantor in favor of Lender (the "Guaranty").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Guarantor has requested that Lender agree to the amendments to the Guaranty as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Lender has consented to such amendments to the Guaranty as set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and of the mutual
covenants herein contained, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Effective as of March 30, 2001, clause (i) of Section 3(b) of the Guaranty is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with
the following:

"(i) Maintenance of Tangible Net Worth. The Tangible Net Worth of the Guarantor, on a consolidated basis and on any given day,
shall be not less than (A) $37,000,000 prior to January 1, 2002, and (B) $34,000,000, thereafter;"

SECTION 2. Effective as of March 30, 2001, clause (ii) of Section 3(b) of the Guaranty is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with
the following:

"(ii) Maintenance of Ratio of Total Indebtedness to Tangible Net Worth. The Guarantor shall not permit the ratio of Total
Indebtedness (not taking into account the aggregate outstanding amount borrowed by the Guarantor under any secured financing
facilities for which adequate collateral has been pledged thereunder by the Guarantor) to Tangible Net Worth, on a consolidated
basis and on any given day, to be greater than 10:1;"

SECTION 3. Effective as of March 30, 2001, clause (iii) of Section 3(b) of the Guaranty is hereby modified by deleting the reference to
"$15,000,000" therein and replacing it with "$17,500,000".

SECTION 4. Defined Terms. Any terms capitalized but not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings set forth in the
Guaranty.

SECTION 5. Representations. In order to induce Lender to execute and deliver this Amendment, the Guarantor hereby represents to Lender
that as of the date hereof, after giving effect to this Amendment, the Guarantor is in full compliance with all of the terms and conditions of the
Guaranty.
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SECTION 6. Limited Effect. Except as expressly amended and modified by this Amendment, the Guaranty shall continue in full force and
effect in accordance with its terms. Reference to this Amendment need not be made in the Guaranty or any other instrument or document
executed in connection therewith, or in any certificate, letter or communication issued or made pursuant to, or with respect to, the Guaranty,
any reference in any of such items to the Guaranty being sufficient to refer to the Guaranty as amended hereby.

SECTION 7. Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE
OF NEW YORK AND THE OBLIGATIONS, RIGHTS, AND REMEDIES OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE DETERMINED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH LAWS WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICT OF LAWS DOCTRINE APPLIED IN SUCH STATE.

SECTION 8. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by each of the parties hereto on any number of separate counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Guarantor and Lender have caused this Amendment to be executed and delivered by their duly authorized
officers as of the day and year first above written.

AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION,
Guarantor

By:
Name:
Title:

GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL
PRODUCTS, INC.,
LENDER

By:
Name:

Title:

3
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Exhibit 11

AAMES FINANCIAL CORPORATION
Computation of Per Share Loss
For the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
(dollars and weighted average number of shares in thousands)

Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999

Basic net loss per common share:

Net loss $ (30,524) $ (122,372) $ (247,967)
Accrued preferred dividends on Series B, C, and D Convertible
Preferred Stock

(13,921) (8,126) (1,950)

Basic net loss to common stockholders (44,445) (130,498) (249,917)
Basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,251 6,209 6,200

Basic net loss per common share $ (7.11) $ (21.02) $ (40.31)

Diluted net loss per common share:

Basic net loss to common stockholders $ (44,445) $ (130,498) $ (249,917)
Interest on convertible subordinated debentures � � �

Diluted net loss (44,445) (130,498) (249,917)
Diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,251 6,209 6,200

Diluted net loss per common share $ (7.11) $ (21.02) $ (40.31)
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-85241) and S-8 (Nos. 333-95811 and
333-45826) and related Prospectuses of Aames Financial Corporation of our report dated September 14, 2001 with respect to the consolidated
financial statements of Aames Financial Corporation included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended June 30, 2001.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles, California
September 28, 2001
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